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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders

TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:

Please be informed that the Annual General Meeting of the Stockholders of ALLIANCE
SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. (the ‘Company') will be held on June 15, 2018
(Friday) at 2:30 p.m. (the “Annual General Mesting’ or the “Meeting”). The venue of the

Meeting will be announced. The order of business thereat will be as follows: '

Call to order;

Proof of the required notice of the meeting;

Certification of quorum;

Reading and approval of the Minutes of the 2017 Annual General Meeting of

Stockholders held on June 15, 201 7, and the Special Mesting of Stockholders

held on September 7, 2017:

5, Presentation of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for
the Year Ended December 31, 2017 and Action Thereon;

6. Ratification and approval of the acts of the Board of Directors and Executive
Officers for the corporate year 2017-2018;

7. Appointment of Independent External Auditors:

8. Election of Directors, including Independent Directors;

9. Other matters.

W

There will be an OPEN FORUM before the approval of the Annual Report and the Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 is submitted fo the vote of the
shareholders. - Questions will likewise be entertained for other items in the agenda as
appropriate and consistent with orderly proceedings. :

A brief statement of the rationals and explanation for each Agenda item which requires
shareholders’ approval is contained in Annex “A* of this Notice. The Information Statement
accompanying this Notice contains more detai regarding the rationale and explanation for
each of such Agenda items.

For the purpose of the mesting, only stockholders of record st the close of business on April
11, 2018 will be entitled to this Notice, and to vote at the Meeting. Please bring some form of
identification, such as passport, drivers license, or company 1.D. in order o facilitate
registration which will start at 1:00 p.m. on June 15, 2017.

Any stockholder who cannot attend the Meeting in person and desires to be represented
thereat is requested to date and sign the attached proxy form, and mail it back using the
return envelope. The proxy should be mailed in time 50 as to be received by the Office of the
Assistant Corporate Secretary at the Company’s principal office on or before June 5, 2018,
which is the deadline for submission of proxies. Proxy validation will commence on June 8,
2018 at 10:00 a.m. at the principal office of the Company.

Copies of tha Minutes of previous stockholders’ meetings are available on the Company’s
website (http:/allianceselectfoods.com/) and will be available for examination during office
hours at the office of the Corporation.

~

BARBA NE €. Mi
Corporate Secrdtary



ANN Ex “Al!

EXPLANATION AND RATIONALE
For each iteam on the Agenda of the
2018 Annual General Stockholders’ Meeting of
ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
requiring the vote of stockholders

AGENDA

. Call to Order

The Chairman of the Meeting will fomally open the 2017 Annual General
Stockholders’ Meeting. The Directors and Officers of the Company who are present
thereat will be introduced.

. Proof of Required Notice of the Meefing

The Corporate Secretary will certify that copies of this Notice and the Information
Statement have been duly sent to stockholders as of record date of April 11, 2018
within the periods prescribed by the applicable rules.

. Certiflcation of Quorum

The Corporate Secretary will attest whether a quorum is present for the meeting.

- Reading of the Minutes of the 2017 Annual General Stockholders’ Meeting held
on June 15, 2017, and the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on September
7, 2017, and Action Thereon

Shareholders may examine the Minutes of the said stockholders’ meeting in
accordance with Sec. 74 of the Corporation Code. The Minutes are available on the
Company's website.

Resolution to be adopted: Shareholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution
approving the minutes of the 2017 Annual General Meeting of Stockholders held on
June 15, 2017, and the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on September 7, 2017.

- Presentation of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the
Year ended December 31, 2017 and Action Thereon

A summary of the Annual Report and the financial statements of the Company,
audited by the Company’s independent external auditors, Reyes Tacandong & Co.,
for the year ended December 31, 2017 will be presented. Copies of the said Annual
Report with the said financial statements are enclosed with the Information
Statement, and are also available on the Company’s website.

‘There will be an OPEN FORUM after the presentation. A shareholder, upon
identifying himself or herself, may raise questions that are relevant or express an
appropriate comment.

Resolution to be adopted: Shareholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution
approving the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017.



6. Ratification and Approval of the Acts of the Board of Directors and Executive
Officers for the Corporate Yoar 2017-2018
Actions by the Board of Directors and by the Officers for the corporate year 2017-
2018 are summarized in the Information Statement.

Resolution to be adopted: Shareholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution
ratifying and approving the acts of the Board of Directors and Officers.

7. Appointment of independent External Auditors
The Audit Committee endorsed the appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as the
Company's independent extemal auditors for the year 2018. The Board of Directors

approved the appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co., subject to approval by the
stockholders.

Resolution to be adopted: Shareholders will vote on a resolution for the

appointment of said auditing firm as independent extemal auditor of the Company for
2017.

8. Election of Directors, including Independent Directors
The Final List of Candidates for olection as directors, as prepared by the
Nominations Committee in accordance with the Company’s By-Laws and Manual on
Corporate Govemance, will be presented to the shareholders, and the election of
directors will be held.

9. Other Matters

Matters that are relevant to and appropriate for the annual stockholders’ meeting may
be taken up. No resolution, other than the resolutions explained in the Notice and the
Information Statement, will be submitted for voting by the shareholders.

10. Adjournment

G, ASFil Moticn and Aganda — Prefiminary IS inal (TWAY1B) appd6



10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT T& SEQTION;20ND EXCHANCE
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE ¢ ()"-"W’” S5 iON

DT
Check the appropriate box: ll MAY 07 2018 11/} |
. 7 L ,_wi ‘J
[X] Preliminary Information Statement W?AR ) REG LMION P,
[ 1Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter
ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS iNTERNATIONAL, INC.

{formerly Alliance Tuna International, Inc.)

Metro Manila, Philippines
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

SEC Identification Number C8200319138
BIR Tax Identffication Code 227-409-243-000

Unit 1206, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre,

Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila 1805
Address of principal office Postal Code

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 635-5241 to 44

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

Date : June 15, 2018
Time : 2:30 p.m.
Place : [to be announced]

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders: May 22, 2018, and in no case later than May 24, 2018

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: Alliance Select Foods
International, Inc.

Address : Unit 1208, East Tower, Philippine Stock
Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila
1605

Telephone No. : {632) 835-5241 to 44

SEC Form 1758 1
December 2003



11.

12.

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8
of the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only
to corporate registrants):

Number of Shares of
Common Stock Issued: 2,499,712,463 (as of March 31, 2018)

Amount of Debt Outstanding: $36,830,072 (as of December 31, 2017)
Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in 2 Stock Exchange?
Yesx__ No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed

therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. -- Common Shares

PART |

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1.

Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

The Annual General Meeting of the Stockholders of Alliance Select Foods International, inc.
(the “Company”), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Philippines
with address at Unit 1208 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila, will be held on June 15, 2018 (Friday) at 2:30
p.m. (the “Annual General Meeting” or the “Meeting”). The venue of the meeting wilt be
duly announced, and will be provided in the Definitive Information Statement.

The Agenda of the Meeting, as indicated in the accompanying Notice of Annual

General Meeting, is as follows:

®» o

Call fo order;

Proof of the required notice of the meeting;

Certification of quorum;

Reading and approval of the Minutes of the 2017 Annual Stockholders’
Meeting held on June 15, 2017, and the Special Meeting of Stockholders held
on September 7, 2017; :

Presentation of the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the
Year Ended December 31, 2017 and Action Thereon:

Ratification and approval of the acts of the Board of Directors and Executive
Officers;

7. Appointment of Independent External Auditors;

8. Election of Directors, including Independent Directors;

9, Other matters.

RLN=

SEC Formn 1715 2
December 2003



Thera wilt be an OPEN FORUM before the approval of the Management Report and Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 is submitted to the vote of the
shareholders. Questions will likewise be entertained for other items in the agenda as
appropriate and consistent with orderly proceedings. '

The Management Report with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ‘ended
December 31, 2017 is attached to this information Statement. The 2017 Annual Report
under SEC Form 17-A is available on the Companys website
(http://aliianceselectfoods.com/). The Company’s unaudited interim financial statements for
the first quarter of 2018 or the period ended March 31, 2018 on SEC Form 17-Q will be
uploaded on the Company’s websiie at least five (5) days before Meeting .Upon written
request of a shareholder, the Company shall fumish such shareholder with a copy of the
said Annual Report and/or Quarterly Report as filed with the SEC, free of charge. The
contact details for obtaining such copy are on Page 28 of this Information Statement.

Far the purpose of the Meeting, only stockholders of record at the close of business on
April 11, 2018 will be entitled to vote. Stockholders are requested to bring some form of
identification such as passport, driver's license, or company 1.D. in order to facilitate
registration, which will start at 1:00 p.m.

Shareholders who cannat attend the Meeting may accomplish the afttached Proxy Form.
Please indicate your vote (Yes, No, Abstain) for each item in the attached form, and submit
the same on or before June 5, 2018 to the Office of the Assistant Corporate Secretary at
the Company’s principal office,

Proxies will be validated by a special committee consisting of the Company’s Carporate
Secretary, Compliance Officer, and a representative of the Company’s stock transfer agent,
Stock Transfer Service, Inc. (“STSI"). The special commitiee will validate the proxies on
June 8, 2018, 10:00 a.m. at the Company’s principal office.

Validated proxies will be tabulated at the Meeting by STSI, and will be voted as indicated by
the shareholder in the proxy, and in accordance with applicable rules.

Voting procedures are contained in Item 19 (Pages 26-27) of this Information Statement and
will be stated at the start of the Meeting. Cumulative voting is allowed; please refer to ltem 4
(Pages 4-5) and item 19 (Pages 26-27) for an explanation of cumulative voting.

Further information and explanation regarding specific agenda items, where apprapriate, are
contained in various sections of this Information Statement. This Information Statement
constitutes notice of the resolutions to be adopted at the Meeting.

item 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

There are no corporate matters or action to be taken during the Meeting that will entitle a
stockholder to a Right of Appraisal as provided in Title X of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines {Batas Pambansa [National Law] No. 68),

For the information of stockholders, any stockholder of the Company shali have a right to
dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares in the following instances, as
provided in the Corporation Code of the Philippines:

1. In case any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in

SEC Form 1745 3
December 2003



any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of oxtonding or
shortening the term of corporate existence (Section 81);

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of
all or substantially ali of the corporate property and assets (Section 81);

3. In case of merger or consolidation (Section 81); and |

4 In case of investments in another corporation, business or purpose (Section 42).

The Corporation Code of the Philippines (at Section 82) provides that the appraisal right
may be exercised by any stockholder who shall have voted against the proposed corporate
action, by making a written demand on the comporation within thirty (30) days after the date
on which the vote was taken, for payment of the fair value of his shares: provided, that
failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal
right. A stockholder must have voted against the proposed corporate action in order to avail
himself of the appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected,
the corporation shall pay fo such stockholder, upon surrender of his certificate(s) of stock
representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the
vote was faken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate
action.

it within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair
value of the shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons,
one of whom shail be named by the stockholder, another by the corporation and the third by
the two thus chosen. The findings of the majority of appraisers shall be final, and their
award shall be paid by the corporation within thirty (30} days after such award is made;
provided, that no payment shall be made to any dissenting stockholder unless the
corporation has unrestricted retained eamings in its books fo cover such payment; and
provided, further, that upon payment by the corporation of the agreed or awarded price, the
stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the corporation.

ltem 3.  Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

No director, nominee for election as director, associate of the nominee or executive officer
of the Company at any time since the beginning of the last fiscal year, has any substantial
interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any of the matters to be
acted upon in the Meeting, other than election to office.

At the time of the filing of this Ihformation Statement, the Company has not been informed

by any incumbent director in writing of an intention to oppose any action to be taken at the
Meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

As of March 31, 2018, there are 2,499,712,463 outstanding and issued common shares of
the Company, exclusive of 287,537 treasury shares. The Company does not have any class
of shares other than common shares.

SEC Form 17-1§ 4
December 2003
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::III stockholders of record as of April 11, 2018 are enfitied o notice and to vote at the
eeting,

A stockholder enfitled to vote at the Meeting shall have the right to vote in person or by
proxy.

Cumulative voting may be adopted in the election of directors as allowed by the Corporation
Code of the Philippines. On this basis, each registered stockholder as of April 11, 2018 may

_ vote the number of shares registered in his name for each of the directors to be elected; or

he may multiply the number of shares registered in his name by the number of directors to
be elected, and cast the total of such vates for one (1) director. A stockholder may also
distribute his votes among some or all of the directors to be elected.

Voting Procedures are stated in ltem 19 (Pages 26-27) of this Information Statement.

Security Ownership of Certain Recbrﬂ and Beneficial Owners

To the best of the knowledge of the Company, the following stockholders own more than five
percent (5%) of the Company’s outstanding capital stock as of March 31, 2018:

Name, Address of | Name of Beneficial
Title of | Record Owner, and Owner and Citizenshi Number of | % of
Class Relationship Relationship with P/ Shares Held Class
With Issuer Record OQwner
Common | PDC Nominee Strongeak, Inc. Filipino |1,382,755,86455.32%
Cormporation
(Please see Note 2)
Beneficial Owner:
Strongoak, Inc. Proxy Named:
37F Enterprise Tower | (Please see Note 1)
1, Ayala Avenue,
Makatfi City
Stockholder
Please see Note 2.
Common | PCD Nominee See Note 3 below. Filipino | 627,630,482 P25.11%
Corporation
37/F Tower |, The
‘Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Center,
Makati City
SEC Form 17-15 5
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Common

Harvest All Harvest All Investment| Hong Kong! 177,261,165 |7.09%
Investment Ltd., Ltd.

4304-43/F China {Same as Record

Resources Bldg. 26 Owner)

Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong Proxy Named:
(Piease see Note 1)

Stockholder
Common | Victory Fund Ltd., Victory Fund Ltd. |Hong Kong| 138,474,015 |5.54%
30 Biderford Road, {Same as Record
#17-02 Thongsia Owner)
Building, Singapore
Proxy Named.:
Stockholider {(Please see Note 1)
TOTAL 2,421,750,328/96.88%

1

The proxies naming the natural persons authorized to vote the shares of the
foregoing record owners for the Meeting have not yet been received by the

Company. The deadline set by the Board of Directors for the submission of
proxies is on June 5, 2018,

Mr. Anfonio C. Pacis, Mr. George E. SyCip, Ms. Marie Grace T. Vera Cruz
currently represent Strongoak in the Board of Directors of the Company.

PCD Nominee Corporation (“PCD Nominee”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Philippine Depository & Trust Corp., the depository infrastructure for equities and
fixed income markets in the Philippines. PCD Nominee is a private company
organized by the major institutions actively participating in the Philippine capital
markets to implement an automated book-entry system of handling securities
fransaction in the Philippines. PCD Nominee is the registered owner of the
shares in the books of the Company’s transfer agent. The beneficial owners of
such shares are PCD Nominee's participants who hold the shares on their own
behalf or in behalf of their clients. The beneficial owners of such shares are PCD
Nominee's parficipants who hold the shares on their own behalf or in behalf of -
their clients.

The 627,630,482 shares shown above as of March 31, 2018 are shares
beneficially owned by Filipinos, exclusive of the 1,382,755,864 shares beneficially
owned by Strongoak, Inc., and held through PCD Nominee. Foreigners or non-
Filipinos beneficially own 95,628,802 shares or 3.83% of the Company through
PCD Nominee.

Except as stated above, the Company has no knowledge of any person or any group who,
directly or indirectly, is the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding
shares or who has a voting power, voting trust or any similar agreement with respeci 10
shares comprising more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding common sfock. Other than

Strongoak,

Inc., the Company is not informed of any other participants under the PCD

Nominee account who own more than 5% of the voting securities of the Company as of
March 31, 2018. ' :

SEC Form 17-15 6
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Security ownership of Directors, Officers and Management

Securjty Owner;hig of Directors and Officers

To the best knowledge of the Company, the beneficial ownership of the Company's directors
and officers as of March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Title of Name of Amount and Citizenship | Percentage '
Class Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
Beneficial
Ownership
Antonio C. Pacis 400 .
Common Chairman (Direct) Filipino 0.00%
George E. SyCip, 2,314,654 -
Common Vice Chairman (Direct) American 0.09%
: Raymond K.H. See,
Common | Director, President 15,521 Filipino 0.00%
and CEQ (Direct)
Common | Marie Grace T. Vera 400 Filipino 0.00%
Cruz, (Direct)
Direcior
Erwin M. Elechicon, 200 _ 0
Common Independent Director {Direct) Filipino 0.00%
Joseph Peter Y.
Common | Roxas 2(%1;&20 Filipino 0.08%
Diractor '
Dobbin A. Tan .y
Common " 10,000 Filipino 0.00%
Independent Director (Director) |
Barbara Anne C.
Common | Migallos 0 Filipino 0.00%
Corporate Secretary
Lisa Angela Y.
Dejadina
Senior Vice President - e
Common Business Development 0 Fifipino 0.00%
and Operational
Excellence
Ma. Kristina P.
Ambrocio
Vice President - Head .
Common of Legal, Compliance 0 Filipino 0.00%
Officer and Assistant
Corporate Secrefary
TOTAL 4,582,475 0.17%
SEC Form 17-18 7
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Voting Trust Holders/Changes in Control

The Company has no knowledge of any voting trust holders of 5% or more of the Company’s
stock, or of any amangements that may resultin a change of conirol of the Company.

The Company conducted a stock rights offering in 2015 consisting of 1,000,000,000
common shares at a price of P1.00 per share by way of pre-emptive rights offering
exclusively to shareholders of the Company as of August 7, 2015, at the proportion of one
stock rights share for every one and one-half common shares of the Company. The stock
rights offering resulted in a change of control of the Company.

Strongoak, Inc. (“Strongoak”), which previously owned 430,266,226 shares, equivalent {0
28.69% of the outstanding capital stock prior to the stock rights offering, subscribed to an
additional 952,479,638 common shares under the said siock rights offering for a fotal
subscription price of P952,479,638.00. Strongoak now owns 1,382,765,864 shares,
equivalent to 55.32% of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. Prior to the stock

rights offering, no single shareholder had control of or more than 50% of the voling power in
the Company.

item 5.  Directors and Executive Officers

The names of the incumbent directors of the Company, their respective ages, citizenship,
period of service, directorships in other companies and positions held for the last five (5)
years are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Director Nationality Position Age Period of
Service
{as of March
31, 2018)

Antonio C. Pacis Filipino Chairman 77 3 years and 3
months
(First elected on
December 8,
2014)

George E. American Vice Chairman 61 13 years and 1
SyCip month
(First elected on
February 12,
~2005)

Raymond K. H. Filipino Director, 50 3 years and 3
See President, and months
CEO {First elected on
December 8,
2014)

Erwin M. Filipino Independent 58 J years and 8
Elechicon Director months

(First elected on
June 16, 2014)

SEC Form 1745 ) 8
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Marie Grace T.
Vera Cruz

Filipino

Director

37

3years and D
months
(First elected on
June 16, 2014)

Joseph Peter Y.
Roxas

Filipino

Director

56

2 years and 1
month
(First elected on
March 1, 2016)

Dobbin A. Tan

Filipino

Independent
Director

54

2 years and 1
month
(First elected on
March 1, 2016)

ANTONIO C. PACIS - 77, Filipino citizen; Chairman of the Board

Mr. Pacis obtained his law degree from the Ateneo Law School in 1965
and his masteral law degree from the Harvard Law School in 1967.

He is on the Board of Directors of publicly listed ‘company BDO Unibank,
Inc., OCLP Holdings Inc., Paluwagan Ng Bayan Savings Bank,
Armstrong Pacific Co., Inc., Legisforum, Inc., Technology Investment
Co., Inc. and Ceniral Colleges of The Philippines.

He is Chairman of the Board of Directors at Asian Silver Estate, Inc.,
Intemational Sociat Service Philippines, Inc., Amigo Holdings, inc., Asian
Wateriront Holdings, Inc., Mantle Holdings, inc., and Corporate Secretary
for Armstrong Securities, Inc., EBC Strategic Holdings Corp., and
Paluwagan Ng Bayan Savings Bank.

Mr. Pacis has been practicing law since 1965 and continues fo practice at
Pacis and Reyes Law Office and was a professor of law at the Ateneo
Law School.

GEORGE E. SYCIP - 61, American citizen; Vice-Chairman

Mr. Sycip received his BA ‘With Distinction’ in Intemational
Relations/Economics from Stanford University and his Master in Business
Administration Degree from the Harvard Business School

Mr. Sycip is the Director and Principal of Galaxaco China Group, a
project doing business in China, and Halanna Management estate
investment and development and consultancy firm serving American,
European and Asian clients’ estate investment and development
company. Mr. Sycip currently serves on the Boards or Advisory Boards of
several companies and institutions. In Asia, these include Macro Asia
Corp., Beneficial-PNB Life Insurance, Medtecs Corporation, and Cityland
Development Corporation. In the U.S., he is on the Board of the Bank of
the Orient, Arasor Infemafional, the Califomia Asfa Business Council, the
International Institute for Rural Reconstruction, Give2Asia, and Stanford
University’s Institute for International Studies.

SEC Form 171§ 9
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RAYMOND K. H. SEE - 50, Filipino citizen; Disector, President & CEO

Mr. See graduated from De La Salle University in 1989 with a degree in
B.S. Indusirial Management Engineering, minor in Mechanical
Engineering.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. See was a former executive from
Pilipinas Shelt Petroleum Corporation. He rose from the ranks in his 24
year stay in the said company. Mr. See was the Senior Vice-President for
Operation of the Company before being appointed as President & CEQ
of the Company on December 8, 2014.

MARIE GRACE T. VERA CRUZ - 37, Filipino citizen: Director

Ms. Vera Cruz holds an MBA from London Business School and a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Economics from the University of the
Philippines, where she graduated Magna cum Laude.

Ms. Vera Cruz is the Managing Director of Seawood Resources, Inc., an
investment company based in the Philippines. She is also the President
of Strongoak, inc. Prior to Seawood and Strongoak, Ms. Vera Cruz was a
consultant at McKinsey & Co.

ERWIN M. ELECHICON - 58, Filipino citizen; Independent Director

Mr. Elechicon holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics, cum laude,
from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1979. He attended courses in
Finance at the Columbia Business School; and in Marketing at Kellogg
Schoo! of Management.

Mr. Elechicon was with the Procter & Gamble Company (P&G) for over
26 years. He has had local and regional responsibilities at P&G across
Asia, and has lived in Singapore, Mumbai, Kuala Lumpur and Ho Chi
Minh City as well as Manila. He was also President and General Manager
of two Jollibee Foods Corporation subsidiaries, Greenwich Pizza
Company and Chowking. He is Chairman and co-founder of Assurant
BPC Solutions, Inc., a Makati-based company providing business and
knowledge process outsourcing and managed senvices solutions to a
broad range of clients. He is also a director of U-Bix Corporation, one of
the largest integrated office systems and service providers in the
Philippines. He was Director of Petronas Dagangan Berhad, Malaysia

JOSEPH PETER Y. ROXAS - 58, Filipino citizen; Director

Mr. Roxas graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1983 with a
Bachelor's degree in Economics. He also has MBA units from the Ateneo
de Manita University Graduate School.

Mr. Roxas is President of Eagle Equities, Inc. since 1996. He is also
presently a Director of DFNN, Inc., a listed company in the Philippine
Stock Exchange, and of Kimgquan Trading Corporation, a privately held
company. He is also a Director of the Association of Securities Analysis

SEC Form 17-18 10
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of the Philippines since 2000. Mr. Roxas was with R. Coyuito Securities
as Assistant Vice President for Research from 1993 to 1995, and
Investment Officer from 1987 to 1992.

DOBBIN A. TAN - 54, Filipino citizen:; Independent Director

Mr. Tan graduated from the Ateneo de Manita University in 1985 with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Management Engineering. He obtained his
Master's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Chicago, Booth School of Business in 2013. Mr. Tan aiso attended a
Management Development Program of the Asian Insfitute of
Management in 1990, and a Strategic Business Economics Program of
the University of Asia and the Pacific in 2001.

Mr. Tan is presently Chief Executive Officer of New Sumlife Ventures, Inc.
He was Managing Director and Chief Operating Officer of Information
Gateway from 2002 to 2012. Mr. Tan also served as Vice President for
Marketing of Dutch Boy Philippines from 2000 to 2002, President of
Informatics Computer College from 1997 to 2000, Assistant Vice
President for Marketing of Basic Holdings from 1994 to 1997, Operations
Manager of DC Restaurant Management Systems from 1990 to 1994,
and Senior Financial Analyst/ Corporate Planning Manager for San
Miguel Corporation frorn 1985 to 1990.

Process and Criterla for Selection of Nominees for Directors

The Board of Directors set May 2, 2018 as the deadline for the submission of nominations to
the Board of Directors. The deadline was duly announced and disclosed on April 17, 2018.

The Nominations Committee composed of Mr. Raymond K.H. See, Mr. Erwin M. Elechicon
and Mr. Joseph Peter Y. Roxas screened the nominees for election to the Board of Directors
in accordance with the Company's Revised Manual on Comporate Govemnance. The
Committee assessed the candidates’ background, educational qualifications, work

experience, expertise and stature as would enable them to effectively participate in the
deliberations of the Board.

In the case of the independent directors, the Commitiee reviewed their business
relationships and activities to ensure that they have alt the qualifications and none of the
tisqualifications for independent directors as set forth in the Company's Manual of
Corporate Govemance, the Securities Reguiation Code ("SRC"), and the SRC Implementing
Rules and Regulations.

Nominees for Election at Annual General Meeting of Stockholders on June 28, 2017

. The Nominations Committee screened the nominees to determine whether they have all of
the qualifications and none of the disqualifications for election to the Company's Board of
Directors, and prepared the Final List of Candidates for election to the Board of Directors at
the Annual Stockholders’ meeting.

The Final List of Candidates is as follows:
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Nominees for Reqular Di'rector

Antonio C. Pacis

Marie Grace T. Vera Cruz
Raymond K.H. See
Joseph Peter Y. Roxas
Gabriel A, Dee

GRrwN=

Nominees for Independent Directors

1. Erwin M. Elechicon
2. Dobbin A. Tan

All nominees with the exception of Mr. Gabriel A. Dee are incumbent directors. The
qualifications of the incumbent directors are on Pages 9 to 11 of this Information Statement.
The Certificates of Qualification of independent Directors Messrs. Erwin M. Elechicon and
Dobbin A. Tan will be submitted with the Definitive information Staterent.

The qualifications and background information of Mr. Gabriel A. Dee is as follows:

GABRIEL A. DEE. - 53, Filipino citizen; Nominee for Director.
Academic Background

Mr. Dee graduated from the University of the Philippines in 1984 with a
Bachelor's degree in History, and obtained his law degree in 1988 from
the same university. Mr. Dee also has MBA units from the Ateneo de
Manila Graduate Schoot of Business.

Professional Background/ Experience

Mr. Dee has been practicing law since 1988, and has been Senior
~ Partner of Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & Santos Law Offices since 2006. Mr.
Dee is also Director and Corporate Secretary of various corporafions,
including listed company including listed companies MJC Investments
Corporation (Director) and Macay Holdings, Inc. (Corporate Secretary).
Mr. Dee is also a professorial lecturer on Corporation Law for the
University of the Philippines College of Law and Lyceum College of Law,
and has been a resource person/ speaker on various seminars on the
-topics of initial public offerings, listings and estate planning.

As of the date of filing of this Information Statement, no director has resigned or declined to
stand for re-election to the Board of Directors due to disagreement on any matter.
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Executive Officers

The 'following persons are the present executive officers of the Company:

Name of Officer Nationality Position Age Period of
Service
3yearsand 3
| President and Chief months
Raymond K H. See Filiping : 50 (First elected
Executive Officer on December
8, 2014)
3year8
months
Eﬂ?g;gﬁ;as Anne C. Filipino | Corporate Secretary 63 (First elected
on July 6,
2015)
3years and 4
Senior Vice President - months
Lisa Angela Y. Filipino Business Development 35 (First elected
Dejadina and Operational on
Excellence 17 November
2014)
Vice President — Legal, 2 yt:?orsnta:d S
m'b'f:;g"a P. Filipino E:s"l‘s"t"a'fl;‘%eog’fg‘; and 38 | (First elected
Secretary on Cctober
19, 2015)

RAYMOND K.H. SEE - 50, Filipino t:itiien; President & CEQ.
Academic Background

Mr. See graduated from De La Salle University in 1989 with a degree in

B.S. Industrial
Engineering.

Professional Background/ Experience

Management Engineering, minor

in Mechanical

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. See was a former executive from
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation who rose from the ranks in his 24
year stay in the said company. Mr. See was the Senior Vice-President for
Operation of the Company before being appointed as President and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company on December 8, 2014.

BARBARA ANNE C. MIGALLOS - 63, Filipino ciizen; Corporate

Secretary.

Ms. Migalios graduated cum laude from the University of the Philippines,
with a Bachelor of Arts degree, and finished her Bachelor of Laws degree
as cum laude (salutatorian) also at the University of the Philippines. She

placed third in the 1979 Philippine Bar Examination.
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Ms. Migalios was slected as Corporate Secretary of the Company on July
6, 2015. She is Director and Corporate Secretary of Philex Mining
Corporation, Corporate Secretary of Philex Petroleum Corporation, and
Corporate Secretary of Nickel Asia Corporation and Silangan Mindanao
Mining Co., Inc. She is the Managing Partner of the Migallos & Luna Law
Offices. Ms. Migallos is also a Director of Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation and
Philippine Resins Industries, and Corporate Secretary of Eastem
Telecommunications Philippines, Inc. She is a professorial lecturer in
Corporations Law, Insurance, Securities Regulation and Credit
Transactions at the De La Salle University College of Law, where she
heads the Mercantile and Taxation Law Department. She was a Senior
Partner of Roco Kapunan Migallos and Luna Law Offices from 1988 to
2008.

LISA ANGELA Y, DEJADINA. — 35, Filipino ciizen: Senior Vice
President for Business Development and Operational Excellence.

Academic Background

Ms. Dejadina has a degree in B.S. Industriat Engineering from the
University of the Philippines where she graduated in 2005.

Professional Background/ Experience

Before joining the Company, Ms. Dejadina worked at Pilipinas Shefl
Petroleum Corporation where she covered various roles contributing to
ten years solid work experience in the petroleum industry in the areas of
fuel depot operations, Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE)
management, and business support functions (business development,
logistics, and leaming & development).

MA. KRISTINA P. AMBROCIO. - 39, Filipino citizen: Vice President —
Legal, Compliance Officer, and Assistant Corporate Secretary.

Academic Background

Ms. Ambrocio graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 2001
with @ major in Philosophy, and minor in Humanities. She obtained her
law degree in 2005 from the University of the Philippines.

Professionail Background/ Experience

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ambrocio was Corporate Counsel and
Assistant Corporate Secretary of Chevron Philippines, Inc.

Significant Employees

No single person is expected to make a significant contribution to the business since the
Company considers the collective efforts of all its employees as instrumental to the overall
success of the Company’s performance.
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Family Relationships

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or
affinity among any of the directors, executive officers and persons nominated or chosen fo
become directors or executive officers.

involvement in Certain L egal Proceedings

None of the directors, nominees for election as a director, executive officers or control
persons of the Company have been involved in any legal proceeding, including without
limitation being the subject of any:

a. bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a
general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two
(2) years prior fo that time;

b. conviction by final judgment, including the nature of the offense, in a criminal
proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

c. order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of
any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, pemmanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of
business, securities commodities or banking activities; and

d. order or judgment of a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civit
action), the Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign
Exchange or other organized trading market or self-regulatory organization finding
him/her to have violated a securities or commodities law or regulation,

for the past five (5) years up to date of this Preliminary information Statement, that is
material to the evaluation of ability or integrity to hold the relevant positions in the Company.

The pending and material legal proceedings invoiving the Company, and the directors,
executive officers or control persons of the Company in their respective capacities as such,
ahd the nominees for election as a director, are as follows:

1. Harvest All Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited, and Bondeast Private
Limited represented by Chiew Chee Chong vs. Annsley B. Bangkas and George E.
Sycip, NPS Docket No. XVI-INV-15B-00033 (XV-14-INV-14B-00503-OCP-Pasig City);
and Harvest All Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited, and Bondeast Private
Limited represented by Chiew Chee Chong vs. George E. Sycip, Alvin Y. Dee,
Jonathan Y. Dee, and Ibarra A. Malonzo, NPS Docket No. XVI-INV-15B-00034 (XV-14-
INV-14C-00974-OCP-Paslg City)

Consolidated Criminal Case Nos. M-PSG-18-00148-CR and M-P2G-18-001 4S-CR
(MeTC Br. 72, Pasig City)

On February 13, 2014, shareholders Harvest All Invesiment Limited, Victory Fund Limited,
and Bondeast Private Limited (“Harvest All et al") filed a criminal complaint with the Office of
the City Prosecutor of Pasig City against the Company’s then Chairman, and current Vice
Chairman, Mr. George E. Sycip, and then Assistant Corporate Secretary Annsley B.
Bangkas for allegedly denying its right to inspect company records in violation of the
pertinent provisions of the Corporation Code. Harvest All et al filed the complaint despite
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being informed that its request to inspect company records was not being doniod, ond that
action thereon was merely being deferred until the Board has determined the propriety of
allowing the inspecfion. o

On March 11, 2014, Harvest All et al filed another complaint with the Office of the Pasig City
Prosecutor, this time against Mr. Sycip and then Director, and current Chairman, Mr.
Jonathan Y. Dee, and then Directors Messrs. Alvin Dee and Ibarra A. Malonzo again for
alleged violations of the Corporate Code provisions on the right to inspect company records.
The complaint was filed despite a resolution by the Board fo refer the matter to independent
counsel to determine whether the request was made in good faith and for a legitimate
purpose consistent with the applicable provisions of the Corporation Code.

The said complaints were consolidated and transferred to the Department of Justice —-
Manila ("DOJ"). In a Resolution dated July 28, 2015, the DOJ dismissed the consolidated
complaints. The DOJ held that Messrs. Sycip, Alvin and Jonathan Dee, and Malonzo, and
Ms. Bangkas did not deny Harvest All et al's request to inspect company records. The DOJ
further held that the delays in acting on the request were reasonable and not unlawfui, and
that the referral of the matter to independent counsel was not tantamount fo a denial of the
request to inspect company records. On September 1, 2015, Harvest All et al. filed a Motion
for Reconsideration which was subsequently denied. Harvest Al et al. then filed a Petition
for Review dated August 30, 2016 before the Department of Justice.

In a Resolution dated December 4, 2017, finding probable cause to indict the respondents
for the crime of violation of Sections 74 and 75, in relation to Sec. 144 of the Corporation
Code and directing the Prosecutor General to file the Informations.

On January 11, 2018, Informations for the 1st and 2nd inspection cases were filed before
the MTC of Pasig and were raffied to MTC Br. 72.

On January 19, 2018, Respondent Sycip filed a Manifestation to ask the judge to make a
judicial determination of probable cause.

MTC 72 issued an Order dated February 23, 2018 consolidating the 1st and 2nd inspections
criminal cases, and ruled that there is sufficient probable cause for the issuance of warrants
of arrest against the accused. Accused Jonathan Y. Dee, Alvin Y. Dee, and Ansley Bangkas
fled a motion for reconsiderafion to the Order dated February 23, 2018 of the MTC. The
said motions are pending resolution.

2, Alliance Select Foods Intemational, inc., represented in this derivative suit by
Harvest All Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited, Bondeast Private Limited, and
Hedy S.C. Chua v. George E. Sycip, Jonathan Y. Dee, Aivin Y. Dee, Ibarra A. Malonzo,
Joanna Y. Dee-Laurel, Teresita Ladanga, and Grace Dogillo.

Commercial Case No. 14-220
(RTC Br. 154, Pasig City)

On May 27, 2014, shareholders Harvest All Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited,
Bondeast Private Limited, and Hedy S.C. Chua filed a derivative suit purportedly on behalf
of the Company against the Company's director, Mr. (George E. Sycip, and its former
directors Messrs. Jonathan Dee, Alvin Y. Dee and !barra Malonzo, and certain senior
execulives of the Company at that time. The derivative suit prayed, among others, for the
appointment of an interim management committee, and to compel an accounting and retum
of Company funds allegedly diverted to corporations conirofled by the family of respondents
Messrs. Jonathan and Alvin Dee. On 03 February 2015, the respondents filed a motion
praying to declare the application of an interim management committee moot and academic
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in view of the change in the composition of the Company's Board of Direclors and
management. The Complainants filed a Mation to Inhibit on February 28, 2015, which was
granted by the Pasig RTC Branch 159 on January 5, 2016. The case was eventually re-
rafiled to Pasig RTC Branch 154 on February 1, 2016. Several motions were filed in this
case and are all still pending resolution by the said Pasig RTC.

Mr. Sycip filed a Petition for Certiorari before the Court of Appeals contending that RTC
Branch 159 committed grave abuse of discretion in inhibiting from the case. in its Decision
dated April 7, 2017, the Court of Appeals granted Mr. Sycip’s Petition for Certiorari and
setting aside the inhibition of Judge Lingan of RTC 159 and directing the latter to proceed
with the hearing of the case. Complainants Hedy Yap Chua et al., filed a Motion for
Reconsideration on the Decision of the Court of Appeals dated April 7, 2017. Mr. Sycip filed
his Opposition to the said motion for reconsideration. The Motion for Reconsideration is sfill
pending resolution. :

3. Hedy 8.C. Yap-Chua and Albert Hong Hin Kay v. George E. Sycip, Jonathan Y.
Dee, Ibarra A. Malonzo, and Avelino M. Sebastian, Jr.

Commercial Case No. 14-219
(RTC Br. 161, Pasig City)

On May 12, 2014, Ms. Hedy S.C. Yap-Chua and Mr. Albert Hong Hin Kay filed a Petition for
the Declaration of Nullity of Board Resolutions and Inspection of the Corporate Books and !
Records, with Prayer for Issuance of a Temporary Restraining Order and/for Writ of
Preliminary Injunction with the Regional Trial Court of Pasig City (Pasig RTC) against the °
Company’s director, Mr. George E. Sycip and former direciors Messrs. Jonaihan Y. Dee,
Alvin Y. Dee and Ibarra A. Malonzo, and then Corporate Secretary, Mr. Avelino M. '
Sebastian. Ms. Yap-Chua and Mr. Hong sought to nullidy, among others, the resolution of
the Board dated May 5, 2014 approving the private placement of Strongoak, inc. of -
P563,679,956 into the Company, and the issuance of 430,286,226 of the Company’s
common shares to Strongoak, Inc. pursuant thereto.

The Company moved to intervene in this case. The RTC Pasig denied such intervention.
The Company appealed to the Court of Appeals via a Petition for Review dated July 25,
2014. This was docketed as CA G.R. No. 136402.

On May 23, 2014, the judge issued an order stating that “After a careful consideration of the
allegations in the Petition with Prayer for Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) and/or Writ of
Preliminary injunction, this Court finds that the prayer for the TRO does not appear to be of
extreme urgency; hence, the same is hereby BYPASSED." The Petition remains pending
before the Pasig RTC.

The Complainants filed a Motion for Inhibition, which was granted by Pasig RTC Branch.:
159. The case was eventually re-raffled to Pasig RTC Branch 161 on March 21, 2016.°
where it remains pending as of date. '

On March 29, 2016, the Company received the CA Decision dated March 14, 2018, granting
the Company’s Pefition to Intervene in the case. Ms. Yap-Chua et al. filed a motion for
reconsideration of the said Decision but was subsequently denied. On February 2, 2017, the
Company received a copy of the Petition for Review on Certiorari of Hedy Yap-Chua et al.
with the Supreme Court. (SC G.R. No. 226182 [CA-GR. SP No. 136402]). Registrant has
not received notice on whether the Supreme Court has acted on said Petition.
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In view of Ms. Yap-Chua, et al.’s Petition before the Supreme Court, the Compeny filed a
motion to suspend the proceedings with the Pasig RTC unfil the Peition is resolved. This
incident is still pending before the Pasig RTC.

In an Order, dated August 18, 2017, RTC Pasig set the case for hearing for the affirmative
defenses of Respondents Jonathan Dee, and Alvin Dee. In response to this order of RTC
Pasig, Pefitioners Ms. Yap-Chua, et al., filed an Urgent Motion to Suspend Proceedings on
Respondents Sycip and Dees’ Affirnative Defenses, dated September 12, 2017.

in an Order dated February 12, 2018, RTC Pasig granted the Urgent Mation to Suspend

Proceedings because of the pendency of Ms. Yap-Chua, et al’s Petiton before the
Supreme Court.

4, Hedy S.C. Yap-Chua v. Jonathan Y. Dee, Marie Grace T. Vera Cruz, George E.
Syclp, Antonio C. Pacis and Raymond K.H. See.

I.S. No. XVI-INV-15B00053

On February 24, 2015, Ms. Hedy S.C. Yap-Chua filed a Complaint-Affidavit with the
Department of Justice (“DOJ”) against incumbent Directors George E. Sycip, Marie Grace T.
Vera Cruz, Raymond K.H. See and Antonio C. Pacis, and former director Mr. Jonathan Y,
Dee (“Respondent Directors”} for alleged violations of the Corporate Code provisions on the
right to inspect company records. The Board approved Ms. Yap-Chua's request to inspect
company records, subject to a procedure to ensure an orderly inspection and that
proprietary information does not become public. However, the respective lawyers of the
Company and Ms. Yap-Chua could not come to an agreement on the said procedure for
inspection.

At the special meeting of the Board on September 17, 2014 calied at the request of Ms.
Yap-Chua and specifically to discuss the matter, the Board, by the vote of the Respondent
Directors, resolved to direct the lawyers of the Company and of Ms, Yap-Chua to meet face-
to-face to resolve their differences regarding said procedure. Ms. Yap-Chua alleged in her
Complaint-Affidavit that the procedure proposed by the Company, and the referral of the
matter to the lawyers, was tantamount to a denial of her right to inspect company records.

- The Respondent Directors received a copy of Ms. Yap-Chua's Complaint-Affidavit from the
DOJ on June 9, 2015, and have filed me_ir respective responsive pleadings therato.

Complainants has since filed a Motion to Resolve the main complaint. The Complaint is still
pending resolution before the DOJ.

5. Harvest All Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited, Bondeast Private
Limited, Albert Hong Hin Kay and Hedy S.C. Yap Chua v. Alliance Select Foods
International, Inc., George E. Sycip, Jonathan Y. Dee, Raymund K.H, See, Mary Grace
T. Vera-Cruz, Antonio C. Pacls, and Erwin M. Elechicon and Barbara Anne C. Migallos,
8.C. G.R. No. 224871

Commercial Case No. 15-234
(RTC Br. 1589, Pasig City)

On August 5, 2015, Harvest All Victory Fund Limited, Bondeast Private Limited, Mr. Albert
Hong Hin Kay and Ms. Hedy 5.C. Yap Chua (“Harvest All et al’) filed a Complaint {(with
application for the issuance of Writ of Preliminary Mandatory Injunction and Temporary
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Restraining Order/Writ of Preliminary Injunction) with the Pasig Repional Trial Court {*Pasiy
RTC"), against Alliance Select Foods Intemational, Inc., its Directors Messrs. George E.
Sycip, Jonathan Y. Dee, Raymund K.H, Ses, Mary Grace T. Vera-Cruz, Antonio C. Pacis,
and Erwin M. Elechicon and Barbara Anne C. Migallos (the “Company”) praying, among
others, that the Company be restrained from carrying out its Stock Rights Offering, and that
the Company be compelled 1o hold its Anrnual Stockholders' Meeting prior to the said Stock
Rights Offering. The Stock Rights Offering would raise gross proceeds of P1,
000,000,000.00 to be used for needed capital expenditures, repayment of loans, installation

of a new management information system, and working capital requirements of the
Company.

In a2 Resolution dated August 14, 2015, the Pasig RTC denied the prayer for a Temporary
Restraining Order. The Pasig RTC held that Harvest All et al failed 1o show that it had a
clear and unmistakable right that was or would be violated by the conduct of Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting after the Stock Rights Offering. The Pasig RTC noted that Temporary
Restraining Order is unwarmranted because Harvest Al et al were granted the right to
subscribe to the Stock Rights Offering to prevent the dilution of shareholdings and voting
rights feared by Harvest All et al.

in a Resolution dated 24 August 2015, the Pasig RTC dismissed the Complaint for lack of
jurisdiction over the subject matter of the case due to Harvest All et al's failure fo pay the
correct filing fees (the "“RTC Resolution™).

in the meantime, the offer pericd for the Stock Rights Offering, which commenced on
August 17, 2015, ended on August 26, 2015. On September 7, 2014, the Company’s Board
scheduted the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on November 17, 2015 with record
date on October 20, 2015. The Board of Directors later on decided to reschedule the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting to December 16, 2015.

Harvest All et al filed a Petition for Review with the Court of Appeals to reverse and set
aside the RTC Resolution dismissing the Complaint. It also prayed that the Company be
restrained from implementing the October 20, 2015 record date of the Annuai Stockholders’
Meeting, and to compel the Company to set the record date of the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting to a date prior to the Stock Rights Offering.

On 15 December 2015, the Court of Appeals issued a Resolution of even date granting
Harvest All et al.’s prayer for a Temporary Restraining Order (TRO), effective for a period of
60 days from notice, enjoining the parties to maintain and preserve the status quo pending
resolution of the Petition for Review, after Harvest All et al posts the required bond (the
“TRO Resolution”). The Court of Appeals issued the TRO the next day, or on 16 December
2015, the date of the Meeting. The Company received the TRO a few hours before said
Meeting. The Company and the respondent directors and officers filed motions for
reconsideration of the TRO Resolution and fo dissolve the TRO.

The Court of Appeals rendered a Decision dated February 15, 2016 ruling on the merits of
the case in which the TRO was issued. The Court granted the Petition of shareholders
Harvest All Investment Ltd., et al., but sustained the position of the Company that Harvest
All Investment Ltd., et.al, should pay the correct filing fees for its Complaint with the Pasig
RTC. Both parties filed their respective Motions for Reconsideration, and both were
subsequently denied.

Jonathan Dee filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari with the SC to set aside the ruiing of
the CA and affirm the ruling of the Pasig RTC dismissing the case (SC G.R. No. 224834).
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Harvest All et al. on the other hand filed their only Petition for Review on Corliorari with the
SC questioning the ruling of the CA that though the case should not be dismissed because
Harvest All et al. was not in bad faith in not filing the proper filing fee, the latter should pay
the filing fee based on the 2015 SRO, which would amount to approximately Php 20 Million)

The Petitions for Review on Certiorari were consolidated by the SC. On March 15, 2017, the
SC rendered a Decision in favor of the petition of Harvest All, et al., ruling that the intra-
corporate controversies may involve a subject matter which is either capable or incapable of
pecuniary estimation, and remanded the case back to the RTGC to assess the cormrect filing
fees, and upon payment, to proceed with the regular proceedings of the case. The
Regisirant and other respondents filed their respeciive motions for reconsideration of the

Supreme Court Decision arguing, among others, that supervening events have rendsred the
case moot and academic.

in the Resolution dated February 28, 2018 rendered by the SC, the SC danied the motions
for reconsideration filed by the respondents and held that the Pasig RTC is the appropriate
court to determine whether the supervening events alleged by the respondents has
rendered the case moot and academic. Proceedings on the Complaint before the Pasig
RTC resumed on 19 April 2018.

6. Victory Fund Limited, Harvest All Investment Limited, Bondeast Private
Limited and Hedy S.C. Yap Chua vs. Jonathan Y. Dee, Alvin Y. Dee, Joanna Y. Des-
Laurel, George E. Sycip, Tereslta S. Ladanga, Grace S. Dogillo, Arak Ratborihan,
Raymond K.H. See, Marie Grace T. Vera Cruz, Antonio C. Pacis, and John and Jane
Does, NPS Docket No. XVI-INV-16B-01028

The compiainants are shareholders of ASFIl who allege that the respondents improperly
used their investment in the Company to engage in supposedly illegal activities and
transactions. The Complaint also stated that damage and prejudice was caused to the
complainants as a result of respondents’ actions, which included the alleged diminution of
complainants’ property rights due to a supposedly deliberate dilution of the complainants'
shareholdings in ASFIl. The complainants further asserted that their proportionate rights as
shareholders were diminished, such as their entitlement to representation in the Board of
Directors of ASFI.

The complainants submitted a Supplement to the Joint Complaint-Affidavit to include the
supposed damage incurred by the complainants when they were not elected to the Board of
Directors of the Company during the Annual Siockholders Meeting on 01 March 20186.
Preliminary investigation hearings were held on March 22, 2016, March 28, 2016 and April
5, 2016.

Meanwhile, Jonathan Dee, Alvin Dee, Joanna Dee-Laurel, and Tess Ladanga (Perjury
Complainants) filed a complaint for perjury against Yap-Chua.

In a Joint Resolution dated July 12, 2016, the Investigating Prosecutor dismissed the
complaint for syndicated estafa, falsification of public documents and perjury.

Both Syndicated Estafa and Falsification Complainants and Perjury Complainants filed their
respective Petition for Partial Review with the DOJ. The DOJ issued a Joint Resclution
dated March 31, 2017 denying both petitions for partial review, affirming the dismissal of the
complainis.

' The Complainants filed their Partial Motions to Reconsideration before the DOJ.
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In a Joint Resolution dated March 27, 2018, the DOJ, in resolving the Partis! Motions for
Reconsideration filed by the Complainants, granted the motion for partial reconsideration,
affirmed the dismissal of the charges for falsification of public document and syndicated
estafa complaint but found probable cause for estafa against Jonathan Y. Dee, Alvin Y.
Dee, Joanna Dee-Laurel, George Sycip, Teresita Ladanga, Grace Dogillo and Arak
Ratborihan. The DOJ did not find sufficient evidence to support the charges for falsification
of public document and syndicated estafa against Raymond See, Grace Vera Cruz and
Antonio Pacis and affirmed the dismissal of the complaints against these respondents.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company has had no transactions covered under Part IV (D)(1) of Annex “C" of SRC
Rule 12 in the last two (2) years, or those involving the Company or any of its subsidiaries in
which an incumbent director, executive officer or stockholder owning ten percent (10%) or
more of the total outstanding shares of the Company and members of their immediate family
had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest, other than those disclosed below:

a. Effective January 1, 2017, the Company entered into a Consultancy Agreement
with Strongoak, Inc. Currently, Strongoak, Inc. owns 55.32% of the Company.

Note 15 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2017 on
the Company’s related parly transactions are incorporated by reference.

Other than as disclosed above, and as indicated in the Consolidated Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2017, the Company has not entered into any other related party
fransactions, or with parties that fall autside the definition of “related parties” but with whom
the Company or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate
the terms of material transactions that may not be available from other, more clearly
independent parties on an am’s length basis.

tem6.  Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following summarizes the executive compensation received by the CEO and the top
four (4) most highly compensated officers of the Company for 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018 .
It also summarizes the aggregate compensation received by zll the officers and directors,
unnamed.

2015 P 12,998 P 268
Ei‘;ﬁyaggr;';z;‘s’:;e’gm 2016 P 14,865 P 235
officers named above 2017 P 14,865 P 215

2018 # 18,980 P 254
Aggregate 2015 P 19,624 £ 393
compensation paid to alt 2016 P 23,360 P 578
officers and directors as 2017 P 19,417 P 679
a group unnamed 2018 P 23,855 P 755

The following are the Company's top five (5) compensated execulive officers as of
December 31, 2017:
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General Counsel, Asst.
Ma. Kristina P. Ambrocio | Corporate Secretary and
Compliance Officer
Senior Vice President for
Operations

Lisa Angela Y. Dejadina
Christopher Paul M.

Sales Manager

Manese
Edward L. Noma Procurement Manager
Raymond K.H. See President and CEQ

Compensation of Directors

On 21 January 2016, the Company's Board of Directors adopted a policy, effective
immediately, setting directors’ per diems at P10,000 per attendance at Board meetings, and
P5,000 per attendance at Committee meetings.

Under the amended By-Laws, as compensation, the Board shall receive and allocate an
amount of not more than 10 % of the Company’s EBITDA during the preceding year. Such
compensation shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as
the Board may deem proper, subject to the approvai of the sharcholders representing at
least majority of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting of the
shareholders.

Employment Contracts, Tenmination of Employment, Change-in-control arrangements

- Other than the usual employment contracts, there are no existing employment contracts with
executive officers. Furthermore, there are no special refirement plans for executives.

There is also no amangement for compensation to be received from the Company in the
event of a change in control of the Company.

Significant Employees

No single person is expected to make a contribution more significant than others to the
business since the Company considers the collective efforts of all its employees as
instrumental to the overall success of the Company’s performance.

tem7. Independent Public Accountants

The appointment of the Company's independent auditors for the fiscal year 2018 will be
submitted to the shareholders for approval and ratification at the Meeting.

The Audit Committee has recommended, and the Board of Directors has approved, the re-
appointment of the accounting firm of Reyes Tacandong & Co. (Reyes Tacandong) as the
Company’s independent auditors. Reyes Tacandong was first appointed as the Company's
independent auditors in 2015. Mr. Emmanuel V. Clarino is the partner-in-charge of Reyes
Tacandong.

Representatives of Reyes Tacandong will be present at the Meeting, and will have an
opportunity to make a statement, if they desire to do so; and to respond to appropriate
guestions from shareholders. '
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The Company has been advised that fhe Reyes Tacandong auditore assigned to render
audit-related services have no shareholdings in the Company, or a right, whether legally
enforceable or not, to nominate persons or to subscribe to the securities of the Company,
consistent with the professiona! standards on independence set by the Board of
Accountancy and the Professional Regutation Commission.

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by
the Company’s independent auditors for each of the last three (3) fiscal years:

Reguiar Audit 21,280,000 £1,000000| R 1,000,000

Review of proposed equity 600,000
restructuring

Long Form Audit - -
Review of Forecast - -
All Other Fees 128,000 150,000 150,000
Total Audit and Audit-Related | R 2,008,000 R 1,150,000 | R1,150,000

Fees

Tax Fees

There were no tax-related services rendered by the independent auditors other than the
assistance rendered in the preparation of the income tax returns which formed part of the
regular audit engagement.

- Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosures

As stated above, Reyes Tacandong was first appointed to be the Company’s independent
auditors for 2015. Reyes Tacandong succeeded Navarro Amper & Co. {Navarro Amper),
who was the Company's independent auditors for 10 years prior to 2015. Other than that,
there was no change in the Company's independent accountants during the three most
recent calendar years or in any subsequent interim period.

There has been no disagreement with either Reyes Tacandong or Navarro Amper on
accounting and financial disclosure.

ltem 8. Compensation Plans

No action is to be taken by the shareholders at the Meeting with respect to any plan
pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ltem 9.  Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action is to be taken at the Meeting with respect to the authorization or issuance
of any securities otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.
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ltem 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities
No action is to be faken at the Meeting with respect to the modification of any class of
securities of the Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of
securities of the Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.
tem 11.  Financial and Other Information

As stated above, no action is to be taken at the Meefing with respect to the matters
under Items 9 (Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange) and 10
(Modification or Exchange of Securities).

item12.  Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken at the Meeting with respect fo any fransaction involving the
following:

a) the merger or consolidation of the Company into or with any other person or
of any other person inte or with the Company;

b) the acquisition by the Company or any of its security holders of securities of
another person; :

c) the acquisition by the Company of any other going business or of the assets
thereof;

d) the sale or other transfer of all or any substantial part of the assets of the
Company; or

€) the liquidation or dissolution of the registrant.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken at the Meeting with respect to the acquisition or disposition
of any property,

item 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken ai the Meeting with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital,
or surplus account of the Company.

D. OTHER MATTERS
Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

Action is to be taken on the reading and approval of the following:
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1. Minutes of the Previous Stockholders’ Meeting

The Minutes of the 2017 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 15, 2017 and of the
Special Meeting of Stockholders held on September 7, 2017 are posted on the Company’s
website {(www. http:ﬂallianceselectfoods.comﬂmme!our-companyl), and also availablie for
inspection by stockholders at the principal offices of the Company. Copies thereof will also
be made available upon request at the venue of the Meeting.

The matters taken up during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 15, 2017 are
as follows: (i) reading and approval of the minutes of the 2016 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
held on June 28, 2016; (ii) presentation and approval of the Managemeni Report and
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2016; (iii) ratification and
appraval of the acts of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers; (iv) appointment of
independent external auditors; (v) election of Directors, inciuding Independent Directors.

At the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on September 7, 2017, the stockholders fook
up the amendment of Article Seventh of the Company's Articles of Incorporation to reduce
the par value of common shares of the Company from One Peso (P1.00) per share to Fifty
Centavos (P0.50) per share, and to decrease the authorized capital stock of the Company
from Three Billion Pesos (P3,000,000,000.00) divided into Three Billion (3,000,000,000)
common shares with par value of One Peso (P1.00) each to One Billion Five Hundred
Million Pesos (P1,500,000,000.00) divided into Three Bilion {3,000,000,000) common
shares with par value of Fifty Centavos (P0.50) each.

The resolution 1o be adopted will be for the approval of the minutes of the 2017 Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 15, 2017, and of the Special Stockholders’ Meeting held
on September 7, 2017. )

2, Management Report

The Company’'s Management Report, which includes the Audited Financial Statements for
2017, wil! be submitted for approval by the stockholders.-A copy of the Management Report
is attached to this information Statement. The 2017 Annual Report under SEC Form 17-A is
available on the Company's website (htip:#allianceselectfoods.com/). The Company's
unaudited interim financial statements for the first quarter of 2018 or the period ended March
31, 2018 on SEC Form 17-Q will be uploaded on the Company’s website at least five (5)
days before Meeting .Upon written request of a shareholder, the Company shall fumish such
shareholder with a copy of the said Annual Report and/or Quarterly Report as filed with the
SEC, free of charge. The contact details for obtaining such copy are on Page 28 of this
Information Statement.

The resolution to be adopted will be the approval of the Management Report and the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended De_'cember 31, 2017.

ltem 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted
There are no matters or actions to be taken up at the Meeting that will not require the vote of
the stockholders as of the record date.
item 17." Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

No action is o be taken at the Meeting with respect to any amendment of the Company's
charter, by-laws or other documents.
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ltem 18. Other Proposed Action

Action is to be faken on the ratification and approval of the acts of the Board of Directors
and executive officers.

1. Acts of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers

All acts, contracts, proceedings, elections and appointments made or taken by the Board of
Directors and/or the officers of the Company during the past corporate year will be
submitted for ratification and approval of shareholders. These refer to the actions taken by
the Board of Direcfors at its meetings held on June 15, July 20, August 8, September 7,
November 7, and December 6, 2017, and on March 23, 2018. The acts of officers referred
to are those that implemented the actions taken by the Board. A summary of significant
actions of the Board, as set forth in the Minutes of meetings, is provided below.

At the organizational meeting held on June 15, 2017, the Board of Directors elected the
officers of the Company, and constituted the Board Committees for the remainder of the
corporate year 2016-2017.

At the special meating on July 20, 2017, the Board appointed Mr. Edgardo Cabalde as the
Company’s Chief Finance Officer, Treasurer, and Chief Information Officer.

During the same meeting, the Board of Directors also approved the amendment of Article 7
of the Articles of Incorporation: to reduce the par value of the Company’s common shares
from One Peso (P1.00) per share to Fifty Centavos (P0.50) per share, and to decrease the
Company’s authorized capital stock from Three Billion Pesos (P3,000,000,000.00) divided
into Three Billion (3,000,000,000) common shares with par value of One Peso (P1.00) each
to One Billion Five Hundred Million Pesos (P1,500,000,000.00) divided into Three Billion
(3,000,000,000) common shares with par value of Fifty Centavos (P0.50) each.

Further, the Board of Directors also approved the Management Report and inferim Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended May 31, 2017.

At the regular meeting of the ‘Board of Directors held on August 8, 2017, the Board of
Directors approved the Second Quarter Financial and Performance Report.

At the special meeting of the Company’s Board of the Directors held on September 7, 2017,
the directors appointed Mr. Edgardo Cabalde as the Data Protection Officer of the
Corporation.

At the special meeting of the Board of Directors on November 7, 2017, the directors
approved the Third Quarter Financial and Performance Report of the corporation.

At the meeting held on March 23, 2018, the Board of Directors set the date of the 2018
Annual Stockholders’ Meefing on June 15, 2018 at 2:30 p.m. The deadline for the
submission of proxies was set on June 5, 2018.

item 19. Voting Procedures

Stockholders of record as of Aprit 11, 2018 may vote at the Meeting. Stockholders have the
right to vote in person or by proxy.
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Registration of stockholders and proxies attending the mesting will opan at 1:00 p.m. af
June 15, 2018,

Approval of the matters requiring stockholder action as set forth in the Agenda and in this
Information Statement would require the affirmative vote of stockholders owning at least a
majority of the outstanding voting capital stock.

in the election of directors, cumulative voting may be adopted. On this basis, each
stockholder as of April 11, 2018 may vote the number of shares registered in his name for
each of the directors fo be elected, or he may multiply the number of shares registered in his
name by the number of directors to be elected, and cast the total of such votes for one (1)

. director, or he may distribute his votes among some or all of the directors to be elected. The

nominees with the greatest number of votes will be elected directors. Voting/ balloting for
regular directors will be separate from voting/ batloting for independent directors.

The Company will distribute to shareholders not later than May 24, 2018 the Information
Statement and proxy form. The proxy form contains each item on the Agenda that requires
shareholders to vote “YES”, “NO” or “ABSTAIN". in the case of the election of directors, the
names of each of the nominees are listed in the proxy with space for the shareholder fo
indicate his or her vote for or against each of the nominees.

The voting at the Stockholders’ Meeting will be by balloting. Shareholders who are present
and did not submit proxies before the meeting will be given ballots upon registration. In the
case of proxies submitted prior to the meefing, the proxy designated by the stockholder to
represent them at today’s meeting will be provided with ballots for casting in accordance
with the stockholders’ instructions, as indicated in the proxy.

Ballots will be tabulated by an independent external auditing firm together with the
Company's stack transfer agent, Securities Transfer Services, Inc. (“STSI"). Results of the
voting by shareholders will be announced for each item on the Agenda requiring the vote of
shareholders. The tabulation and resuits of the voting shali be duly disclosed and shalt be
made available on the Company's website on the business day folfowing the meeting.

This vating procedure shall also be announced at the start of the meeling.

PART l.

PLEASE SEE SEPARATE PROXY FORM
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PART I,

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the
information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City

of Makati on May 7, 2018.

By:

S s

Cormorate Sel .mtary

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF THE STOCKHOLDER, THE COMPANY
UNDERTAKES TO FURNISH SAID STOCKHOLDER A PRINTED COPY OF THE
COMPANY’S ANNUAL REPORT ON SEC FORM 17-A, AS FILED WITH THE SEC FREE
OF CHARGE. ANY WRITTEN REQUEST SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO:

ATTY. BARBARA ANNE C. MIGALLOS
Corporate Secretary
Unit 1206, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605

G2234 AGFIL Prefminary 15 Al (TWMAY18) appte
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PART Il

PLEASE FiLL UP AND SIGN THIS PROXY AND RETURN IMMEDIATELY TO THE CORPORATE SECRETARY.
ARETURN ENVELOPE 1S PROVIDED FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE.

PROXY FORM

Tha undersigneq stockholder of ALLIANCE SELECT FQODS INTERNATIONAL., INC. (the "Company™ hereby appoints MR.
RAYMOND K. H. SEE orin his al_:senue. the CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING, as attomey and proxy, with power of substitution, to reprasent
and vole all shares registersd in histher name as proxy of the undersigned stockholder, at the 2018 Annual General Msesting of

Stockholders of the Company fo be held ont June 15, 2018 at 2:30 P-m., and &t any of the edjoumments thereof for the puipose of acting
on the following metters:

: - 8. Elaction of Directors

1. Approval of minutes of the Annual General Meeting of

Stockholders held on June 15, 2017, and the Spacial Meeting Vole for nominees listed below:
of Stockholders held on September 7, 2017

. _ Regular Directors:
[ ves . Clne (] Abstain 1. O Marie Grace T. Vers Cruz
2. [ Raymond K.H. See
2, Approval of the Annual Report and Audited Financlal 3. O Antenio C. Pacis
Statements for 2017 4, [ Joseph Peter Y, Roxas
Clves CIne ] Abstain 5. 0O Gabriel A. Dee
indepandent Directors:
3. Ratification and approva! of the acls of the Board of : 1. [ Eywin M. Elechicon
Directors and executive officars for the corporate 2. 0 Dobbin A. Tan
year 2017-2018 i 1
] Withhold authority for all nominees
Cves [Onoe [ abstain . listed abovs
[ withhvotd authorfty to vote for the
4. Appointment of Reyas Tacandong & Co. as nominees listed below:
independent auditors

[ ves [ ne ] Abstain

7. At their discretion, the proxles named above are authorized to
vote upon such other matters as may properly come before the
meeting.

DATE PRINTED NAME OF STOCKHOLDER

SIGNATURE OF STOCKHOLDER AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY

THIS FROXY SOLICITATION I3 MADE BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY. THIS PROXY SHOULD HE RECEIVED BY THE OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT
CORFORATE SECRETARY ON OR EEFORE JUNE 8, 2018, THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF PROAIES.

THIS FROXY, WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED, WILL BE VOTED N THE MANNER AS DIREGTED HEREIN BY THE STOCKHOLDER(S). IF NO DIRECTION IS MADE,
THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED BY THE PROXY HEREIN DESIGNATED FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE MATTERS STATED ABOVE, AND FOR THE ELECTION OF
NOMINEES FOR DIRECTORS AT HIS DISCRETION,

UNDER OATH STATING THAT THE BROKER HAS QBTAINED THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE ACCOUNT HOLDER, FORMS OF THE GERTIFICATION MAY BE
REQUESTED FROM THE OFFICE OF SECURITIES TRANSFER SERVICES, INC, {TEL NO. [02]-449615T)

A STOCKHOLDER GIVING A PROXY HAS THE POWER TO REVOKE IT AT ANY TIME BEFORE THE RIGHT GRANTED IS EXERCISED. A PROXY IS ALSO
CONSIDERED REVOKED IF THE STOCKHOLDER ATTENDS THE MEETING IN PERSON AND EXPRESSES HIS INTENTION TO VOTE IN PERSON. THIS PROXY
SHALL BE VALID FOR FiVE (5) YEARS FROM THE DATE HEREQF UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED IN THE BOX HEREIN PROVIQED:

This solicilation Is primarily by, mail; however, Incidental parsonal solicitation may also be made by the officars, directors and regular amployeas of the
Company whose number is not expected to exceed fiteen and who receive no additional compensatlen thersfor. The Company bears the cost,
estimated not to exceed P3 million, of preparing and matling this proaxy form and other materizls fumished fo stackholders in connection with this
proxy solicitation and the expenses of brokers who may mail such matesials to their customars,

No director or executive officar, nomines for election ae director, or associate of such director, executive officer ar nominee, of the Company, at any
time since the beginning of the last fiscal year, has any substantial intarest, direct or indlrect, by securfty holdings ar otharwise, in any of the matters to
be acted upan in the Meeting, other than afection to ofice,



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKAT! CITY )S.S.

CERTIFICATION

|, BARBARA ANNE C. MIGALLOS, of legal age, Filipino, and with office
address at 7" Floor, The PHINMA Plaza, 39 Plaza Diive, Rockwell Center, Makati
City, hereby depose and state under oath that:

1. | am the Corporate Secretary of ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS
INTERNATIONAL, INC. (the “Company”), a corporation duly organized and existing
under Philippine law, with principal office address at Unit 1206, East Tower,
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila.

2. I hereby certify that the following incumbent Directors and/or nominees
for election as Director of the Company are not connected with any government
agency or instrumentality:

a) Mr. Antonio C. Pacis

b) Mr. Raymond K. H. See

c) Ms. Marie Grace T. Vera Cruz

d) Mr. Erwin M. Elechicon (Independent Director)
e) Mr. Dobbin A. Tan (Independent Director)

f) Mr. Joseph Peter Y. Roxas

g) Mr. Gabriel A. Dee

BA S
Corporate Sedfetary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 71" day of May 2018, affiant
exhibiting to me her Community Tax Certificate No. 25010154 issued on 5 January
2017 at Makati City, and her Passport No. EC0356963 issued on 20 February 2014
at DFA Manifa, expiring on 19 February 2019 bearing her photograph and signature,
in accordance with Rule H, Section 12 and Rule IV Section 2 (b} of the 2004 Rules
on Notarial Practice.

Doc. Mo.: £00 .
Page No.:
Book No.: JiI. fos
eries of 2018. NOTARY PUBIE FOR 24D N THE GITY OF MAKATI
S of 2018 APPONTRERT JO, M417 (2017-2018)
COMMISHION £0% ON DECEMBER 21, 2018
: T Floor, ThabPHihia Plaza, 39 p!%?onm
Carifetion Mirecinm : Papearoil Cantes, Makali Gty
e e PIH o, 6615276 Makall City; 1/4/2018
P DR No. 020918; Daveg Gy, 1412018
TH £00-038-433
Attomay's Roll Mo, 64506, APRIL 2015
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
_———_—_— e VRTINS, BTN,
MANAGEMENT REPORT

. Consolidated Audited Financial Statements
== Aldited Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of Alliance Select Foods Intemational, Inc. (the
“‘Company™) and its subsidiaries for the period ended Dscember 31, 2017 in compliance with -
SRC Rule 68, as amended, are attached to the Inforration Statement and are incorporated
by reference. Capies of the said financial statements are also uploaded on the Company’s
website {http:ﬂallianceselectfoods.coml). :

The Company's unaudited interim financiat statements for the first quarter of 2018 or the
period ended March 31, 2018 on SEC Form 17-Q will be uploaded on the Company’s
website at least five (5) days before the Company's 2017 Annual General Meeting of the

Stockholders to be held on June 15, 2018, : '

. Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Reyes Tacandong & Co. was appointed as the external auditor of the Company for the year
2017. There were no disagreements with the Company’s independent extemal auditors,
Reyes Tacandong & Co regarding the financia! statements of the Company for the year
2016.

) M.  The Company

Alliance Select Foods Intemational, inc. is a public corporation under Section 17.2 of the
Securities Regulation Code (SRC) and was registered in the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Comrnission (SEC) on September 1, 2003 as Alliance Tuna international, Inc. It
started commercial operations in 2004 to engage in tuna processing, canning, and the
export of canned tuna products in General Santos City, Mindanao, Philippines. On
November 8, 2006, the Company's shares were listed on the PSE through an initial public
offering. The name of the Company was changed fo Alliance Select Foods International, inc.
on July 22, 2010 to reflect the Company's plan to diversify its product line and take
advantage of its manufacturing expertise and global marketing channels to introduce new
_products.

The Company's key business activity is the processing, canning, and export of canned tuna.
It exports its canned tuna products to Europe, North America, Asia, Africa, Middle East, and
South America. It is primarily a “private label manufacturer” that processes tuna in
institutional and retail packs.

7 T
p——_

The following table presents the Company’s rnajor corporate milestones from the date of
incorporation up to present:

Date Milestone
September 2003 | Incorporated as Alliance Tuna international, Inc.

May 2004 Opened a representative office in Bangkok, Thailand,

September 2005 | Acquired 40.00% stake in FDCP, inc. (‘FDCP™, a tin can producing
company in General Santos City, Mindanao, Philippines.




November 2006

Listad on the PSE.

May 2008 Established PT International Alliance Foods indonesia (“PT IAFI") in
indonesia.

January 2009 Acquired 39.00% stake in Prime Foods New Zealand, Lid. ("PFNZ")
-in January and increased to 50.00% stake plus one (1) share in
December 2009.

October 2009 Established Big Glory Bay Salmon & Seafood Company, Inc.
{*BGB") to process salmon in the Philippines.

June 2010 Owned 40.00% stake in Alliance MHI Properiies, Inc. (“AMHI”) with
Mingjing Holdings, Inc. (“MHI") holding 60.00%.

July 2010 Renamed the Company as “Aliiance Select Foods 'international,
Ing.”

April 2011 Established ASFI Choice Foods, Inc. as an investment vehicle in
the USA. This has been dissolved in November 201 5.

July 2011 Undertook its first stock rights offering to raise equity for the
acquisition of Spence & Company Ltd. (“Spence”).

August 2011 Acquired 100.00% stake in Spence, a smoked saimon and seafood
processor based in the US.

May 2012 Set up PT Van De Zee (VDZ'), a subsidiary of PT IAF] in
Indonesia.

September 2012 Acquired six (B) fishing vessels (in addition to one fishing vessel
previously acquired) by virtue of “dacion en pago™.

Cctober 2012 Acquired 80.00% stake in Akaroa Saimon New Zealand Lid.
("Akaron”). '

January 2013 Established Alliance Select Foods Pte. Ltd, {"ASF"), a Singapore
based wholly-owned subsidiary. At presant, this subsidiary is not
operating.

March 2013 Established Wild Catch Fisheries, Inc. (WCFI") with CHL Fishing
Industry, Inc. (“CHL") and CHL Construction & Development
Enterprises, Inc. ("CHLC"). WCFlis a joint venture fishing company.

May 2014 Completed a private placement fransaction with Strongoak Inc. to
finance the Company’s working capital requirements.

April 2015 Executed a Supplemental Agreement to the Joint Venture (JVA)
with CHL and CHLC which stated that the Company shall have no
further funding liability or obligation under the JVA.

August 2015 Completed stock rights offering.

October 2015 Divested from PFNZ and increased ownership interest in BGB from
68% to 100%.

December 2015 ASFIl subscribed to preferred shares arising from the increase in

authorized capital stock of AMHI, resulting in ASFII's 98.89%




ownership of AMHI.

QOctober 2016 BGB increased its authorized capital stock to P350,000,000 divided
into 350,000,000 shares of P1.00 each.

November 2016 ASFIl subscribed to an additional 125,000,000 shares of BGB's
increass in authorized capital stock.

March 2018 The SEC approved the Amendment of Article Seventh of the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation to reduce the par value of
common shares of the Company from One Pesc (P1.00) per share
to Fifty Centavos (P0.50) per share, and to decrease the authorized
capital stock of the Cornpany from Three Billion Pesos
(P3,000,000,000.00} divided into Three Billion (3,000,000,000)
common shares with par value of One Peso (P1.00) each o One
Billion Five Hundred Million Pesos {P1,500,000,000.00) divided into
Three Billion (3,000,000,000} common shares with par value of Fifty
Centavos (P0.50) each.

The Company is a processor and exporier of canned tuna and smoked salmon. It commits to
manufacture, in partnership with its global customers and local suppliers, high quality food
products from naturally sustainable sources. As part of the Company’s expansion strategy to
secure its own raw materials, it invested in several companies that are into, among others,
salmon farming. .

The foliowing presents the conglomerate map of the Compeny’s operating subsidiaries and
gffiliates, including its corresponding percentage of ownership as of March 31, 2018.

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS
INTERNATIONAL, INC.

I I ‘ ! I : I
- i -
99.98% 98.99% ! 100.00% ! : 80.00%
PT Intemational | Pl Glory Bay saimanf | | 100.00% 13| Axaroa sakmon
Alllance Foods Aliance MHI | 1 | & Seafood | ; SPence&Co.ledy v {0 g1,
Indonesia Inc. : Company, Inc. H 1
: : :
49.00% 100% A0.00% 40.00% 20%
PTVanDe Zee { {ASFIT (Thailand) FDCP, Inc. Wild Catch Salmon Smoks
tes Office NZ

The following discussion describes briefly the operating subaidiaries and affiliates of the

Company:

In May 2004, the Company set up a marketing representative office in Bangkok, Thailand, to
fap the network of buyers and hrokers who uge Thailand as a base.

in September 2005, the Company acquired a 40% stake in FDCP, a can-manufacturing
company.



In May 2008, PT IAFi was established to acquire the assets of an indonesian tuna cannery
located in Bitung, in the island of North Sulawesi. The Parent Company owns 99.98% of PT
IAFL. A complete renovation of the factory and upgrade of capacity to 90 metric tons per day

was undertaken. PT IAF] started operations in July 2009 and is primarily engaged in canned
fish processing. :

PT [AFI set up PT Van de Zee (PT VDZ), a fishing company in Indonesia on May 2012 with
an initial stake of 80%. In 2014, a new law in Indonesia required that domestic ownership in
local entiies be increased to at least 51%. Currently, PT IAFI owns 49% of PT VDZ.
However, due to subsequent changes in Indonesian fighing regulations restricting foreign
‘commercial fishing, VDZ is currently not in operation.

As part of the Parent Company’s product diversification strategy, it invested in a New
Zealand based processor of smoked salmon in January 2009. The Initial investment of a
38.00% stake in PFNZ was later increased 1o 50% Pius 1 share. PFNZ was originally
engaged in the business of processing, manufacturing, and distributing smoked salmon and
other seafood under the Prime Smoke and Studholme brand. On October 2015, the Parent
Company divested its interest in PFNZ.

in October 2009, the Parent Company and PFNZ established a joint-venture company called
BGB that imports saimon from New Zealand, Chile and Norway, among others, and
processes it in General Santos City, Mindanao, Philippines. The smoked salmon products
from BGB are sold locally and abroad. On October 2015, the Parent Company accepted
PFNZ's BGB shares as partial payment for PFNZ's payment obligations to the Parent
Company.This resulted in BGB becoming a 100% subsidiary of the Company. !n 2016, BGB
ventured into other seafood products.
On June 18, 2010, AMHI, a property holding company, was established. On November 11, 2015,
the AMHI Board approved ASFII's application for subscription of 54,000,000 preferred
- shares arising from the increase in authorized capital stock of AMHI. AMHI's application for
increase in capital stock to P60,000,000.00 divided into (i) 4,000,000 common shares with a
par value of P1.00 per share and (ji) 56,000,000 preferred shares with a par value of P1.00
per share was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 23,
2015. ASFIi now owns 98.88% of AMHI. AMHI's registered address is at Purok Saydaia,
Barangay Tambler, General Santos City.

On August 10, 2011, the Parent Company acquired 100% of the issued share capital of
Spence, iocated in Brockton, Massachusetts, USA. Spence, which became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Parent Company, specializes in the production of smoked saimon and
other seafood. It is one of the leading salmon processors in the USA with extensive network
of clients nationwide.

The Parent Company acquired an 80% stake in Akaroa in October 2012. With its principal
office in Christchurch, New Zealand, Akaroa is engaged in the business of sea cage salmon
farming and is among the pioneers of farmed salmon industry in New Zealand. It also
processes fresh and smoked salmon and has established itself as the premium quality brand
in the country over the years. Akaroa has been the recipient of various awards and
accolades from New Zealand's food industry.r. It operates two marine farms in the pristine
cold waters of Akaroa Harbor in the country’s South Island to rear the King, or Chinook,
salmon. Akaroa holds a 20% stake in Salmon Smolt NZ Ltd., a modem hatchery
guaranteeing high quality and consistent supply of smolts (juvenile salmon).



PRODUCT LINES

The Company’s prdducts lines are composed of three (3) groups, namely, canned tuna, raw
and smoked salmon, and ﬁshmeal.

Canned Tuna

The Group’s Tuna Division, comprised of ASFIl and PT IAFI, sells canned tuna in solids,
chunks, and flakes variants, packed in oil, brine, vegetable broth, or water.

The market for canned tuna is comprised of the institutional and retail markets. The end
users of the institutional cans include restaurants, hotels, and commissariesThe retait can is
what consumers normailly purchase in supermarkets and grocery stores.

Smoked Salmon

BGB processes various salmon species and manufactures them into smoked and raw
products for retail and institutional consumers. These are frozen and vacuum packed, and
sold in different forms and cuts. Products are sold in retail stores under different BGB-owned
brands such as Prime New Zealand, Gold Standard, and Superfish in countries like
Singapore, Hong Kong, Japan, and Philippines, among others.

Spence sells the traditional and classic smoked salmon to supemarkets in the US under tis
own brand and via private label. Salmon species that the fi smokes include Atlantic and
Sockeye. In addition to these traditional products, Spence also markets value added salmon
products like Nova lox, Gravlax Pastrami Salmon.

Akaroa serves both the domestic and intemational markets For intemational markets,
Akaroa’s products are air-flown and delivered 1o retailers. Distributors or direct customers in
Singapore, Philippines, USA, Hong Kong, among others.

The company also distributes whole fish Salmon, Black Cod, Sea Bass, and US Scallops.

Fishmeal

Fishmeal is the by-product of the tuna canning and salmon processing operations. Fishmeal
aresold as additives or primary ingredients for animal feeds.

REVENUE BREAKDOWN
In 2017, the Company generated net revenues of around US$72.2 million.
The percentage contribution to the Group’s revenues broken down into major product lines

for the period ended March 31, 2018 and for the three (3) years in the periods ended
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Product March 31, | December 31, December | December
2018 2017 31, 2016 31, 2015

Canned 65% 58% 56% 56%

Tuna

Fishmeal 2% 2% 2% 4%

(Local)

Salmon 33% 40% 42% 40%

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%




*Numbars might not add up dua to rounding errora

PRODUCTION PROCESS

The following diagrams present the different processes that the Company employs in
producing canned tuna and smoked salmon in its processing facilities.

Canned Tuna

Spurcing/ Recelving o Sortingand ol Preparatton/ ol Butchering, Skinning, N Fishmeal
Thawing Pre-couking and Loining bt Processing

: . Processing_ ~

Labeling and Shipping  —] Coafing and " Retorting |g—| Filling and Sealing
Inrithatinn

Smoked Saimon
Sourcing - Fllleting / N Brining - Drying
7 Trimming o
Labeling, Packing and ' Cooling ) Smoking
Shipment . «

The following is a discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results

of operations and certain trends, risks, and unceriainties that may affect the Company's

business. The discussion and analysis of the Company'’s results of operations is presented
in four (4) comparative sections: a) The three (3) months ended March 31, 2018 with

comparative figures as of December 31, 2017 and for the penod ended March 31, 2017,

whichever is relevant; b) the year ended December 31, 2017 with comparative figures as of .
December 31, 2016; ¢} the year ended December 31, 2016 with comparative figures as of
December 31, 2015; and d) the year ended Dacember 31, 2015 compared with the year
ended December 31, 2014. Disclosure relating to fiquidity and financial condition and the

trends, risks, and uncertainties that have had or that aro expected to affect revenues and

income, completes the management’s discussion and analysis.

Further, the following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Alliance Select Foods International, Inc., and its
Subsidianies (the “Group”} which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position
as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended and unaudited
financial statements of the Group for the period ended March 31, 2018. The financial
statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Fhilippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS), which includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting

6



Standards (PAS) and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC} as approved by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council (FRSC) and adopted by the SEC. PFRS is an Intemational Financial Reporting

Standards equivalent.

The consolidated financial statements are preéented in United Stales Dollar, the cumrency of
the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

Operating Performance

Three months Ended March 31, 2017 versus March 31, 2016

The table below shows the comparisons of key operating results for the three months period ended

March 31, 2017 versus the same period in 2016.

For the Three Months Ended March 31

In USD'000 2018 2017
Revenue — net $23,651 316,819
Gross Profit 3427 1,908
Gross Profit Margin 14% 11%
Selling and Administrative Expenses 1,945 1,520
Other Income 544 78
Other Expenses 49 57
Finance Costs 329 199
Income Before Tax 1,648 208
Income Tax Expense 343 81
Income for the Period 1,305 127
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1,215 aD
Non-controlling interest _ 90 37
$1,305 $127

The Group’s consolidated net revenues of $ 23.7 million for the first quarter of 2018 were
41% higher than the revenues of $ 16.8 miliion for the first quarter of 2017, The revenue

increase is driven by growth in most of the subsidiaries. ASFIP
driven by volume sales and average price per FCL which is 16%

8 57% revenue growth is
higher. Spence and Akaroa

grew its business by 20% and 27%, respectively as it continue to increase its volume sales
for both local and export markets. These were however offset by a decrease in the sales for
PT IAFI due to the continued struggle with fish sourcing in the region and BGB mainly on the
one time order of last year. In the first quarter of 2018, 87% of total revenues were



contributed by tuna and fishmeal products and the remaining 33% were contributed by
salmon segment; a change from last year's 80:40 tuna to salmon sales ratio.

$ 3.4 million for the first quarter of 2018 were 80% higher than the gross profit of $ 1.2 million
for the first quarter of 2017. Gross margin for the total group was higher at 14% compared to
11% of prior year. Last year's gross margin was mainly impacted by the high prices of raw
materials in Spence due fo the algae bloom.

Selling and Administrative expenses during the period increased by 28% versus the same
period last year.

The increase of loans payable (banks and/or financial institutions) by 57% or $ 10 million
versus same quarter last year and a due to related party amounting to $ 2 million for the
period ended caused the significant increase in finance cost.

December 31, 2017 versus December 31, 2016

The table below shows the comparison of key operating results for the fiscal
period ended December 31, 2017 versus the same period in 2018.

Years Ended December 31
Amount in US $°000 2017 2016 %
_ ' Change
Revenue $72,192 $50.914 20%
Gross profit 9,449 3,468 172%
Gross margin 13% 8%

Selling & Administrative

Expenses 8.726 6,771 -1%
Nomnal sefling &

administrative
Provision for impairment 1,31 1,187 17%

Other non-operating income
Gain on acquisition of - - -100%

AMIHI & re-measurement of

previously held interest

Finance Cost . 788 869 8%
Profit (Loss) for the year (1,563) (5,899) 126%
Non-controlling interest 126 70 80%
Profit{Loss) attributable to

equity 1,437 (5,969) 124%

holders of the parent
Net Profit {Loss) Margin 2% -10%
EBITDA 2,501 (2,760) 183%




EBITDA margin 3% -5%

Return on equity {ROE)

4% A7%
Eamings (Loss) per share 0.0008  (0.0024) 124%
Book value per share 0.0135 0.0429 5%

The Group’s consolidated revenues of $ 72 million in 2017 were 20% higher than the
revenues of $ 60 million in 2016. In 2017, about 80% of tota! revenues were contributed by
tuna-related products and the remaining 40% were contributed by salmon-related products.
There is a 24% and 15% growth in revenue for the tuna and salmon segments, respectively.
The revenue growth in the tuna business was mainly driven by the increase in prices as a
direct impact of the increase in raw materials cost, Shipments of canned tura declined by
3%. The volume decline in canned tuna shipped was mainly attributable to the decline in
sales volume of PT IAFI by 61% to 26 FCLs in 2017 from 68 FCLs in 2018. The decline in
PT |AFPs sales volume was a resuit of PT |AF)'s difficulty in profitably matching market

prices as fish costs have continuously increased due to the prohibitive fishing regulations in
indonesia. '

The revenue increase in salmon-related products was due to a 34% increase in revenues
from Akaroa as it continues to grow its local sales and expand its export market. BGB has
been intensifying its selling efforts by increasing its local customer base and developing new
export clients resulting to a 40% increase in volume sales,

The Group's gross profits of $ 9 million in 2017 were 172% higher than gross profits of $ 3
million in 2016. The gross profit ratio increased to 13% in 2017, from 8% in 2016. The
salmon business experienced a decline in gross profit ratio to 17% in 2017 from 20%,
particularly due to higher raw material prices in Spence due to supply issues encountered as
-aresult of the algae bloom in Chile and sea lice in the North Sea.

The frequent shut downs of PT IAF] is due to its inability to source low cost fish in the region,
resulting in an uncompetitive cost structure in the globally-competitive tuna canning market.
PT IAFI's predicament is common to other tuna canning companies in Indonesia. Indonesian
fishing regulations have made foreign commercial fishing in Indonesian waters practically
impossible, resulting in higher fish prices and insufficient supply for tuna canneries across
Indonesia.

The Group's nomal selling and administrative expenses of $ 6.7 million in 2017 were 1%
lower than $ 6.8 million in 2016. The ratio of normal seling and administrative expenses to
sales decreased by 2 percentage points to 9% in 2017 from 11% in 2018. Over the past
three years, the Group has successfully implemented measures to reduce operating
expenses and have consistently managed costs to partially cushion the impact of the
inherent volatility in raw material prices.

As part of the Company’s risk management pracess and in line with its Accounting Policies,
when the net realizable value of the inventaries are lower than cost, the Company provides
for an allowance for the decline in inventory value. The reversal of any pravision for
inventory obsolescence, arising from any increase in net realizable value, is recagnized as a
reduction in the inventory amount in the period when the reversal occurs. When the
inventory is sold, the carrying amount of the inventory is recognized as an expense in the
period when the related revenue is recognized. Property, plant and equipment are likewise
measured at cost less depreciation and provision for impairment fosses. In CY 2017, the
Group recognized the following provisians in its books:



- Inveniory write down and allowance for inventory obsolescence for the Group totaling
$230,780. The provision also accounts for the passage of time and its adverse
impact on the value of unsold inventory.

- Provision for impairment of other property, plant, and equipment and other assets
amounting to $1,090,400 primarily relating to the property, plant and aquipment
carried in the books of PT JAFI.

- Provision for trade and other receivables amounting to $69,574. The Group identified

specific accounts that are doubtful of coliection, considering historical collection and

~ write-off experience, and provided a provision pertaining to the amounts deemed fo
be uncollectible. '

The Group’s finance costs of $788k in 2017 were 9% lower than its finance costs of $869k in
2016. The decrease was due to the seltlement of long-term loans of the Company using its
short-term placements. Moreover, a portion of the SRO proceeds was utilized to retire high
interest loans.

The Group ended the year with net income of $ 1.8 million from $ 5.9 million loss in 2018.

December 31, 2016 versus Dacember 31, 2015

The table below shows the comparison of key operating results for the fiscal
period ended December 31, 2016 versus the same period in 2015. -

Years Ended December 31

Amount in US $°000 2016 2015 %
_Change

Revenue : $59,914 $67,916 -12%
Gross profit 3,468 6,820 -49%
Gross margin 6% 10%
Selling & Administrative
Expenses 6,771 9,772

Nommal selling & ' -31%
administrative

Provision for impairment 1,187 8,973 -87%

Other non-operating income _
Gain on acquisition of - 5,827 -100%

AMIH! & re-measurement of

previously held interest

Finance Cost 869 1,903 -54%
Profit {Loss) for the year (5,899) (8,023) -26%
Non-controlling interest 70 (1.630) -104%

Profit(Loss) attributable to
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equity (5,969) (6,382) 7%
holders of the parent
Net Profit (Loss) Margin ~10% -“12%
EBITDA (2,760) (5,107) -46%
EBITDA margin -5% 8%
Return on equity (ROE) - -
17% 21%
Earnings (Loas) per share (0.0024) (0.0038) -45%
Book value per share 0.0128 0.0152 =15%

The Group’s consolidated revenues of $ 60 miliion in 2016 were 12% lower than the
revenues of § 68 million in 2015. In 2016, about 58% of total revenues were contributed by
tuna-related products and the remaining 42% were contributed by salmon-related products.
Revenues declined by 14% for the tuna-related products while revenues for the salmon-
related products declined 8%. The revenue decline in the tuna business was impacted the
severe fluctuation in prices of raw materials. Shipments of canned tuna declined 12% o 630
full container load {FCL) in 2016 from 712 FCLs in 2015. The volume decline in canned tuna
shipped was mainly attributable to the decline in sales volume of the PT 1AF] by 40% to 66
FCLs in 2016 from 109 FCLs in 2015. The decline in PT IAFT's sales volume was a result of
PT IAFI's difficulty in profitably matching market prices as fish costs have continuously
increased due to the prohibitive fishing regulations in Indonesia.

The revenue decline in salmon-related products was due to the Company's divestment of it
PFNZ shares, resulting to a loss of PFNZ as a customer, mitigated by a 34% increase in
revenues from Akaroa. BGB has been intensifying its selling efforts in increasing its local
customer base and developing new export clients to compensate for the lost volume from
PFNZ,

The Group's gross profits of $ 3 milfion in 2016 were 48% lower than gross profits of $ 7
million in 2015. The gross profit ratio dropped to 6% in 2016 from 10% in 2015 due to the
negative gross profit margin in the tuna business of 8% in 2016 from a positive 1% margin in
2015. The lower volumes sold, unexpected spike in raw materials, and price compression -
from competition caused the negative gross profit of the tuna business. The salmon
business also experienced a decline in gross profits to 20% in 2018 from 25% due to higher
raw material prices. '

The frequent and persistent shut downs of PT IAFI is due to its inability to source low cost
fish in the region, resutting in an uncompetitive cost structure in the globally-competitive tuna
canning market. PT IAFl's predicament is common to other tuna canning companies in
Indonesia. Indonesian fishing regulations have made foreign commerciai fishing in
Indonesian waters practically impossible, resulting in higher fish prices and insufficient
supply for tuna canneries across Indonesia. '

The Group’s nommal selling and administrative expenses of § 7 million in 2016 were 319

lower than $ 10 million in 2015. The ratio of nomal selling and administrative expenses 1o
sales decreased by 3 percentage points to 11% in 2016 from 14% in 2015. Over the past
two years, the Group has successfully implemented measures to reduce operating expenses
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and have consistently managed costs to partially cushion the impact of the inherent volatility

- in raw material prices.

As part of the Company’s risk management process and in line with its Accounting Policies,
when the net realizable value of the inventories are lower than cost, the Company provides
for an aliowance for the decline in inventory value. The reversal of any provision for
inventory obsolescence, arising from any increase in net realizable value, is recognized as a
reduction in the inventory amount in the period when the reversal occurs, When the
inventory is sold, the canrying amount of the inventory is recognized as an expense in the
period when the related revenue is recognized. Property, plant and equipment are likewise
measured at cost less depreciation and provision for impaiment losses. In CY 2016, the
Group recognized the following provisions in its books:

- Inventory write-down and alfowance for inventory obsolescence for the Group totaling
$794,010. The provision also accounts for the passage of time and lis adverse
impact on the value of unsold inventory.

- Provision for impairment of other property, piant, and equipment and other assets
amounting to $314,320 primarily relating to the two (2) fishing vessels carried in-
ASFI) Parent and PT VDZ's books. '

- Provision for frade and other receivables amounting to $79,049. The Group identified
specific accounts that are doubtful of collection, considering historical collection and

write-off experience, and provided a provision pertaining to the amounts deemed to
be uncollectible,

The Group’s finance costs of $869k in 2016 were 54% jower than its finance costs of $1.9
million in 2015. The decrease was due to the settiement of long-term loans of the Company

using its short-tern placements. Moreover, a portion of the SRO proceeds was utilized to
retire high interest loans.

The Group managed to reduce net losses by 26% to $ 6 million in 2018 from $ 8 million in
2015. '

Calendar Year 2015 compared to Calendar Year 2014

The table below shows the comparison of key operating results for the
calendar years 2015 and 2014.

Years ended December 31

Amount in US $'000 2015 2014 % Change
Revenue $ 87,916 $812862 -16%
Gross profit 6,820 7,880 -13%
Gross margin 10% 10%
Selling & administrative
expenses

Nomnal selling & 9,477 8,720* 9%
administrative expenses
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Provisions for impairment 9,268 19,570* -53%
Gain on acquisition of
AMIHI & re-measurement of 5,827 - 100%
previously held interest
Finance Cost 1,903 1,831 4%
Profit (Loss) for the year (8,023) (17,076) -53%
Non-controlling interest (1,830) (640} 155%
Profit {Loss) attributable to (6,392) (16,436) -81%
equity holders of the parent
Net Profit (Loss) Margin -12% -21%
EBITDA (6,184) (19,343) -88%
EBITDA margin -9% ~24%
Retum on equity (ROE) -21% -64%
Earnings {Loss) per share $(0.0038)  $(0.0122) -69%
Book value per share $0.0152 $0.0178 -14%

*Includes reclassification to align with 2015 presentation

The Group's consolidated revenues of $88 million in 2015 were 16% lower than the
revenues of $81 million in 2014. The revenue decline is primarily due to lower volumes sold
across the group and secondarily due to lower prices for canned funa products sold. In 201 5,
about 60% of total revenues were contributed by tura and fishmeal products and the
remaining 40% were contributed by salmon products. The volume decline in canned tuna
shipped was mainly attributabie to the decline in sales volume of PT IAFI by 52%. The
~ decline in PT IAFt’s sales volume was a result of PT IAFTI’s difficulty in profitably maitching
low canned tuna prices to high fish costs resulting from prohibitive fishing regulations in
Indonesia. The revenue decline in salmon products was due to the Company’s loss of PFNZ
as a customer. PFNZ accounted for more than 50% of the revenues generated by BGB in
2014,

The Group’s gross profits of $7 million in 2015 were 13% lower than gross profits of $8
million in 2014. The ratio of gross profits to sales of 10% remain unchanged in 2015 from
2014, The decline in the tuna business’ gross profits were offset by the increase in the gross
profts of the salmon business. From 5% in 2014, the gross margin of the funa business was
2% in 2015 because of the high cost of raw materials, lower capacity utilization, and lower
selling prices due to heavy discounts given by competitors. However, the decline in the
gross margins of the tuna business was offset by an increass in the margins of the saimon
business,

PT IAFI's predicament is similar to other tuna canning companies in Indonesia. Indonesian

fishing regulations have restricted foreign commercial fishing in Indonesian waters, resuiting
in higher fish prices and significantly insufficient supply for tuna canneries across Indonesia.
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While management believes that unconventional sourcing strategies and cost saving

initiatives will eventually reverse the financial performance of PT JAFi, it is struggling with fish -

sourcing and competitiveness in the meantime.

The Group’s normal selling and administrative expenses of $9.5 million in 2015 was 9%
higher than $8.7 million in 2014. The ratio of normal selling and administrative expenses to
sales increased by 3.2% to 14% in 2015 from 10.7% in 2014. The Increase represents costs
relating to aggressively expanding the sales team and strengthening the management team.
The increase was partially offset by cost-saving initiatives.

As part of the Company's risk management process and in fine with its Accounting Policies,
when the net realizable value of the inventories are lower than cost, the Company provides
for an allowance for the decline in inventory value. The reversal.of any provision for
inventory obsolescence, arising from any increase in net realizable value, is recognized as a
reduction in the inventory amount in the period when the reversal occurs. When the
inventory is sold, the carrying amount of the inventory is recognized as an expense in the
period when the related revenue is recognized. Property, plant and equipment are likewise
measured at cost less depreciation and provision for impairment losses. In CY 2015, the
Group recognized the following provisions in its books:

- Inventory write down and allowance for inventory obsolescence for the Group totaling
$5.3 million. The provision also accounts for the passage of time and its adverse
impact on the value of unsold inventory.

- Provision for impairment of other property, plant, and equipment and other assets
amounting to $3.65 million primarily relating to the two (2) fishing vesseis and fishing
license carried in PT VDZ2's books. In 2015, Indonesian fishing regulators prohibited
VDZ to operate said vessels. The Company believes that the fishing license is
unlikely to be renewed given Indonesia’s regulatory environment. Without the legal
approval to operate in intended fishing grounds, the book value of VDZ's vessels and
fishing license are unlikely to be recovered. Furthermore, some property, plant, and
equipment used by PT IAF] are similarly impacted by said Indonesian regulations,
resulting fo additional provision for impairment.

- Provision for trade and other receivables amounting to $0.32 million. The Grou'p
" identified specific accounts that are doubtful of collection, considering historical

collection and write-off experience, and provided a provision pertaining to the

amounts deamed to be uncollectible.

- Provision for impaimment of the investment in FDCP amounting to $0.25 million. The
Group is the sole customer of FDCP. Due to the Group’s sourcing from alternative
can suppliers, the Group believes that the book value of its investment in FDCP is
unlikely to be recovered.

The Group's finance costs of $1.9 million in 2015 were 4% higher than its finance costs of
$1.8 million in 2014. Management is taking several measures to reduce the Group’s cash
conversion cycle and subsequently reduce its financing costs. A portion of the SRO
proceeds was utilized to retire high interest loans.

The Group’s ownership increase in AMHI from 40% o 98.89% led to a re-measurement of
previously held interest and a gain on acquisition amounting to $5.8 million.

The Group managed to réduce net losses by 3% to $8.0 million in 2015 from $17.1 million
in 2014, :
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Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources

March 31, 2018 compared to December 3, 2017

The Group had a total liability to equity ratio of 1.15:1 and 1.09:1 as at March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively.

The 24% increase in 2018 Q1 sales versus 2017 Q4 sales diive the higher Trade and other
receivables balance.

Inventory balances across entities were maintained compared fo that of 2017 ending
balances except for BGB which grew by $342K or 36% mainly on raw materials.

Increase in Other current assets is due to BGB's $1.49Mn increase in advances to vendors

Trade and other payables for BGB increase by $1.19Mn. Payables are mainly for raw
material suppliers

A total of $3.3Mn net loan availment for Q1 in ASFII drove the 13% growth in loans payable

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Current Ratio 0.97 0.92
Debt-to-equity Ratio ' 1.15 1.09

December 31, 2017 compared to December 31, 2016

Balance Sheet Highlights Years Ended
December 31

Amount in US$’000 2017 2016 % Change
Cash & cash equivalent $4,427 $7,306 -40%
Receivables 9,414 6,725 - 40%
Inventories - 14,155 7,954 78%
Other current assets 5,612 1,530 282%
Total Currant Assets $33.608 $23,605 43%
Property & Equipment 18,104 17,007 -5%
Total Asseis $70,519 $59,881 18%
Trade and Other Payables 9,745 8,070 61%
Bank Loans 24,286 20,830 17%
Total Current Liabilitles 36,358 27,128 34%
Total Liabilities 36,830 27,749 33%
Total Stockholders’ Equity 33,688 32,112 5%
Total Liabilities & SE $70,519 $59,861 - 18%
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40% increase in Trade and other receivables was primarily due to an increase in 4™ quarter
sales that will be coliected in 2018: ASFIl in particular delivered 32FCLs more in the last
quarter of 2017 at 144 FCLs versus 112FCLs in 2016.

78% increase in Inventory balance was a result of a 4x higher frozen fish inventory balance
in ASFIl vs tast year as well as increase in PT JAFI's finished goods inventory balance
relating to the 11FCLs for delivery in early 2018.

282% increase in Other current assets was mainly due to advance payments to vendors for
raw materials.

5% decrease in Properly & Equipment due to the impaimment of property, plant and
equipment in the books of PT IAFI.

There was no impairment of goodwill recognized during the year.

61% increase in Trade and Other Payables is due to obligations with various suppliers of
raw materials and supplies. :

17% increase in Loans Payable is due to the availments made dun‘ng the last quarter of
2017 mainly used for purchase and as prepayments of raw matenals.

Loans payable — net of current portion increase by 46%.

Amounts as of December 31 2017 2016
Current Ratio 0.92 0.87
Debt-to-equity Ratio 1.09 ' 0.86

December 31, 2016 compared fo December 31, 2015

Balance Sheet Highlights Years Ended

) - Dacembar 31
Amount in US$'000 - | 2016 2015 % Change
Cash & cash equivaient ' $7.396 $17,595 -58%
Receivables 6,725 5,374 25%
Inventories 7,954 6,722 18%
Other current assets 1,530 1,097 39%
Total Current Asseats $23,605 30,788 “23%
Property &a Equipment 17,007 17,917 5%
Total Assets $59,861 $68,518 13%
Trade and Other Payables 6,070 $5,731 6%
Bank Loans 20,830 21,840 -5%
Total Current Liablilities 27,128 27,785 ~2%
Total Liabilities 27,749 30,474 9%
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Total Stockholders’ Equity 32112 38,064 -16%
Total Liabilities & SE $59,86_1 $68,538 -13%

58% decrease in Cash due 10 the application of proceeds from the Stock Rights Offering
(SRO) to the Group’s working capital requirements and repayment of high interest loans. -

25% increase in Trade and other receivables was primarily due to an increase in 4" quarter
sales that will be collected in 2017. -

18% increase in Inventories was primarily due fo goods produced in 2016 that will be sold in
2017. _

104% increase in Other cumrent assefs was mainly due to advance payments to vendors.
5% decrease in Property & Equipment due to the impaimment of two {2) fishing vessels.
There was no impairment of goodwill recognized during the year. -

6% increase in Trade and Other Payables is due to obligations with various suppliers of raw
materials and supplies.

5% decrease in Loans Payable is due to the settlement of various loans.
Loans payable — net of current portion declined by 97% due to the settlement of various

loans
16% decrease in Equity pertains to the decrease in Retained Eamings.

Amounts as of December 31 | 2016 2015
Current Ratio 0.87 ' 1.11
Debt-to-equity Ratio . (.86 0.80

The Group’s financial liquidity profile declined in 2016 due to the application of proceeds
from the Stock Rights Offering to the Group’s working capital requirements.

December 31, 2015 compared to December 31 y 2014

As at December 31
Amount in US $'000 2015 2014 % Change
Cash & cash equivalents 18 17,595 § 2426 625%
Receivables : 5,374 9,798 -45%
inventories 8,722 18,788 -84%
Other current assets 1,097 1,727 -36%
Total Current Assets 30,788 32,738 5%
Property & Equipment 17,917 13,227 35%
Total Assets $ 68,538 § 65,847 4%
Trade and Other Payables 5,731 - 9,040 -37%
Short-term loans payable 21,840 29,201 -25%
Total Current Liabilities ' 27,786 38,396 -28%
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Total Liabilities 30,474 42,516 -28%
Total Stockholders' Equity (SE) 38,064 23,331 63%
Total Liabilities & SE $ 68,538 $ 65,847 4%

Changes in current assets: Lower group revenues have led to a 45% decrease in
Receivables. The Group has recognized allowances, write downs, and impairments resulting
in a 84% decrease in Inventories. Lower prepayments for raw materials as of end 2015 led
to a 36% decrease in Other Current Assets. '

Impact of Stock Rights Offering: The 625% increase in cash & cash equivalents was due
to the proceeds of the SRO in August 2015. The proceeds were partially used to settle
outstanding obligations, contributing to the 37% decrease in Trade and Other Payables.
Furthermore, the proceeds were also used to settle other obligations such as bank loans, -
leading to the decline in short-term loans payable of 25% and total fiabiliies of 28%. The
SRO has also confributed to the increase in Total Stockholders’ Equity by 63%.

The consolidation of AMHI as a subsidiary of the Company has led to the recognition of
AMH?’s land as part of property, plant, and equipment, contributing to the 35% increase in
the property, plant, and equipment account.

Amounts as of December 31 2015 2014
Current Ratio : 1.1 0.85
Debt to equity Ratio 0.80 1.82

The Group significantly improved its financial stability and liquidity profile in 2015 due to the
infusion of the proceeds from the SRO in August 2015.

Plan of Operation

The Group does not foresee any cash flow or fiquidity problem over the next twelve (12)
months. It is in compliance with its loan covenant pertaining to debt-to-equity ratio. it is not
aware of any material off-balance shest transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations) and other relationship of the Group with entities or other persons
created during the reporting period that would have significant impact on the Group’s
operations and/or financial condition.

As of March 31, 2018, there were no other material events or uncertsinties known to
management that could have a material impact on the future operations, In respect of the
following: - '

¢ Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a
material impact on the Group;

e Known trends, events, uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected o
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/ income from
continuing operations;

» Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Group’s continuing
operations; and

* Seasonal aspecis that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations. :
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Key performance Indicators

The company uses the foliowing key performance indicators to assess the Company's
financial performance from period to period.

For the 3-
month
endead

For the _riod ended December 31 March 31
Liquidity and
Solvency 2014 20151 2018 2017 2018
Current ratio 0.85 1.11 .87 0.92 0.97
Debt fo equity ratio 1.82 0.80 0.86 1.09 1.15
Profitability
Revenue growth rate -3.6% | -16.4% | -11.8%| 20.5% 40.6%
Net profit margin 21.0% | -11.8%| -10.0% 2% 5%
Retum on average
stockholders' equity -64.4% | -208% | -17.0% 4.4% 3.1%

The following defines each ratio:

The revenue growth rate is the Group’s increase in revenue for a given period. This
growth rate is computed from the current revenue less revenue of the previous year,
divided by the revenue of the previous year. The result is expressed in percentage.

The net profit margin is the ratio of the Group’s net income attributable to equity
holders of the parent versus its net revenue for a given period. This is computed by
dividing net income after tax by net revenue. The result is expressed in percentage.

The total liabilities to equity ratio are used to measure debt exposure. It shows the
relative proportions of all creditors’ claims versus ownership claims. This is
computed by dividing total liabilities by total stockholders’ equity. The result is
expressed in proportion.

The return on average stockholders’ equity ratio is the ratio of the Group's net
income attributable to equity holders of the parent to the average stockholders’
equity. This measures the management's ability to generate returns on investments.
This is computed by dividing net income attributable to equity holders of the parent
by the average stockholders’ equity. The result is expressed in percentage.

V.  Number of Holders of Each Class of Common Security

As of December 31, 2017, there are 2,499,712,463 outstanding and issued common shares
of the Company, exclusive of 287,537 treasury shares. The Company does not have any
class of shares other than common shares. '
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VIl. Names of the Top Twenty (20) Shareholders of Each Glass

The top twenty (20) stockholders of the Company as of December 31, 2017 are the

following:
Name Nuo, of shares % ownership
1. PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 2,014,135,512 80.57%
2, Harvest All Investment Limited 177,261,165 7.09%
3. Victory Fund Limited 138,474,015 5.54%
4. PCD Nominee Corporation (Fareign) 91,787,636 3.67%
5. Albert Hin Kay Hong 39,071,537 1.56%
6. Bandeast Private Limited 13,023,411 0.52%
7. Kawsek Jr., Peter 4,538,646 0.18%
8. FCF Fishery Co. Ltd. 3,975,370 0.16%
9. Cordova, Michael W, 3,805,000 0.15%
10. S, Chandra Das 2,604,760 0.10%
11. Oriental Tin Can & Metal Sheet Mfg, 2,210,385 0.09%
12. FDCP, Inc. 1,894,045 0.08%
13, Cheng, Berck Yao 1,200,000 0.05%
14, Tri-Marine International (Pte) Ltd. 1,170,472 0.05%
15. Damalerio Fishing Corp. 920,656 0.04%
16. DFC Tuna Venture Corporation 617,248 0.02%
17. Phil. Fisheries Development Authority 346,207 0.01%
18. Amadeo Fishing Corp. 294,874 0.01%
19. GENPACCQ, Inc. 172,973 0.01%
20. MGTR Fishing 115,399 0.01%

Please note that the

2,014,135,512 shares reflected above for

(Filipino) include the 1,382,755,864 shares (55.32%) of Strongoak, Inc.

PCD Nominee Corporation

There is no action to be taken at the 2018 AGM with respect to an acquisition, business
combination or other reorganization that wilf affect the amount and percentage of present
holdings of the Company's common equity owned beneficially by (i) any person or group
who is known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent {5%) of
any class of the registrant's common equity; (ii) each director and nominee; and {ji)) all

directors and officers as a group, and the Company's present commitmenis fo such‘persons

with respect to the issuance of shares of any class of its common equity, if any.
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ViL

Directors
Board of Directors
Year
Director Nationality | Position Age :;i’ﬂo"
Assumed
Antonio C. Pacis Filipino Chairman of the Board 77 2014
George E. Sycip American _{ Vice Chairman 61 2004
Raymond K.H. See Filipino ggebctor, President & 50 2014
Marle Grace T. Ver | Eiigino | Director 37 | 2014
Joseph Peter Y.|_.. o
Roxas Filipino Director 56 2016
Erwin M. Elechicon Filipino Independent Director 58 2016
Dobbin A, Tan Filiping Independent Director 54 2016

ANTONIO C. PACIS - 77, Filipino citizen; Chairman of the Board

Mr. Pacis obtained his law degree from the Ateneo Law Schoo! in 1985 and his Master of
Law degree from the Harvard Law School in 1967.

He is on the Board of Directors at OCLP Holdings Inc., BDO Unibank, inc., Paluwagan NG
Bayan Savings Bank, Armstrong Pacific Co., Inc., Legisforum, Inc., Technology investment
Co., Inc. and Central Colleges of The Philippines. '

He is Chairman of the Board of Directors at Asian Silver Estate, Inc., Intemational Social
Service Philippines, Inc., Amigo Holdings, Inc., Asian Waterfront Holdings, Inc., Mantie
Holdings, Inc., and Corporate Secretary for Amstrong Securities, Inc., EBC Strategic
Holdings Corp., and Paluwagan NG Bayan Savings Bank.

Mr. Pacis has been practicing faw since 1985 and continues to practice at Pacis and Reyes
Law Office and was a professor of law at the Ateneo Law School.

GEORGE E. SYCIP - 61, American citizen; Vice-Chainman -

Mr. Sycip received his BA ‘With Distinction’ in International Relations/Economics from
Stanford University and his Master in Business Administration Degree from the Harvard
Business School

Mr. Sycip is the Director and Principal of Galaxaco China Group, a project doing business in
China, and Halanna Management estate investment and development and consultancy firm
serving American, European and Asian clienis’ estate investment and development
company. Mr. Sycip cumently serves on the Boards or Advisory Boards of several
companies and institutions. In Asia, these include Beneficial-PNB Life Insurance, Medtecs
Corporation, and Cityland Development Corporation. In the U.S., he is on the Board of the
Bank of the Orient, Arasor Intemnational, the Califomnia Asia Business Council, and the
International institute for Rurat Reconstruction, Give2Asia, and Stanford University's Institute
for Intemational Studies.
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RAYMOND K. H. SEE - 50, Filipino citizen: Director, President & CEO

Mr. See graduated from De La Salle University in 1989 with a degree in B.S. Industrial
Management Engineering, minor in Mechanical Engineering. '

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. See was a former executive from Pilipinas Shell Petroleum
Corporation. He rose from the ranks in his 24 year stay in the said company. Mr. See was
the Senior Vice-President for Operation of the Company before being appointed as
President & CEQO of the Company on December 8, 2014.

MARIE GRACE T. VERA CRUZ - 37, Filipino citizen: Director

Ms. Vera Cruz holds an MBA from London Business School and a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Economics from the University of the Philippines, where she graduated Magna
cum Laude.

Ms. Vera Cruz is the Managing Director of Seawood Resources, Inc., an investment
company based in the Philippines. She is also the President of Strongoak, Inc. Prior to
Seawood and Strongoak, Ms. Vera Cruz was a consultant at McKinsey & Co.

JOSEPH PETER Y. ROXAS - 56, Filipino citizen; Director

Mr. Raxas graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1983 with a Bachelor's degree
in Economics. He also has MBA units from the Afeneo de Manila University Graduate
School.

Mr. Roxas is President of Eagle Equities, Inc. since 1998. He is also presently a Director of
Kimguan Trading Corporation, a privately held company.. He is also a Director of the
Association of Securities Analysts of the Philippines since 2000. Mr. Roxas was with R.
Coyuito Securities as Assistant Vice President for Research from 1993 to 1995, and
Investment Officer from 1987 to 1992, '

- ERWIN M. ELECHICON - 58, Filipino citizen; Independent Director

MTr. Elechicon holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics, cum Jaude, from the Ateneo de
Manila University in 1979. He aitended courses in Finance at the Columbia Business
School; and in Marketing at Kellogg School of Management.

Mr. Elechicon was with the Procter & Gamble Company (P&G) for over 26 years. He has
had local and regional responsibilities at P&G across Asia, and has lived in Singapore,
Mumbai, Kuala Lumpur and Ho Chi Minh City as well as Manila. He was also President and
General Manager of two Jolibee Foods Corporation subsidiaries, Greenwich Pizza
Company and Chowking. He is currently the Chainman and co-founder of Assurant BPO
Solutions, Inc., a Makati-based company providing business and knowledge process
outsourcing and managed services solutions to a broad range of clients. He is also a director
of U-Bix Corporation, one of the largest integrated office systems and ssrvice providers in
the Philippines. '

DOBBIN A. TAN - §4, Filipino citizen; Independent Director
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Mr. Tan graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1985 with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Management Engineering. He obtained his Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Chicago, Booth School of Business in 2013. Mr. Tan
also attended a Management Development Program of the Asian Institute of Management in

1990, and a Strategic Business Economics Program of the University of Asia and the Pacific
in 2001.

Mr. Tan is presently Chief Executive Officer of New Sunlife Ventures, Inc. He was Managing
Director and Chief Operating Officer of Information Gateway from 2002 to 2012. Mr. Tan
also served as Vice President for Marketing of Dutch Boy Philippines from 2000 to 2002,
President of Informatics Computer College from 1957 to 2000, Assistant Vice President for
Marketing of Basic Holdings from 1894 to 1997, Operations Manager of DC Restaurant
Management Systems from 1990 to 1994, and Senior Financial Analyst/ Corporate Planning
Manager for San Migue! Corporation from 1985 to 1990. He is also President of the
Information Gateway Group and Red Rock Security, Inc.

Vill. Executive Officers
. . . Year Position
Officer Nationality | Position Age was Assumed
Raymond K.H. See Filipino President & CEO 50 2014
Lisa Angefa Y. | Filipino SVP — Operational | 35 2014
Dejadina Excellence and
' Business
Development
Barbara Anne C. | Filipino Corporate 63 2015
Migallos ' Secretary
Ma. Kristina P. | Filipino Asst. Corporate | 39 2015
Ambrocio Secretary and
Compliance Officer

RAYMOND K.H. SEE - 50, Filipino citizen; President & CEO.

Mr. See graduated from De La Salle University in 1989 with a degree in B.S. Industrial
Management Engineering, minor in Mechanical Engineering.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. See was a former executive from Pilipinas Shell Petroleum
Corporation who rose from the ranks in his 24 year stay in the said company. Mr. See was
the Senior Vice-President for Operation of the Company before being appointed as
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on December 8, 2014. -

LISA ANGELA Y. DEJADINA - 38, Filipino citizen; Senjor Vice President for
Operational Excellence and Business Development

Ms. Dejadina has a degree in B.S. Industrial Engineering from the University of the
Philippines where she graduated in 2005.

Prior to joining the company, Ms. Dejadina worked at Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation
where she covered various roles contributing to ten years of solid work experience in the
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petroleum industry in the ﬁreas of fuel depot operations, Health, Safety, Security and
Environment (HSSE) management, and business support functions (business development,
logistics, and fearning & development).

BARBARA ANNE C. MIGALLOS - 63, Filipino citizen; Corporate Secretary.

Ms. Migallos graduated cum laude from the University of the Philippines, with a Bachelor of
Arts degree, and finished her Bachelor of Laws degree as cum laude (salutatorian) also at
the University of the Philippines. She placed third in the 1979 Philippine Bar Examination.

- Ms. Migallos was elected as Corporate Secretary of the Company on July 6, 2015. She is

Director and Corporate Secretary of Philex Mining Corporation and Philex Petroleum
Corporation, and Corporate Secretary of Nickel Asia Corporation and Silangan Mindanao
Mining Co., Inc. She is the Managing Partner of the Migallos & Luna Law Offices. Ms.
Migallos is also a Director of Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation and Philippine Resins Industries,
and Corporate Secretary of Eastem Telecommunications Philippines, Inc. She is a
professorial lecturer in Corporations Law, Insurance, Securifies Regulation and Credit
Transactions at the De La Salle University College of Law. She was a Senior Partner of
Roco Kapunan Migallos and lLuna Law Offices from 1988 1o 2008.

MA. KRISTINA P. AMBROCIO - 39, Filipino citizen; Assistant Corporate Secretary and
Compliance Officer

Ms. Ambrocio graduated from 'the Ateneo de Manila University in 2001 with a major in
Philosophy, and minor in Humanities. She obtained her law degree in 2005 from the

‘University of the Philippines. Ms. Ambrocio also completed an Advanced intellectual
‘Property Law course at the Institute of European Studies of Macau in 2006.

‘Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ambrocio was Corporate Counsel and Assistant Corporate

‘Secretary of Chevron Philippines, Inc.

IX. Market Price of the Issuer’s Common Shares

The common shares of the Company are fraded on the PSE under the symbol FOQD. The
Company's commeon stock was first listed on the PSE on November 8, 2006.

The table below sets out the high and low sales prices for the Company’s common shares
as reported on the PSE for the periods indicated.

Table 1: FOOD High and Low Prices: 2013 to 2017

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
High High | High High | High Low | High Low|High Low
Qi 2201 135) 133} 133| 135{ 096| 081 | 057| 0.82| 0.8
Q2 2164 166| 1.10| 1.10 | 166{ 120| 101| 070| 086 | 0.84
Q3 162)| 146| 105| 105| t46) 122| 135( 0.80| 0.79| 0.77
Q4 1.26| 130]| 086} 096 130) 1.09| 106! 079! 062| 0.81

On December 29, 2017, the last trading day for the year, the closing price for FOOD was
PD.82 per share.
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The numbar of shareholders of record as of December 29, 2017 is 200 and the total number
of shares outstanding on that date were 2,489,712,463 net of 287,537 treasury shares.

Public float as of December 31, 2017 is 31.77%.

Dividends

The Company is authorized to declare and distribute dividends to the extent it has
unrestricted retained earnings. Unrestricted retained eamings represent the undistributed
profits of a corporation that have not been earmarked for any corporate purposes. A
corporation may pay dividends in cash, by distribution of property, or by issuance of shares.
Dividends declared in the form of cash or additional shares are subject to approval by the
Company’s Board of Directors.

In addition to Board approval, dividends declared in the form of additional shares are also
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders representing at least two-thirds (2/3)
of the outstanding capital stock. Holders of outstanding common shares as of a dividend
record date will be entitled to full dividends declared without regard to any subsequent
transfer of such shares. SEC approval is required before any property or stock dividends can
be distributed. While there is no need for SEC approval for distribution of cash dividends, the
declaration of cash dividends must be immediately disclosed to the SEC and the PSE in
accordance with the SRC Rule 17. -

The Company has not adopted a specific dividend policy. Nevertheless, the Company has
declared dividends for the years 2007, 2008, 2009, and 2011.

On June 26, 2007, the Company declared a 12.00% stock dividends corresponding fo
64,177,449 shares with a value of US$3.00 million to all stockholders of record as of

‘November 20, 2007, where stocks were subsequently issued on December 17, 2007.

‘On December 3, 2008, the Company declarad cash dividends of Two Centavos (R0.02) per

share with a value of US$252,288.00 {o all stockholders of record as of January 7, 2009 out
of the unrestricted retained eamings. The cash dividends were paid on February 2, 2009.

On December 4, 2009, the Company declared cash dividends of two centavos (90.02) per
share with a value of US$258,430.00 to all stockholders of record as of January 8, 2010 out
of the unrestricted retained eamings. The cash dividends were paid on February 3, 2010.

On August 1, 2011, the Board of Directors of the Company and its stockholders representing
at least two-thirds (%;) of its outstanding capital stock, approved the increase in the
Company’s authorized capital stock from R950,000,000.00 to £1,500,000,000.00, of which
#137,500,000.00 was subscribed and paid by way of stock dividends out of the Company’s
unrestricted retained eamings as of December 31, 2010. The increase in capital stock was
approved by the SEC on November 25, 2011 and the issuance of the 15.78% stock dividend
was completed on January 25, 2012.

In the future, the Company intends to continue to pay dividends out of its unrestricted
retained earnings. The ability to pay dividends, and the amount of such, however, shall
depend on the Company's retained eamings, cash flow requirernents, financial condition,
capital expenditures, and investment requirements during the relevant period.
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Recent Sales of Un'registored or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuance of
Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

There are no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities, including recent issuances of

securities constituting an exempt transaction.

XIH.

Corporate Govarnance

The Company believes that corporate govemance is a necessary component of what
constitutes sound strategic business management, and therefore undertakes all efforts
necessary to create awareness within the organization. :

The Company's corporate govemance principles and practices are principally embodied in
the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws and its amendments, and Manual on
Corporate Govemance. The Company complies with the Revised Code of Corporate
Governance set by the Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Corporate
Governance Guidelines and Listing Rules of the Philippines Stock Exchange (PSE), and
endeavors fo elevate its corporate govemance practices in line with best practices,

The Company's Articles of incorporation, By-Laws and Manual on Corporate'Govemance
may be viewed on the Company’s website (hitp:/ailianceselectfoods.comy).

To ensure adherence fo corporate govemance principles and best practices, the Company
has a Compliance Officer with the rank of Vice President that reports direcily to the
Chairman of the Board. The Compliance Officer constantly monitors and evaluates
compliance of the Directors and officers to its Manual on Corporate Govemance.

Corporate Governance Updates

~ The Company filed its revised Manual on Comorate Govemance (containing revisions as of July

2014) with the SEC on 31 July 2014.1t also filed its Consolidated Changes to the Annual
Corporate Govemance Report on January 14, 2016. Since then, the Company has filed two
(2) amendments to the Company's ACGR to reflect the changes made after the Company’s
stockholders’ meeting held on March 01, 2016. Al amendments and changes have been
posted in the Company’s website before the prescribed deadline.

In addition, the Company has been regularly submitting corporate govemance surveys as
required by the PSE Memorandum 2010-0574 dated November 26, 2010. Since this
requirement came into force, the Company has been participating in these surveys and filing
it with the Exchange in a timely manner. A Compliance Report on Corporate Govemance
was submitted to the Exchange on March 29, 2016 for the year ended December 31, 2015,

On June 1, 2017, in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 8 Series of 2017,
Alliance Select Foods Intemational, inc. (FOOD) submitted with the SEC its 2017 Corporate

Govemance Manual. The same was adopted by the Board of Directors of FOOD in a special
meeting held on May 30, 2017. '

The Company plans to adopt a whistleblowing policy, and a code of business ethics.
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' ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS

AFLRLIEELF FJASTIN OWRANE

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Mammmofmmmmmmwmmkmmw
mWwammmdﬁrwﬁemﬁonofmwmmmuﬁmmmmhdmmﬂu
schedules attached therein for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, I accordance
with the prescribed finencial reporting framework indicated thereln, and for such intemal
tontrol as management determings Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fizud or emor,

In preparing the consolidaved financial statements, monagement is responsible for
assessing the Group’s abflity to continue as a going concem, disdosing, as applicable matters
refated to golng concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management
dmerknemkmlimﬂdﬂeﬂnﬁmupnrmmeopelmmm,wlnsnnmhﬁummt

“to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible in oversesing the Group's finandal reporting process,

The Board of Directors mﬂewsarwdapprmﬂlecnmnﬁdmmmushdm
ﬂlescheduhsauachedﬂmam,andsubrn&.sﬂmmmmem«mmg&

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appainted by the stockholders, has audited
the consofidated financial statements of the Growp in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in Rts report to the stockholders or members, has expressed its apinfon on the
faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit.
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ANTONIO CePACIS
Chairman of the Boa
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MA. CRISTINA C. VILLARUZ
Caomptrofler
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THE PIWER 0F BEING UNRERSTOOD

- INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Alllance Select Foods International, Inc.

Unit 1206 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig Clty :

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financlal statoments of Allance Select Foods
international, Inc. (a subsidiary of Strongoak inc.) and Subsldlaries (the “Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financlal position as at December 31, 2017 and 2018, and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes In equity and consolidated
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant sceounting policles.

In our opinion, the consclidated financle! statements present fairly, In all material respects, the
consolidated financlal position of the Group as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and Its consolldated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended, In accordance with
Philippine Financlal Reporting Standards {PFRS}.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audfts fn accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA).  Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audlitors’ Responsibiiities for the
Audit of the Consolidoted Financlal Statements section of our repart. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Phifippines {Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to the audi of the consolidated financial
statements In the Phillppines, and we have fulfllled our other ethical responsibiiities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained s
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinlon.

Key Audft Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professionat judgment, were of most significance in our
audlt of the consolidated financial statemants of the current pertod, These matters were addressed In
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements asa whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

o N ool
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" ReYES TACANDONG & Co.

ation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any irmpaimient in value, The Group is
required to review the recoverable amount of Jts property, plant and equipment whenever there [s an
indication of impalrment losses, Determinatton of the recoverable amount Involves significant estimates
and assumptlons. Total carrylng amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to
$16.10 million or 23% of the total consolidated assets as at December 31, 2017, Our audit procedures
included, among others, review of management’s impairment anelysis and cash flow projections and
evaluation of the assumptions uysed by the Group. We also focused on the adequacy of the Group's
distlosures about those assumptions 1o which the outcome of the Impairment test is most sensitive,
that is, those that have the most significant effact on the determination of the recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment in accordance with PAS 36, The Group’s disclosures are included in
Notes 2, 3 and 11 to the consolidatad finaaclal statements.

Valyatl 0pdwill :
Under Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 36, Impalrment of Assets, the Group (s required to annually
test the amount of goodwill for impairment. This annual Impairment test was signiflcant to our audit
because the assessment process is complex and highly judgmental and is based on assum ptlons that are
affected by future market or economic conditions, The goodwill of $9,50 million represents 13% of the
total consolldated assets as at-December 31, 2017. Qur awudit procedures included, among others,
review of management’s Impairment analysis and cash flow projections and evaluation of the
assumptions used by the Group, We also focused on the adequacy of the Group’s dlsclosures about
those assumptions to which the outcome of the Impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that
have the most significant effect on the determination of the remverable amount of goodwill in
accordance with PAS 36. The Group’s distlosures are included in Notes 2, 3 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements,

Valuation of Inventorles

inventories are Inttially measured at cost and subsequently valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value {NRV). Determination of the NRV of inventories involves significant judgment and s affected by
volatifity of the price in the market. Total Inventories of the Group of $14.15 million represent 20% of
the total consolidated assets as at December 31, 2017. Our audit proredures included an assessment of
the Group’s measurement of the inventories’ NRV and identification of damaged and obsolete items.
We also focused on the adequacy of the Group's disclosures In gccordance with PAS 2, inventories, The
Group's disclosures are included In Notes 2, 3 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

UL LT T



FIUM PRINCHILEA, Wisi SOLUTIONS,

'-' Revis TAcANDONG & Co.

Cther Information

Management Is responsibie for the other information. The other Information comprises the Informatlon
Included In SEC Form 20-1S {Definitive Information Statement), SECForm 17-A and Annual Report for the
year ended Decemhber 31, 2017, but does not fnclude the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon, The SEC Form 20-i$ (Dafinitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2017 are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinfon on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informstion and we will
not express any form of assurance concluslon theregn.

In connaction with our audits of the consolidated financlal statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information fdentified above when it becomes avallable and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially Inconsistent with the consolldated financial statements or ur knowledge
obtalned in the audits or otherwise appears to he materially misstated.

Responsibllities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financiol
Statements

Management (s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal contral 85 managemnent determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from materlal
misstatement, whathar due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a gaing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management eitherintends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no rezlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's fnancial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibifities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Qur objectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the tonsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an autitors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
Buarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement
when It exists, Misstatements can arlse from Fraud or-error and are considered material If, individuaily
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecanomic declsions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidsted financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® [Identlfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consafidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtaln audit evidence that Is suficient angd appropriate to provide a basis for our oplnian. The risk of
not detecting a materfal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one tesulting from
error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional cmisslons, misrepresentations, ar the
override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s Internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

" Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audkt evidence obtalned, whsther a material uncertalnty ex|sts related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, If
wea conclude that a materja! uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures In the consolidated flnancial statements or, if such disclosures are
Inadequate, to medHy our opinlen. Our concluslons are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or congitiors may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements
Including disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represant the underlying
transactions and events In a manner that achieves falr presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the finandial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including ary significant deficiencies in
internal control that we Identify during our audits.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them af| relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, refated
safeguards.

LT
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PIRM PRUNCIPLES, WISH SOLUTIONS.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance In the audit of the consolidated financlal statements of the current period and
Bre therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audiiors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes publlc disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated In our report because the adverse consegusnces
of doing so would reasonably be expected to owtwelgh the public interest benefits of such
tommunication. '

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this Independent auditors’ report [s Emmanuel V.
Clarino.

REYES TACANDONG & CD,

G D O,

EMMANUEL V. CLARIND

Partner
CPA Certlftcate No. 27455
Tax tdentification Ne. 102-084-004-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valld untll December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A
Vatid until March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. GR-005144-005-2017
Valid until January 13, 2020
FTR No. 6507954
lssued fanvary 3, 2018, Makat) City

March 23, 2018
Makat! City, Metro Manlla
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBBI
{A Subsidlary of Strongoak Int.)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITE\! e " D
RECEIVED m{.l .-:.:' ' u.'r iy ¥
FORM wnfiL lty s _)
Becember 3&
Note 2017 1 2016
ASSETS
Current Agsety
Cash and cash equivalents 7 $4,427,478 37,396,343
Trade and other receivables g 5,414,233 8,724,508
inventorias 9 14,154,871 7,953,765
Other current assets 10 5,612,224 1,468,380
Tatal Current Assets 33,608 806 23,543,396
Noncurrant Assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 15,104,369 17,007,323
Deferred tax assets 26 9,721,323 8,273,039
Gaodwif! 9,502,585 9,502,585
Other noncurrent assets 12 1,581,487 1,534,944
Total Noncurrent Assets 36,909,764 36,317,891
$70,518,570 §59,861,287
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabllltles
Trade and other payablas 13 $9,745,224 $6,070,258
Lo&ns payable 14 24,285,900 20,830,183
Due to related parties 15 2,142,510 135,112
Income tax payable 184,688 51,571
Total Current Liabilitles 36,358,322 27,128,124
Noncurrent tabilities
Loans payable - net of current portion 14 79,355 54,446
Net retirement benefit obligation 16 239,627 184,914
Defarred tax llabilities 26 135,957 289,201
Refundabie |eese deposlts 21811 92,395
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 471,750 620,956
Total Liabilities 36,830,072 27,749,080
Equity
Capltal stock 17 53,646,778 53,646,778
Additlonal pald-in capital 6,662,001 6,662,001
Other comprehensive income 933,149 548,999
Deficit {25,231,797} (26,669,068)
36,010,131 34,588,710
Treasury shares 17 {5,774} (5,774)
Equity attributable ta equity holders of the Parent
Company 96,004,357 34,582,936
Non-controlling interests {2,315,859) (2,470,729)
Total Equity 33,688,498 32,112,207
$70,518,570 559,861,287

See oteomponying Notes to Consolidated Finoncial Stotements,



ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended Dacamber 31
Note 017 2014 2015
NET REVENUE 18 $72,191,578 455,914,477 $67,915,690
COS5T OF GOODS SOLD 19 (62,742,916) {56,446,802) (21,096,123)
GROSS PROFIT 9,445,662 3467675 6,819,567
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 20 {8,117,124) (7,857,915) (18,744,748}
INTEREST EXPENSE _ 14 (787,547) {868,517) {1,503,051)
EQUITY I NET INCOME fLOSSES) OF
ASS0CIATE 12 26,081 19,771 {26,024)
GAIN QN ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 4 - - 3,471,040
GAIN ON REMEASUREMENT OF PREVIOUSLY
HELD INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 4 - - 2,356,202
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) - Net 21 (2,559) 561,115 (167,979)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 562518 (4,777,871}  (8,194,953)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE {BENEFIT) 16 {1,000,533) 1,120,398 (172,177
NET INCOME (LOSS) 1,563,052 (5,898,769) {8,022,816)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCORE (LOSS}
ltems that will be reclassiffed subsequentiy to
profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations {15,850} {105,034) 815,312
Share In other comprehensive loss of 2 ioint
venture - - (14,505)
ftem that will not be reclassified subsequently to :
profit or Joss _
Remeasurement gain on retirement benefits
{net of tax) 16 - 103,542 75,094
{15,850) {1,452) 875,901
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS} $1,547,202 (35,900,261}  {$7,146,915)
NET INCOME {LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent Company $1,437,271 ($5,968,529)  {$6,392,392)
Noncontroliing Interests 125181 59,760 {1,630,424)
$1,563052  ($5,898,769)  ($8,022,816)
TOTAL COMPREMENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: :
Equity holders of the Parent Company $1,392.382  ($5918,511)  ($5,576,750)
Noncantrolling interests 154,870 18,250 (1,570,165}
$1,547,202  ($5,900,261) {$7,146,915)
INCOME (LOSS} PER SHARE
Basic and diluted Income (fass) per share 23 $0.0006 {$0,0024) (50.0038)

See occompanying Notes to Consolidated Fnoncig) 5 totements.



ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
' (A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31
Note 2017 2016 2015
EQUITY ATTRIBUYABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY
Caphtal Stock 17 _
Balance at beginning of year $53,646778  $53,646,778  $32,238,544
Addltional subscription - - 21,408,234
Balance at end of year 53,646,778 53,646,778 53,646,778
Additional Pald-In Capleal
Balance &t beginning of year 6,662,001 6,662,001 6,768,843
Stock issue cost - - (106,842}
Balance at end of year 6,662,001 6,662,001 6,662,001
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Cumulative Remeasurement Gains {Losses) on
Retirement Benefit Obiligation 16
Balance at beginning of year 55,190 {48,352) {123,446)
Remeasurement gain on retirement ~ 103,542 75,094
Balance at end of year 55,190 55,190 {48,352)
Revaluation Reserves
Balance at beginning of year 275 275 86,457
Effect of deconsclidation - ~ {71,671
Share in other comprehensive loss of a Joint
venture - - (14,505)
Balance at end of year 275 275 275
Cumulative Translatlon Adjustment '
Balance at beginning of year 893,534 598,568 183,256
Exchange differences on foreign currency
transfation {15,850) {105,034} 815,312 .
Balance et end of year 877,684 893,534 998,568
Total balance at end of year of other
comprehensive income 933,149 948,959 850,491
Defick
Balance at beginning of year (26,669,068)  (20,700,539) | 14,898,404}
Effect of deconsofidation - - 590,257
Net income {loss) 1,437,171 {5,968,529) {6,392,392)
Balance at and of year (25,231,797) {26,569,068} {20,700,539)
Treasury Shares i7 {5,774) {5,774) (5,774}
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Palance at beginning of year {2.470,729] (2,488,579} {914,214)
Total comprehensive income {loss) sttributable
to non-cantrolling interests 154,070 18,250 (1,570,165)
Balance at end of year {2,315,859) {2,470,729) {2,488,979)
$33,688,408 $32,112,207  $38,063,978

Se¢ accampanying Notes ta Conealidated Elnancial Statements.



ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsldiary of Strongoak inc.}

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended Decembar 31
Mote 017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
income {loss) before income tax $562518  {§4,777,871) {$B,194,953}
Adjustments for; '
Depreclation and amortization 11 1,150,597 1,147,554 1,184,928
Provision for impairment losses on: 20
Property, plant and equlpment 1,090,400 - 2,730,177
Inventories 230,780 794,010 5,298,817
Trade and other recelvables 69,574 79,048 315,318
Other noncurrent assets - 314,320 628,480
interest expense 14 787,541 868,517 1,903,051
Interest income 7 {70,965) (159,133) (175,890)
Gain on disposal/retirement of property,
plant
and equipment 21 (58,518) (12,078) (4,418)
Retirement benefits expense i6 50,302 82,315 74,093
Unrealized foreign axchange (gain) loss - net {46,264) 88,482 678,965
Equity In net (income) losses of joint ventures
and associate 12 {26,081 {18,771). 26,024
Reversal of aliowance for impairment losses
on inventorles 21 - - (436,277)
Gzin on acquisition of subsidiary 4 - - (3,471,040)
Gain on remeasurement of previausly held
interest 4 - - (2,356,202}
Loss on restructuring of receivable 21 - - 556,879
Gain on disposal of investment 21 - - (371,280}
Operating income (loss) before working capital
changes 3,739,790 (1,584,606)  {1,613,368)
Decrease (increase} in:
Trade and other receivables (2,758,898}  (1,402,586) 3,581,355
Inventories (6,431,386)  (2,025319) 6,572,552
Other current assets (4,143,894) (371,614) 565,597
Other noncurrent assets (25,425) 47,413 (1,688,749}
Increase (decreasa) In trade and other payahbles 3,329,733 185,218 (3,360,151)
Net cash generated from {used for) operations (6,290,531} (5,151,464) 4,057,636
{ncome tax paid (507,877) (699,153) {822,616}
Interest received 70,965 90,613 175,850
Contribution to retirement fund 16 - {42,403) {32,965)
Retirement benefits paid from operations 15 - {38,833) -
Net cash provided by {used In} operating
activities (6,727,443} {5,841,240) 3,377,945

{Forward)



Years Ended December 32

Note mz 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment 11 {$1,334114)  ($702,914) ($1,286,072)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and _
equipment 85,116 14,762 254,073
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 4 - - (479,089)
Praceeds from disposal of investment 6 - - 5,000
Net cash used in investing activities {1,245,998) (688,152) {1,506,088}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Availment of lpans 29,164,744 35,590,025 75,093,353
Issuance of shares rd - - 21,408,234
Payments of:
Loans (25,684,118) {38,351,307)  (80,686,263)
[nterast {242 314) {868,517}  {1,956,584)
Advances from related partles 2,006,398 - -
Payment of advances from related parties - - " (18,947)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing :
actlvitles 5,044,710 (3,62%,759) 13,835,793
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS {40,134) {38,445) {542,691)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,968 865) {10,198,636) 15,168,952
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,396,343 17,594,979 2,426,020
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR 7 $4,427478 $7,396,343 $17,594,979
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 7
Cash on hand $4,029 54,621 $15,94¢
Cash In banks 4,415,573 3,710,241 3,416,569
Cash equivalents ' 74876 3,681,481 14,162,466
$4,027478  $7,396,343  $17,504,979

See acrompanying Notes to Cansolidated Financhal Statements.




ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak inc.}
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1, Corporate Information

General Information

Alliance Select Foods International, inc. (ASFIl or the “Parent Company®), a public comoration under
Section 17.2 of the Securitles Ragulation Code (SRC), was Incorporated In the Philippines and
reglstered with the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) on September 1, 2003. The Parent
Company Is pimarily engaged In the business of manufacturing, canning, imperting and exporting of
food products such as marine, aguaculture and other processed seafoods. lts shares are fisted In
the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) since November 8, 2008,

Strongoak Inc. (Strongoak), the immadiate parent of ASFll, owns a total of 1,382,765,863 ASFl
common shares, representlng 55.32% ownership {see Note 17). Strongoak tnc., is a domestic
company engaged in Investment acthvities,

On July 20, 2017 and September 7, 2017, the Board of Directors {EOD) and stockholdess,
respectively, approved the Parent Company’s equity restructuring by reducing the par value of Its
shares and applying the resulting excess and additionat paid-in tapital against the Parent Company’s
deficit. On March 23, 2018, the equity structuring was approved by the SEC (see Note 17).

The Parent Company’s registered office address, which s aiso Its principal place of business, is at
Unit 1206 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City.
The Parent Company has a plant located In Brgy. Tambler, General Santos City, Philippines.

Subsijdiarles

The consolldated financial statements include t he accounts of ASFIl and the following subsidiarles
{collectively referred herein as the “Group”} as at December 31, 2017 and 2016;

Principat Place of

Name of Subsidiary % of Cwnership Nature of Business Businpss

Salmon and other seafoods United $tates of

Spence & Company Ltd. {Spence} 100 procesing Arnerlea
BIg Glory Bay Saimon and Saimonand other seafoods

Seafood Company, inc. {BGR) 100 procesting Philippines

ASFI Thalland ’ 100 Sales office Thalland

PT International Alllance Food .

" Indoneska (PTIAFT) 99.98 Canned fish procassing Indeneslia
Alliance MHI Properties, Inc. [AMHI) 98,89 Leasing Philippines
Akaroa Salmon {N2) Ltd, {Akaroa) 80 Salm;ﬁ::::: and New Zezland
PT Van De 2¢e (PT VDZ) ™ 49 Fishing Indonesla

(a] indinect ownership interest through PTIAF!,
{b) WNo operations in 2017 and 2015,

Spence. Spence is based in Brocktan, USA and specializes in the production of smoked salman and
other seafood products.
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BGB. BGB Js engaged in manufacturing goods such as salmoen and other processed seafoods. It was
reglstered with the Phillppine SEC in October 2003 and its reglstered office Is lacated at Suite 1206,
East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. its plant
facilitles are located in Barrlo Tambler, General Santos City.

In 2016, the ASFil canverted advances of $2.57 miflion to capitel stock of BGE.
ASFi Thaitand. ASFI Thalland was established as a sales representative offfce,

FTIAFI and PT VOZ PTIAFI was established under the indonesian Foreign Capital Investment Law and
Is primarily engaged In canned flsh pracessing exclusively for international market, The plant is
located at JL Raya Madidir Kelurahan Madidir Unet Ling. il Kecamatan Madldir, 8itung indonesia,

PTIAFI owns 49% of PT VDZ, a fishing company. PT VDZ's aperation Js integrated with the tuna
processing activities of PTIAFL As at December 31, 2016, PT VDZ ceased operations.

AMHL AMH! was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the SEC on june 18, 2010 as a
property holding company. The registered address and principal office of AMHI Is at Purok Saydala,
Barangay Tambler, General Santos City.

On December 23, 2015, ASFil converted advances of $0.29 milion as partial payment of Its
subscription to 54,000,000 voting preferred shares of AMH., The subscription resulted to the
increase in Parent Company's effective voting ownership interest In AMHI from 20% to 98.89%
(see Note 4},

Akaraa. Akaroa, 8 company Incorporated and domiched in New Zealand, is engaged in sea cage
salmon farming and operates two masine farms in Akaroa Harbor, South New Zealand, Kt Processes
fresh and smoked saimon. Akaroa holds 20% stake In Salmon Smolt NZ Ltd. (SSNZ), an entlty
operating a modern hatchery, which quarantines and consistently supplies high quality smolts
(luvenile saimon) for Akaroa’s farm,

Status of Oparationg

Management Is undertaking necessary inltiatives to Improve operation and maintain flnanctal
stability, With these inittatives, which include expanding the Group's global market, targeting key
accounts, improving efficlencies across all areas of oparations and better inventory management
and raw materlai sourcing, the Group has generated a consolfdated net income of $1.56 million for
the year ended December 31, 2017, '

As at December 31, 2017, the Group's deficit amounted to $25.23 million, The Group incurred net
losses of $5.50 miltion and $8.02 million In 2016 and 2015, respeciively, because of losses sustained
by ASFil and three of its subsidiaries {BGB, PTIAF! and PT VDZ} Inthe previous vears, The losses were
primarily due to decline In volume of sales as & result of restrictive regulations In Indonesla,
termination of Prime Foods New Zealand {PFNZ) as a customer aFter ASFIl divested its fnvastment in
PENZ {see Note 6}, and the inherent volatiiity in raw material prices.

The Group has recognized Impalrment losses in inventories of $023 In 2017, $0.79 million in 2016
and $5.30 million in 201S, property, plant and equipment and other noncurrent assets {mainly
fishing vessels and related CIF} of $1.09 million in 2017, $0.31 miilion in 2016 and $3.35 miflion In
2015, Management racognized the loss on the fishing vessel because of the discontinuance of the
Graup's flshing operatlon in 2015. In 2017, PTIAFI recoghlzed additlonal provision on impairment
loss of $1.09 million on Its property, plant and equipment based on the recoverable valua
assessment.
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In 2017, the BOD and stockholders of ASFil decided to undertake an equity restructuring. This will
result to the elimination of ASFirs capltal deficlt of $32.00 million, which the SEC approved on
March 23, 2018.

ASFIl's immediate parent has infused total capltal of $30.3 million to sustaln the Group's operations
and in 2017, exiended a Yoan of $2.00 miflion {equivalent to #100.00 million) 1o ASFI! {see Note 15).

Approval anclal Statem ]
The consolldated financlal statements were approved and authorized for issuance by the BOD on
March 23, 2018,

Summary of SignHicant Accounting Policies

The slgnificant accounting policies used in the preparation of the consolidated financlal statements
are consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

Bysls of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in
accordance with Philippine Financlal Reporting Standards (PFRS). This fnancial reporting framework
includes alf applicable PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and Interpretations issued by
the Internatione! Financlal Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and adopted by the SEC,

The consolidated financial statements comprise the statements of financlal position, statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, satements of cash flows, and notes
thereto, Income and expenses, excluding the components of other comprehensive income, are
recognized in the statements of comprehensive income. Reclassification adjustments are amounts
reclassified to profit or loss In the current perlod that were recognized In other comprshensive
income In the current or previous periods. Transactions with the owners of the Group in thelr
capacity as owners are recognized In the statements of changesineaquity.

Measurement Bases

The consolldated financial statements are presented ip United States (U.S.} Dollar, the functional
currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the Parent Company operates. All values
are rounded to the nearest U.S. Dollar, except when atherwise statad.

The consolidated financlal statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost
is generaily based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of assets and falr value of
the consideration recelved In exchange for incurring a liabllity.

Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid ta transfer a liabllity in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Group uses market
observable data to the extent possible when measuring the fairvalie of an asset or a ilability.



Falr values are categorized Into different levels in a falr value hierarchy based on inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

* Levei1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilltles

* Level2Z - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signlficant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly abservable

* Level3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value
measurament is unobservabla

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a Nablllty might be categorized in different
levels of the falr value hierarchy, then the fair velue measurement is tategorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the fowest level input that Is significant to the entire
measuremant.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the falr valus hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is induded In Note 27 to
the consolidated finencial staterents,

Adoption ew A PF .

The accounting policles edopted are consistent with those of the previous financial yesr, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Group adopted effective for annual
perlods beginning on or after January 1, 2017:

* Amendments to PAS7, Statement of Cash Flows - Disdosure initigtive — The amendraents
require entitles to provide information that enable the users of financlal statements to evaluate
changes in lfabllities arlsing from financing activities.

¢ Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses ~ The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assats related to unrealized
losses on debt instruments measured at fair value, to address diversity in practice.

* Amendment to PFRS 12, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities - Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard ~ The amendment is part of the Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle
and clarifies that the disclosure requirements In PFRS 12, other than those relating to
summarized financial informatlon, apply to an entity’s Interestin a subsidiary, a joint vanture or
&n associate {or a portion of its Intarest in a joint venture or an assoclate) that Is classified
{or Included In a disposal group that is classifled) as heid for sale,

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any materlal effact on the
consolidated financial statements. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes ip
Financial statements, as applicable.
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ew and A RS In Issu But Not Yet

Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2017
and have not been applied In preparing the consolidated financial statements are summarized
below.

Effective for annvat periods beginning on or after January 1, 2048;

PERS 9, Financlal instruments — This standard will replace PAS39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and tdeasurement {and all the previaus verslons of PFRSS). R contains
requirements for the classification and measurement of financlal assets and financial llabllities,
impalrment, hedge accounting, recognition and deracognition.

PFRS 5 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or
falr value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income}, depending oh the
classification by reference to the business model within which these are held and Its contractual
cash flow characteristics.

For financial liabilitles, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where tha falr value
option is taken - the amount of change In falr value of a Ainanclal Nability deslgnated as at fair
value through proflt or loss that Is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that Nabllity is
recognized in other comprehensive Income {rather than In profit or loss), unless this creates an
accounting mismatch.

For the impalrment of financial assets, PFRS 9 Introduces an “expected credit loss” madel based
on the concept of providing far expacted losses at inception of a contract; recognition of a cradit
loss should no fonger wait for there to be objective evidence of Impairment.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 Introduces a substantial averhaul allowing financlal statements to
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-
financial risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contrgct with Customers — The new standard replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related interpretations. It establishes a single
comprehensive framework for ravenue recognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle {based on a flve-step madel to be applied to
all contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or improved guidance {e.g. the
point at which revenue is recognized, accounting for varlable considerations, costs of fulfilling
and obtaining a contract, ete.).

Amendment to PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarification to PFRS 15 — The
amendments provide clarifications on the following topits: {a) Identifying performance
obligations; (b) principal versus agent considerations; and {c} licensing. The amendments alsg
provide some transition relief for modifled contracts and tompleted contracts.
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* Amendments to PAS 28, investments in Assoclgtes and Joint Ventures - Measuring an Assoclate
or Jolnt Venture at Fair Value ~ The amendments are part of the Annual improvements to PFRS
2014-2016 Cycle and clarify that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an
investment in an associate or a Jjoint venture that Is held by an entity that Is a venture capital
organization, mutual fund, unk trust or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment

.

In an associate or joint venture onan Investment-by-investment bass, upon initiat recognition.

* Phillppine interpretation [FRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions ond  Advance
Consideration — The interpretation provides guidance clarifying that the exchange rata to use in
transactions that involve advance consideration paid or recelved In a foreign currency Is the one
at the dete of Initlal recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or daferred income
liability.

Effective for annual perlods beginning on or after January 1, 2019-

¢ PFRS16, Leases — This standard replaces PAS 17, Leases and its refated interpretations. The
most significant change imtroduced by the new standard is that almast all leasas will be brought
onto lessees’ statament of financial position under a single model (except [eases of less than
12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction between operating and
finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the distinction
between operating and finance lease Is retained,

Deferred effectivity -

* Amendment to PFRS 10, Consoliduted Financiol Statements and PAS 28, Investments in
Associotes and Jolnt Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and its
Assoclate or Joint Venture - The amendments address a current conflict between the two
standards and clarify that a gain or loss should be recognized fully when the transaction involvas
a business, and partially if It involves assets that do not constityte a business, The effective date
of the amendments, initially set for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, was
deferred indefinitely in December 2015 hut earfier application ls still permitted,

Management has initlally assessed that the adoption of PFRS 9, PFRS 15 and PFRS 16 might have a
significant effect on amounts reported In the Group’s financlal assets and ilabilities, revenue and
leases. However, it Is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detalied
review has been compieted.

Basls of Consolldation

A subsidiary Is an entity in which the Group has control. The Group controls a subsidiary if it is
expused or has rights to variable retums from its involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the subsidlary. Conirol Is generally accompanied by a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential vating
rights that are substantive are considered when assessing whether the Graup controls an entlty.
The Group re-assesses whether or not It controls an entity If facts and clreumstances Indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements af control.
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The financial statements of the Subsidiaries are inciuded in the consolidated financial statements
from the date when the Group obtains control and continue 1o be eonsolidated unti! the date when
such control ceases. The rasuits of operations of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed are Included
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive Income from the date of acquisition or up to the
date of disposal, as appropriate, '

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same reporting perod of the
Parent Company. Consolidated financtal statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies
for like transactions and other events in stmilar elrcumstanices, Intercompany balences and
transactions, including intercompany profits and unrealized profits and losses, are eliminated in full.

A change In ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change in control, Is accounted for as an
equity transactlon. Upon the loss of contro , the Group derecognizes the assets (Including goodwili)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling Interests end the other components of equity
reiated 1o the subsidiary. Gain or ldss arising fram the loss of control is recognized in profit or loss.
If the Group retalns Interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest Is measured at fajr value
at the date contral is Jost. Subsequently, [t Is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an
avalfable-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of interestretained,

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not heid by the
Group, presented within equity in the consolidated statements of financlal position, separately from
equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company. Non-controlling interests represent
the Interests of minority shareholders of PTIAF, PT VDZ, Aksroa and AMH,

usiness Combination and Goodwili
Acquisitlons of businesses are accounted for using the acqwistion method, The acquisttion cost is
measured as the sum of the considerations transferred, measuredat acquisition date falr vajue and
the amount of any non-controiling Interest In the acquiree. For each business comblnation, the
Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree elther at fair vaive or
at the proportionste share of the acquiree's identiflable net assets. Acquisitlon costs incurred are
expensed and included in generel and administrative expenses,

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financlal asets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date, This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives n host contracts by tha acquiree.

When the business combination is achleved in stages, any previously heid nor-controlling interest is
re-measurad at the date of obtaining control and 3 giain or foss is retognized in proft or Joss.

If the initlal accounting for a business combination is Incomplete a5 at the reporting date In which
the combination occurs, the Group reports in ks consolidated financlal statements provisiong}
amounts for the items for which the accounting s Incomplete. During the measurement perlod, the
Group retrospectively adjusts the provisional amounts and recognlzes additional assets or labilities
to reflect new informatlon obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. The measurement period ends at the date the Group receivesthe Information about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date or learns that more infarmation is not
obtainable, but should not exceed one year from the ecquisition date.
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Goadwill, which arose from the acquisitions of Spence {$7.45 million} in 2011 and Akaroa
{$2.05 million} In 2012, Is initially measured at the acquisition date as the sum of the fair value of
consideration transferred; the recognized amount of any non-contrelling interest in the acquiree;
and, if the business combination Is achieved In stages, the fair value of existing equity interest in the
acquiree less the fair value of net identifisble assets acquired and llabliities assumed, f this
consideration ks lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the bargain
purchase gain Is recognized directly in profit or loss. The consideration transferred does not include
amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally
recognized In profit or loss.

After inltial recagnltion, goodwlll is measured at cost less any accumulated Impairment losses. For
impalrment testing, gaodwll| acquired In a business combinaton is, from the acgulsition date,
aliocated to each of the entity’s cash-generating units or group of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergles of the combination, irresgective of whether other assets or
labilities of the entity are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of unlits to
which goodwill is- allocated represents the lowest level within tha entity at which goodwili is
monitored for internal management purposes.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit or group of cash generating units and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed
operation is included In the camrylng amount of the operation in determining the gain or loss on
dispassl. Goodwill disposed in this clrcumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
disposed operstion and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Enancial Assets and tiabllitles

Financlal assets and ffabillties are accounted for as follows:
a. Recognition

Financlal assets and llablities ara recognized In the consolidated statements of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of a flnancial
Instrument. Financlal instruments are initially measured at falr value which includes transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisltion (e.g. fees, commissions, transfer taxes, etc.).
However, transaction costs related to the acquisition of finangial instruments classlfled as falr
value through profit or loss (FVPL) are recognized immediately In profit or loss. The Group uses
trade date acoounting to account for financial instruments.

“Day 1" Difference. The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial
recognition is its transaction price unless the transaction price differs from its fair value. The
best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an sctive market. If the market for a finenclal
instrument is not active, the Group determines fair value by using a valuation technigue whose
variables Include data from observable markets, The difference between the transaction price
and the fair value (a “day 1" difference) is recognized in profit or loss, unless it qualifies for
recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where the valuation model uses unobservable
data, the difference between the transaction price and the model vealue is only recognized in
profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when theinstrument is derecognized. For
each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1*
difference.



b. Classification

The Group classifies its finencial assets at initial recognition under the following categorles:
{a) flnancial assets at FYPL, (b} held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, [c) loans and receivables
and (d) avallable-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, Financlal liabilities, on the other hand, are
classlfied as elther financial Ulabilities at FVPL or other financlal liabllities at emortized cost, The
clessiflcation of a financial Instrument targely depends on the Group’s Intentian at acquisition ar
issuance date, '

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group does not have financlal assets and llabliities
classified at FVPL, HTM Investments and AFS financial assets.

Loans and Recelvables. Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
Payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered
Into with the Intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classifled or designated as
AFS financlal assets or financial asset at FYPL. Loans and recelvablas are included in current
assets If maturity is within twelve months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classifled
as noncurrent assats,

After Initial measurement, ioans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for Impairment, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and any transaction costs which are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial Instrument. The amortlzation Is Included
in profit or loss. :

The Group has classified #ts cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recelvables, due from
related parties and deposis as loans and recelvables.

Cash equivalants are short-term highly Hquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amount of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value,

Other Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financlal liabilities are classified In this category if
these are not held for trading or not designated as at FYPL upon the inception of the llability.
These include liabilitles arising from operations or through boriowing,

Other flnancial liabllities are inltially recognized at fair vatie less any directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financlal liabilities are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost Is calculated by taking into account any
related [ssue costs, discount or premlum. Galns and losses are retognized in profit or loss when
the liabllitles are derecognized, as well as through amortization process,

The Group’s trade and other payables (exciuding customers’ deposit and statutory payable),
loans payable, due to related parties and rafundable lease deposits are classified under this
category.
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Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financlal
asset or group of financial assets is Impaired. A financial asset or. group of financlal assets Is
deemed Impaired If, and only If, there Js objective avidence of impalrment as a result of ane or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset {an incurred “loss event’)
and that loss event {or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be estimated reliably.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impaimment exists individually for Its
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for ts financial
assets that ave not individuatly significant, If the Group detemnines that no objective svidence
of impalrmant exists for an individually assassed financlal asset, whether signlficant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment, Assets that are individ ually assessed for impairment
and for which an impalrment loss Is or continues 1o be recognized are net inciuded in a
collective assessment of impalrment.

The impaimment foss 1s measured as the difference between the financlal asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective

“Interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset s reduced through the use of an allowance

account. impairment losses are recognized in full In profitor lbss. Interest income continues to
be recognized on the reduced carrying amount using the interest rate used to discount the
future cash flows for the purposé of measuring the Impairment [oss,

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impalrment was recognized, the previously
recognized Impairment loss Is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal Is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the resulting carrying amount wilt not
exceed the amortized cost determined had no impairment lossbeen recognized in prior years.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized by the Group when:

s : the right to recelve cash flows from the asset has explred; or

¢ the Group retains the right to recelve cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them In full without materlal delay to a third party under a "pass-through”
arrangement; or

* the Group has transferred Its right to recelve cash flows from the asset and elther
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substentially all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has
transferred control over the asset.
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Where the Group has transferred its right to receive cash fiows from an assat or has antered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has heither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset Is recagnized to the
extent of the Group’s continuing Involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred assat, If any, is measured at the lower of original
carrying amaunt of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to pay.

A financial liabllity Is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financlal ltability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabillty are -
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of the new Hability, and the difference in the respective
carrylng amount is recognized in proflt or Joss.

e. Offsetting

Flnancial assets and {fabliitles are offset and the net amount reportad in the consolldated
statements of financlal position if, and only if, there Is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognized amounts and there Is an intention to seltle on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settle the liabllity simuttaneousty. This Is not generally the case with mastar netting
agreements where the relatad assets and labiilties are presented gross in the consolidated
statements of financial position. :

Inventorles

Inventories are initfally measured at cost, Subsequently, Inventorles ara stated st the iower of cost
and net realizable value {NRV}, Cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and
condition is accounted as follows:

Finished Goods and Work in Process. Costs of inventorles are calculated using welghted average
method, Costs comprise direct materlals and when applicable, direct labor costs and those
overheads that have been incurred In bringing the inventorles 1o thelr present location and
condition. NRV represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary ta make the sale :

Raw Materials and Packaging Supplies. Cost is determined using weighted average method. NRV Is
the current replacement cost. '

When the NRY of the invertories s Jower than the cost, the Group pru#ides for an allowance for the
decilne in the value of the inventory and recognizes the wilte~down as an expense in profit or loss,
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, aslsing from an increase In NRY, Is

‘recognized as part of other income or charges In the consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.

When Inventories are sold, the carn,rlng amouat af those inventaries is recognlzed as an expense in
the period when the related revenue Is recognized and the related allowance for Impalrment is
reversed.
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Other Asgets

Other assets include advances to suppliars, value-added tax {VAT), prepayments, creditabls
withholding taxes {CWTs), Investments In assoclate and loint vantures, biclogical assets, intanglble
assets, ldle assets and lease deposits, Other assets that are expected to be realized over no more
than 12 months after the reporting date are classified as current assets. Otherwise these are
classifled as noncurrent assets, :

VAT, Revenue, expenses and assats are recognized net of the amount of VAT except recelvables and
payables that are stated with the amount of VAT Included. The net amount of VAT recoverable from
the taxation authority is included as part of "Other current assets’ account in the consolidated
statements of financial position,

Prepgyments. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets bafore these are
utitized. These are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and recognized In profit or
foss when Incurred. :

CWTs. CWTs represent the amount withheld by the Group’s customers in relation to its income.
CWTs can be utilized as payment for Income taxes provided that these are-properly supported by
certfficates of creditable tax with heid at source.

Investments in an Associate and Joint Ventures, An assoclate Is an entity In which the Group has
significant influence, but not control, over the financia! and operating policies. Significant influence
{s presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20% and 50% percent of the yoting power of
another entity,

A joint venture is 2 type of Joint arrangement whereby the partles that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. foint control is the contractuatly
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the partles sharing contral,

Joint controf is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an amangement, which exists only
when declslons about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
contral, :

The conslderations made In determining significant Influence or loint control are simllar to those

. Recessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in assoclates and Joint ventures are inltieldly carried in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost. Subsequent to inltlal recognition, Investments in associatas
and jeint ventures are measured in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment In an associate or a loint venture Is inltially recognized at
cost, The carrying amount of the Investment Is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group’s share
of net assets of the assoclate or joint ventura since the acqubition date. Goodwill relating to the
assoclate or joint venture is Included In the carrying amount of the Invastment and Is nelther
amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

Upon loss of significant influence over an associate or of joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognizes any retaining investment at its fair vaiue, Any diference hetween
the carrying amount of the investment upon loss of significant influence ot joint control and the falr
vaiue of the retained Interest and proceeds from disposal is recogiized in profit or loss,
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Biological Assets. The Group measures Its blological assets on initlal recognition and at the end of
each reporting period at its fajr value less costs to sell. Bicloglcal assets of the Group comprised
solely of consumable female smoits. They are cultursd during the developmental phase which lasts
for an average period of 14-16 months.

Harvested agricultural produce are alco carried at fair value less estimated casts to sell at hawvest
point,

Gains or losses arlsing on initial recognition of biological asset at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale casts and from a change in falr value lass estimated point-of-sale of biological asset are
included in the consolldated statements of comprehensive Income for the perlod when they arise,

Idie Assets, Idle assets are those which are no longer used in the Group’s operations. These are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment Inss, The Group’s idle assets
are already fully provided with allowance for impairment loss.

Intangible Assets

Acquired Intangible Assets. Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group with finite useful {lves
are inftally measured at cost. At the end of each reporting period, items of intanglble assets
acquired are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impalrment Josses.
Cost includes purchased price, Including Import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates and any directly attributable cost of preparing the mtangible
asset for its intended use,

Suhsequent expanditure is caphtalized only when it increases tha future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates, All other expenditures, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in the consolidated profit or loss as
fncurred,

Amortization of Intangible Assets with Definite Useful Lives. Amortization for salmon farming
Cconsent and fishing license with finite useful life Is calculated over the cost of the asset less Its
residual value,

Amortization is recognized in the consolidated statements of tomprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the useful ife of salmon farming consent and fishing license, from the date
that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied In the asset. The estimated vsefu! life of the salmon
farming consent and fishing license for the current and comparative periods Is 25 years. :

Intangible Asset with Indefinite Useful Life. Intangible asset with indeflnite Wife is not amortized.
However, these assets are reviewed annually to ensure the tarrying value does not exceed the
recoverable amount regardiess of whether an indicator of impaimment is present, The Group
consliders its macrocystic consent having an indeflnite usefiy! life forthe foltowing reasons:

e there have been no established legal or contractual expiration date;
* impracticability of the determination of the intangible assats’ ecavomic usefil lives; and
¢ are expected to generate net cash flows for the Group.
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Derecognition of intongible Assets. An intangible assat is derecognized on dispasal, or when no
future economlc benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arlsing from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
Proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized, '

erty, Plant and Equlpmen .
Praperty, plant and equipment except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation,
amortization and any accumulated impairment In value. Land is stated at cost less any impalrment In
vaiue,

The initfal cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, and any directly atirlbutable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. The cost of self-consiructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other directly attributable costs, the costs of dismantling and

.removing the ftems and restoring the slte on which they are bcated and capitalized borrowing

costs. Purchased software that is Integral to the functionallty of the related equipment is capitelized
as part of the equipment.

Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
a5 repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognled In profit or loss in the year the

costs are (ncurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have

resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtalned from the use of an
item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditures are capitalized as additlonal costs of property, plant and equipment. The cost of
replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized If it is probabie
that the future aconomic benefits embodiad within the component will flow 1o the Group, and lis
cost can be measured reliably, The carrylng amount of the replaced component is derecognized,

When si'gniﬁcanf parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, these
are accounted for as separate Items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straightline method over the folowing
estimated usefui lives of the property, plant and equipment:

Number of Years
Building ' 25
_ 5 {or kease term, whichever is
Leasehold Improvements shorter)
Machinery and equipment 15
Transportation equipmant 5
Plant and offlce furniture, fixtures and equipmant 5

The estimated useful lives and depreclation and amortization methad are reviewed perlodically to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
property, plant and equipmeant.

Fuily depreclated assets are retained In the accounts until they ars no longer in use and no further
charge for depreciation and amenrtization fs made in raspect of those assets.
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When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impaiment in value are removed from the accounts.  Any
resulting galn or loss is recognized In profit ar loss,

Construction-in-progress (CIP) represents properties under construction and is stated at cost,
including cost of construction and other direct costs. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the construction of praperty, plant and equipment are capitalized durlng the construction perlod.
CIP s not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and ready for
operational use,

irment of Nonfinancla} Assets

The carrying amounts of nonfinanclal assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
clrcumstances indicate that the canying amount may not be recoverable. - If any such jndication
exists and when the carrying amounts exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or
cash-generating units are written down to thelr recoverabie amounts. The recoverable amount of
the asset Is the greater of the fair value less cost to sell or value Inuse. The fair value less cost to sell
Is the amount obtainable from the sale of an assat in an arnr's-angth transaction less the cost of
disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that doss not generate largely independent
- tash inflows, the recoverable amount Is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or foss,

An assessment Is made at each reporting date as to whether thers is any indication that previously
recognized impainment losses may no longer exist or may heve decreased. If such Indication exists,
the recoverable amount s estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss Is reversed only if
- there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. In such Instance, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. However, that increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreclation and amortization, had no
impalrment loss been recognized for the asset (n prior years. Suchreversal is recoanized in profit or
loss. After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization charges are adjusted in future years to
allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life,

Goodwill, The Group assesses goodwill for Impairment annually and when circumstances Indicate
that the carrying amount may be impairad. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which the goodwill refates,

Where the recoverable amount of the cash-ganerating units is less than thelr carrying amount, an
impalrment loss is recognized, Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
perlods.

Customers’ Deposits

Customers’ deposits consist of amounts recelved by the Group from its customers as advance
payments for the sale of goods. These are recorded at face amount in the consolldated statements
of financial position and recognized as revenue in profit or loss when the goods for which the
advances were made are defivered to the customers,
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Equity

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital, Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares
Issued. incremental costs, net of tax, incurrad that are directiy attributable to the issuance of new
shares are recognized In equity as a reductlon from related additional paid-in capital {APIC] or
retained earnings. Proceeds or fair value of consideration recelved in excess of par value are
Tecognized as APIC,

Other Comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income pertains to remeasurement gain or loss
on retirement benefits obligation, revaluation reserves and cumulative transtation adjustments.

Deficit. Deflclt represents the cumulative balance of net loss, net of dividend declaration, Deflcit
may aiso Include effect of changes In accounting pollcy as may be required by the standard’s
transitional provision,

Treasury Shores. Own equity instruments which are reatyuired are recognized at cost and
deducted from equity. No galn or loss Is racognizad in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, Issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissved, is
recognized in APIC. Voting rights related to treasury shares are nullified for the Group and no
dividends are allocated to them.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue Is recognized when it is probable that the ecomomic benefits assotiated with the
transactions will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be maasured railably. Revenue
is measured a1 the falr value of the consideration recelved or recelvable, excluding discounts and
returns. The Group has conduded that it is the principal In all of its revenue arrangements, Revenue
is recognized as foliows;

Sale of Goods. Revenue Is recognized, net of sales returns and dlscounts, when the slgnificant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customers, which is narmally upon
delivery to and acceptance of the goods by the buyer,

Rental Income, Revenue isrecognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income. Interest Income is recognlzed in profit or loss using the effective Interest method.
Other Income. Income from other sources is recognized when eamed during the period,

Co! ense Re

Costs and expenses are recognized In profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit
related to a decrease Jn an asset or an increase In a liabllity has arisen that can be measured rellably,

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold s recognized as expense when the related goods are sold.

Selling and Administrative Expenses. Selling expenses constitute costs incurred to sell and market
the goods and services. Administrative expenses constitute cost of administering the husiness. Both
are expensed as Incurred,

Interest Expense, interest expense Is recognized in profit or loss using the effective Interest method.

Other Charges. Expenses from other sources are expensed as incumed,
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are generally expensed as Incurred, Borrowing costs are capltalized if they are
directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a quallfylng asset. Capitalization of
borrowing cost commences when the activitiss to prepare the asset are in progress and
expendItures and borrowing costs are incurred, Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are
substantially ready for thelr intended use.

Leases

The determinatlon of whether an arrangement is, or cantains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at Inception date, This requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and whether the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment s mads after Inception of the lease only if one of
the following applies:

a. thereisa change In contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arra ngement;

b. arenewal option is exercised or axtension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

. thereis s change in the detei'mlnat‘lon of whether fulflilment Is dependent on a specified asset;
or '

d. there s a substantlal change ta the asset.

Where reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change In circumstances gave rise to the reassessment far scenars (a}, {c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b),

Group as Lessee. 1eases where the lessor retains substanilglly all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classifiled as operating leases. Operating lesse payments are recognized as an
expense in profit or loss on a stralght-line basls over the lease term.

Group os Lessor. leases wharé the Group retains substantialy ali the risks and rewards of
ownership are classifled as operating leases. Operating lease rectipts are recognized as an income
i profit or loss on a straight-iine basis over the lease term.

Irement Benefits .
Retirement benefit costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method. This
mathod reflects services rendeted by empioyees up to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries. :

The Group recognizes service costs comprising of current senvice tosts, past service costs, gain or
foss on curtailment and settlements and net interest expense on the retirement benefit fiabflity in

profit or loss,

The Group determines the net interest expense on retirement benefit liability by applying the
discount rate to the net retirement benefit liability at the beginning of the year, taking inte account
any changes in the fiability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments,

Remeasurements of the net retirement benefit liabHity, which consist of actuartal gains and [osses
and the return on plan asset (excluding amount charged [n net Interest) are recognized immediately
in other comprehensive Income (OCI) and are not raclassified to profitor loss in subsequent periods.
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The net ratirement benefit liability recognized by the Group is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plap asset, The present value of defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest
rates of governmant bonds that have tarms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
retirement beneflt liabllity,

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficlent regularity so that the amounts recognized in the
consalidated financlal statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be
determined at the reporting date,

Income Taxes

Current tax. Current tax is the expacted tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

beferred tax. Deferred tax is provided on ail temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying amounts for financtal reporting purposes.

Deferred tax llabilities are recogalzad for all taxable temporary differances. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, pet operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT), to the extent that it Is probable that future texable profit
will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the canyforward benefits
of NOLCO and MCIT can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it Is no longer probabla that sufficient future taxable profit will be avallabie to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and labilitles are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset Is realized or the fiability is settled, based on tax rate (and tax laws) in effoct
at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to Items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside proflt ar loss,
Deferred tax items are recognized in refation to the underlying transaction elther in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Offsetting. Current tax assets and current tex liabilities are offset, or deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilitles are offset If, and only if, an enforceable right exists to set off the amounts and -
it can be demonstrated without undue cost or effort that the Company plans either to settla an a
net basis or to realize the asset and settle the llability simultaneously.

orel n enominated Transaction nsiatlo;
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated flnancial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are inltially recorded using the exchange rate at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liablilties denominated in forelgn currenctes are restated using
the closing exchange rate prevalling at the reporting date. Exchange gains or Ipsses arising from
forelgn exchange transactions are creditad to or charged against operations for the year.
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nvestments in assoclates and subsidiaries whose functional currency Is other than US Dollar are
translated to US Dollar using the closing exchange rate prevalling at the reporting date. The Group's
share in the resuits of operations of the forelgn investee is transiated using the exchange rate at the
dates of the transactions or, where practicable, the rate that Bpproximates the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions, such as the average rate for the perlod. Any resulting exchange

difference Is recognized as a Separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary
ftems are included in profit or Joss for the period. Exchange differences ansing on the retransiation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included In profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation on non-monetary [tems in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in othar comprehensive income. :

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financlal statements, the assets and liabliities of the
Group’s foreign operations (Including comparatives) are expressed in US dollars using exchange
rates prevailing at the and of the reporting period. Income and expense ltems
(Including comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences, if any, are recognised it other comprehensive income
and accumulated In a separate component of equity under the header of foreign currancy
translation reserve, '

On the dispesal of a foreign eperation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a fareign
operation, or a disposal invelving ioss of control over a subsidiery that Includes a foreign operation),
ail of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are veclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange differences that have previously been attributed o
non-controiling Interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassifled to profit or loss.

el P ela hl d Re} Tran,
Related party relationships exist when gne party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant Influence over the other
party in making financial and operating dacisions. Such relationships also exist hetween andfor
among entities which are under common tontrol with the reporting enterprise, or between and/or
among the reporting enterprises and their key management personnel, directors, or its
stockholders. ' :

A related party transaction Is a trensfer of resources, services or obligations batween a reporting
entity and a related party, regardiess of whether a price is charged, '

Provistong

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obilgation {legal or constructive) as a resuit
of past event, It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will he
required to settla the obligation, and a reliable estimate’can te made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of reporiing perod and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Contingencles

Contingent liabilitles are not recognized In the consalidated finandial statements, These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial stetements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote, Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. )



. -20-

ven ar the Ri f a
The Group identifias subsequent avents as events that occurred after the reporting date but before
. the date when the consalidated financial statements were authorized for issue. Any subsequent
event that provides additional information abaut the Group's financlal position at the reporting date
Is reflected in the consolldated financial statements. Non-adjusting subsequent events are disclosed
in the notes to the cansolidated financial statements, when materlal,

Income (Loss) per Shera

The Group presents baslc and diluted income (Joss) per shara data For its common shares.

Baslc income {loss) per share is calculated by dividing the nat income (loss} attributable to commen
shareholders of the Parent Company by the welghted avergge number of common shares issued
and outstanding during the year, There are no potantial dilutive shares.

rati ments
For management purposes, the Group is divided into operating segments per products/service,
{tuna, salmon, and rental) according to the nature of the products and services provided, The
Group's Identified operating sagments are consistent with the segments reported to the BOD whith
Is the Group’s Chief Operating Declsion Maker. Flnanclal Infomatlon on operating segments is
presented jn Note 29,

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptians

The preparatlon of the Group's consolidatad financial statements requires managemant to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the repoted amaunts of revenue, expenses,
assets and fiabllities and disclosure of contingent liablilties, at the end of the reporting perlod.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates coufd resuit in outcome that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying emount of the assetor liablltty affected in the future.

The estimates and underlylng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to
accounting estimates are racognized In the period when the estimate is revised If tha revision
affects only that perlod or In the period of the revision and future periods If the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The Group believes that the following represent a summary of these significant Judgments,
estimates and assumptions and the related Impact and assoclated risks In the consolidated financial
statements:

Assessing Going Concern. The Group’s management has made an assassment of the Group's abillty
o continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management Is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group‘s abiiity to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements conthue to be prepared on a going
concern basis,

Determining Functional Currency. Based on management’s assessmant, the functional currency of
the entities in the Group has been determined to be the US Dollar, except for certain subsidiaries
whose functional currency is the New Zealand Dollar and Phillppine Peso, The US Dollar is the
currency that mainly Influances the operations of mast of the entities within the Group,
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Assessing Acguisition of a Business. The Parent Company acquired a subsidlary which owns real
estate, At the time of acquisition, the Parent Company considers whether the acquisition represents
an acquisition of a business ar g group of assets, An entity accounts for an acquisttion as a business
combinatlon if it acquires an integrated set of business processes In addition to its current business.
The consideration is made to the extent that the significant business processes are acquired and the
additlonal servioss to be provided by the subsidiary,

Management has assessed that the acquisition of AMHI In 2015 constitutes 2 business [see Note 4},

Determining Control Over Subsidiories. Control is presumed to exlst when an investor is exposed, or
has rights, to variable retums from ts Invalvement with the subsidiarles and has the abllity to affect
those returns through Its power over the subsidlaries, Management has determined that by virfue
of its majority ownership of voting rights or by the power to cast the majority of votes through Its
representatives in the BOD of AMHI and PTVDZ as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Parent
Company has the ability to exerclse controf over these subsidiarles.

Determining Reportuble Operating Segments. The Group hgs determined that it has reportable
segments based on the following thresholds:

a, s reported revenue, including both sales to extemal customers and intersegment sales ar
transfers, is 10% or more of the combined revenue, Intemal and external, of all operating
segments. .

b. The absolute amount of its reported profit or loss Is 10% or more, in absolute amount, of
(i) the combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a loss and
{il) the combined reported loss of all operating segments that teported a foss,

. Its assets are 10% or more of the combined assets of all operaling segments.

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds may be considered
reportable, and separately disclosed, If management believes that information about the segment
would be useful to users of the consofidated financial statements.

Accounting for Interest in o loint Operation, The Group has, after considering the structure and form
of the contractual arrengement, the terms agreed by the paities and the Group's rights and
obligations classified Its interest in a Joint arrangement with FDCP, inc. (FDCP) and Wild Catch
Fisheries, Inc. (WCF)} as a Jolnt venture under PFRS 11, As a consaguence, the Group accounts for
the assets, liabilitles, revenues and expenses relating to [ts interest in the Joint operatien only to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the Joint venture.

Classifying Leases - Group as a Lessee, The Group has an operating lease agreement for its office
site. The Group has determined that the risks and rewards of ownership refated to the leased
property are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the agreementis accounted for as an operating
lease.

Rent expense arising from operating lease amounted to $050 million, 30.75 miltion and
$0.82 mitlion in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 24),

Classifying Leases - Group as Lessor. The Group has entered Into Jease agreement on its parcel of
land. The Group has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the property. Accordingly, these leasas are accounted for as operating leases.
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- Rent income amounted to $63,535 and $59,607 in 2017 and 2016, respactively (see Note 24).

Estimating impalrment Losses on Financlal Assets. The Group malntains allowance for impairment
losses at a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The leve] of
this allowance Is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the coliectability of the
accounts. Thesa factors include, but are not limitad to, signiftcant financlal difficulties or bankruptey,
the length of the Group’s refationship with the customer, the customer payment behavior, and
known market factors. The Group Identifies and provides for specific sccounts that are doubtful of
cellection and reviews the age and status of the remeining receivables and establishes a provisfon
considering, among others, historical collection and write-off experience.

Trade and other receivables, receivable from WCF! and receivable from PFNZ, net of alfowance for
impairment losses, aggregated $10.41 million and $7.79 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Allowance for impaiment losses aggregated $4.19 millon and $4.18 miliion as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively {see Notes 8 and 12).

Estimating NRV of inventarfes. The NRV of inventorles represents the estimated salling price for

JInventorles less all estimated costs of completion and cast necessary to make the sale. The Group

determines the estimated selling based on the recent sale fransaction of similar goods with
adJustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of transactions occurred,
The Group records provisions for the excess of cost over the net 1ealizable value of inventories.
While the Group believes that the estimates are reasonable and appropriate, signlficant diffarences
in the actual experience or significant changes In estimates may materfally affect the profit or foss
and equity.

inventaries carried at lower of cast and MRV amounted to $14.1S milllon and $7.95 millon s at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, Allowance for impalrment losses amounted to
$1.35 million and $2.54 milifon as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 9),

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment ond Other Intanglble Assets. The Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other Intanglble assets based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be avallable for use. The estimates are based on a

“eollective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experlence with simllar

assets, The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other Intangible assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are updated if expectations differ from prevlous estimates due
to physlcal wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use
of the assets. Future results of operations could be materially sffected by changes in estimates
brought about by changes In the factors mentioned above. The amount and timing of recording of
depreciation expense for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and
circumstances.

There were no changes In the estimated useful lives of the Group's property, plant and equipment
and other intangibfe assets as at December 31, 2017 and 20186,

Property, plant and equlpment (except land), net of accumulated depreciation, amortization and
impairment losses amounted to $6.66 million end $7.57 million asat December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively {see Note 11). Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization and
impaimment losses, amounted to $56,938 and $60,416 as at December 31, 2017 and 20186,

 respectively (see Note 12),
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Assessing Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets and Goodwill. The Group assesses impalment on [ts
nonfinancial assets {excluding goodwill and macrocystic consent} whenaver events or changes In
circumstances indicate that the carrylng amount of the assets or group of assets may not be
recoverable. The relevant factors that the Group considers in deciding whether to perform an asset
Impairment review include the foliowing:

* significant underperformance of a business In relation to expectations;
* significant negative industry or economic trends; and
* significant changes or planned changes in the use of the assets.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an Impalrment loss Is
recognized. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assats ar, if it Is not possible, for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount represents the greater of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value in use, Vaiue In use Is deterrnined as the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the assets. The
estimated cash flows are projected using growth rates based on historical experience and business
plans and are discounted using pretax discount rates that reflect the current assessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the assets.

Goodwill and macrocystic consent are tested for impairment annually and more frequently, when
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, management has determined that the smount of allowance for
impairment on its investments in assoclates, joint ventures, idle assets, property, plant and
equipment, goodwlll, other intangible assets {Including goodwill) snd ather noncurrent assets were
sufficient. Carrying amounts of these nonfinancial assets are disclosed in Notes 3,10, 11 and 12.

Estimating Retirement Benefit Costs. The determination of the obligation and costs of retirement
benefits.is dependent on the assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amounts. These
assumptions are described In Note 16 to the consolldated financial statemants and include, among
others, discount rates and salary Increase rates.

Net retirement benefit abligation amounted to $0.23 milllon and $0.18 milllon as at December 3L,
2017 and 2016, respectively. The cumulative remeasurement gain on retirement benefit llabiiity
recognized in equity amounted to $55,190 as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 {see Note 15},

Recognizing Deferred Tox Assets. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each reporting date
Is reviewed and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wil
be available to allow ali or part of the deferred tax assets to be utlized. The Group's assessment on
the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences is based on the
forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting perlods. This forecast Is based on the
Group’s past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses,

The Group has recognized deferred tax assets amounting to $9.72 milllon and $8.27 milllon as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 26).
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4. Business Combinatians

On December 23, 2015, the Parent Company converted edvances of 50.29 milllon {R13.5 million) as
partial payment of its subscription to 54,000,000 voting preferred shares of AMHI. The subscription
resulted to the increase In the Parent Company’s effective yoting ownership interest in AMHI to
98.89%. Prlar to December 23, 2015, the Parent Company had 40% voting awnership Interest In
AMHI. The fair values of the identifled net assets of AMHI at the time of acquisition and the
purchase price allocatlon are as follows:

Amount
Net assets at acquisition date $6,379,054
Percentage share of net assets acquired 98.89%
Net assets acquired 6,308,884
Gain an acquishion {3,471,040)
Gain on remeasurement of previously held interest ' (2,356,202}
Total consideration $481,642
Total consideration §481,642
Less cash acquired 2,553
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired $479,089

Gains on acquisition and remeasurement of previously held Interest resuted from the increase in
fair vaiue of the land held by AMHI. The falr value of previously held Interest by the acquirer
immediately before the acquisition date was $2.55 million.

Non-controlling interest is measured based on its proportionate share on the net assets of AMHI at
acquisition date.

The revenue and the net income of AMHI from the date the Parent Company obtained control,
which Is December 23, 2015, to December 31, 2015 were no losger Included in the consolldated
financial statements because these were not considered significant,

Had the acquisition of AMHI taken place at the beginning of 2015, the Group's revenus and net Joss
for the year would have been $67.99 milton and $7.64 million, respectively,

. Goodwill

Goodwill resulted from the acquisttion by the Parent Company of the following subsidlaries:

Spence. The Parent Company acquired 100% ownership of Spence in 2011. The acqulsition of
Spence’s salmon processing facillties in Brocktan, USA allows the Group to diversify Its product line
to take advantage of the changing food consumption patterns arcund the globe, address the issue
of sourcing raw materfals and (mprove overail margins and profitabllity. The goodwill arlsing from
the acquisitlon amounted to $7.45 milllion.
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Akaroo. The Parent Company acquired 80% ownership of Akaroa in 2012. Akaroa is sngaged in the
business of sea cage salmon farming and operates two marine fasms in New Zealand. It also
processes fresh and smoked salmon. Akaroa aiso holds 20% stake in 5SN2, an entity operating a
modern hatchery, which quarantines and consistently supplies high quallty smolts (juvenile salmon}
for Akaroa's farm. The acquisition enables the Group to stabilize Its supply of salmon and eventually
strengthen its market share in the salmon industry. The goodwill arising from the ecquisition
amounted to $2.05 mililon.

Results of operations {net income} of these two subsidlarles are as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Spence $235576 $683,074 $1,728,338
Akaroa 686,896 212,713 74,174

Based on the Group’s annual impairment test using a discounted cash flow model covering a
five-year period, the Group has assessed that goodwill is not Impalred as at December 31, 2017 and
2016. The principal assumptions made in determining the recoverable amount {value in use) in 2017
and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
Dlscount rate 7.66% 8.66%
Growth rate 5.00% 5.00%

Management determined the five-year projected cash flows based on past performance, existing
contracts and expectations on market development such as average price, revenue growth range
and expected costs to generate such revenue, The discount and growth rates used ware based an
the Group’s pre-tax weighted average cost of capital (WACC) using capital asset pricing model and
pre-tax cash flow long-term growth rate taking into consideration the sector performance and
general market and economic conditions.

. Disposal of Investments

PENZ
On October 30, 2015, ASFll sold its 50% plus one share interest in PFNZ to HC & JW Studholme Mo. 2
Family Trust for $5,000. The sale resulted in a gain of $0.37 million in the 2015 consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (see Note 21},

The carrying amounts of the net liabliities of PFNZ as at October 30, 2015, which have been
excluded in the 2015 consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

. Amount
Net liabllitles 5732,774
Non-controlling interests (366,494)

Net llabilities sold ' 5366,280
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Note Amaount
Falr value of consideration received $5,000
Carrying amount of net lfabiiitles sold {366,280}
Gain on disposal 21 5371,280

The 2015 consolidated statement of comprehensive Income includes revenue of $3.26 million and
net loss of $0.57 milllon of PFNZ for the ten months period ended October 30, 2015,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account conslsts of:
2017 2016
Cash on hand : 84,020 84,621
Cash In banks 4,415,573 3,710,241
Cash equivalents _ 7,876 3,681,481
$4,27,478 $7,396,243

Cash in banks earn interest at prevalling bank deposit rates,

Ce;sh equivalents pertain to cash placement with a bank for varying periods of up to three months
depending on the immedlate cash requirements of the Group, ' :

Interest Income included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive incoma is summarized
below {see Note 21):

Note . 2017 2016 2015
Cash in banks and cash equivalents $19,079 490,613 $107,442
Receivabie from PFNZ - 12 51,886 68,520 68,448

$70,965 $159,133 $175,890

. Trade and Qther Receivables

This account consists of;
Note 2017 2016
Trade $9,086,4%0 $5,992,752
Claims recejvables L,027.177 1,630,864
Due from related parties 15 276,382 287,420
Receivable from PFNZ - cusrent portion 12 140,958 177,500
Advances to employees 30,771 20,436
Cthers 864,405 615,407
11,426,183 8,724,379
Less allowance for impairment losses 2,011,950 1,999,471

$9,414,233 $6,724,908
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Trade receivables are generated from the sale of inventories and are generally collectible within 29
1o 60 days.

Trade receivables aggregating $6.02 million and $3.59 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, were used to secure the Group’s short-term loans {see Note 14},

Claims recelvables include claims for refunds from government agencles and claims from Insurance,
suppllers and other parties, .

Mavements in the allowance for Impalrment losses are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $1,999,471 $1,889,186
Provisions 20 69,574 79,049
Currency transiation edjustment {57,085) 31,236
Balance at end of year $2,011,950 $1,999,471
inventarles
This account consists of:
Note 2017 2016
At cost;
Finished goods : 19 $3,269,506 $2,701,345
Raw materlals 9,356,847 3,463,261
Parts and supplies 294,821 346,556
Work-in-process 237,261 266,681
13,158,435 $6,778,253
At NRV:
Finished goods . 936,980 928,517
Raw antl packaging materialg 59,456 246,995

996,236 1,175,512
414,154,871 47,953,765

The costs of inventorles measured at NRV are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
. Finished goods 19 $2,144,028 $2,786,522
Raw and packaging materials 206,550 928,524

$2,350,578 $3,715,046

Movements in the sliowance for impairment lossas on inventores are as foliows:

Note 2017 _ 2016
Balance at beginning of year : $2,539,534 $4,585,905
Reversalfwrite-off (1,416,172) (2,844,381)
Pravisions . 20 230,780 794,010

Balance at end of year $1,354,142 $2,539,539
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Inventories aggregating $8.25 million and $2,75 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,

respectively, were used to sacure the Group’s short-term loans (see Note 14).

Inventories charged to cost of goods sold amounted to $49.47 million, $43.35 million and

$51.24 million In 2017, 2016 and 2013, respectively (see Note 19}.

10.

QGther Current Assets

Thls account conslsts of:

. 2017 2016
Advances to suppliers 54,673,341 5485,280
Prepayments:
Taxes 68,011 172,433
Insurance 25,428 51,423
Rent 24,852 24,583
Others 229,435 195,428
Input VAT 591,157 539,233
$5,612,224 $1,468,380
Advances to suppliers pertain o advance payments to suppliers for purchase of fish,
Other prepayments pertain to dues and subscriptions and other fees.
11. Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in this account ere as follows:
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Allowance for Impakemant
Belantes ¢ beghning and end of
o - SDE65A . 201,408 - - - - $08,654
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SE80. 201 516,104,365
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The Group's transportation equipment with aggregate canrying amounts of $105,026 and $70,082 as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively {see Note 14} are used as collateral to secure chatte!

-

~ mortagega,

As discussed In Note 1, the Parent Company, BGB, PTIAFI and PT VDZ incurred losses in 2016 and
2015. The property plant and equipment of Parent Company and these subsidiarles account for
$6.88 mililon or 41% of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment as at December 31, 2017.
The Group reviewed the recoverable amounts of these assets based on its value In use by projecting
future cash flows covering a perlod of flve years. A determined WACC was used to discount the cash
flows. :

Details of the rates used are as follows:

2017 2016
Discount rate _ 7.66% 8.66%
Growth rate 5.00% 5.00%

The Group provided for impairment oss of $1.08 million in 2017 {FTARY's plant and machinery} and
$8.55 million In 2015 (mainly fishing vessels and related CIP), on its property, plant and equipment
(see Notes 20 and 21) because of the discontinuance of the Group's fishing operations. Allowance
for Impairment loss emounted to $1.70 miltion and $0.61 million asat December 31,2017 and 2016,
respectively.

In 2016, flshing vessels with cost amounting to $14.41 million ard accumulated depreciation and
Impairment amounting to $14.10 million, were reclassified to “Other noncurrent assets” as
“Idle assets” as these are no longer used in operations (see Note 12).

In 2015, the Parent Company recovered two of the fishing vessels It previously sold to WCFI because
of losses sustained by WCFI. The receivable from the sale of three fishing vessels of $6.38 million In
2013 was provided with an allowance for Impairment loss of $6.28 milllon in 2014 (see Note 12),
When the Parent Company recovered the two vessels 8t a cariying amount of $5.91 million, it
reversed allowance for impairment (recovary) of $5.82 million In 2015 but retognized a provision for
fmpalrment loss on the fishing vessels at the same amount in the same year {see Note 21).
Effectively, the Parent Company did not recognize any gain or foss from this transaction In the 2015
consolidated financial statements,
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The depreciation and amortization charged to operations are g5 follows:

Note 017 2016 2015

Property, plant and aguipment $1,145634  $1,142,690  $1,172,648
Other intanglble assets 12 4,963 4,864 12,280
$1,150597  $1,147,554  $1,184,928

Charged to: .
Cost of goods sold 19 $1,029,724 51,055,050  $1,086,439

Selling and administrative expenses 20 120,873 83,504 58439
. $1,150,597  $1,147,554 51,184,928

Galn on disposal/retirement of property, plant and equipment amounted to $58,618, $12,078 and
$4,418 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 21).

The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment stil used I Group’s operatfons
amounted to $0.28 million and $0.42 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Fully
depreciated property and equipment of AMHI costing 30.16 million were retired on
Pecember 31, 2017,

12,

Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Receivable from WCFI 11 52,182,863 52,182,863
Receivable from PFNZ - net of current portion 994,004 1,068,019
Investments in joint ventures §53,480 533,480
Idle assets 11 314,320 314,320
Other intangible assets 171,217 174,695
‘Investment in an associate 118,333 92,452
Others _ 412,212 314,257
4,746,429 4,699,886

Less allowance for impalrment losges 3,164,942 3,164,942

$1,581 487 51,534,049

Recelvable from WCFI

Recelvable from WCFI includes receivable from the sale of a fishing vessel and advances for fish
deposit. These were provided with allowance for impairment losses because of losses sustalned by
WCFI. WCFI has ceased operations since 2014,
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ivable fro
Detalls of the recelvable from PFNZ are as follows:
Note 2017 2016 2015

Balance at beginning of year $1,245519  $1,358375  $2,772,462
Cash recalpts {110,557} {112,856) -
Offset of trade payable - - {455,583)
Restructuring loss:

Write-down 21 - - {558,879)

interest exgense 14 - - {401,625)
Outstanding balance : 1,134,962 1,245,519 1,358,375
Less current portion 8 140,958 177,5C0 160,000
Noncurrent portion $994004 51,068,019 31,198,375

As discussed in Notes 1 and 6, ASF) soid jts ownership Interest in PFNZ in 2015. In the same year,
BGB entered into a debt restructuring agreement with PFNZ, which provides among others:

a. Payment of the receivable in monthly installments commencing in January 2016 up to
September 2029; and

b. The restructured receivable shall be secured by PFNZ’s tanglble and intellectual properties;

interest income amounted to $51,886, $68,520 and $68,248 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively
(see Note 7).

siments in Joint vV res
Details are as follows:

2017 2016
At cost:
FDCP : $240,964 $240,964
WCFL 39,279 35,279
‘ 280,243 280,243
Accumulated equity in net eamings:
Balance at beglnning of year 360,189 392,690
Share in net losses - (32,501)
Balance at end of year 360,189 360,189
640,432 £40,432
Share in other comprehensive income {86,952} (86,952)
Total 553,480 553,480
Allowance for Jmpalrment lass {553,480} (553,480}
- = 5=

FDCP. FDCP is engaged in manufacturing and wholesale of tin cns, FDCP ceased ménufacturing
operations In September 2015, The Group provided impairment loss of $0.24 milllon In 2015 on jts
investment in FDCP. The Group has 39% ownership interest In FDCP.

WCFI. WCF| Is ap entity primarlly engaged in commercial fishing within and outside Philippine
waters and in the high seas, The Group has 40% ownership interast in WFCl. WCFI ceased
operation on December 31, 2014.
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Idle Assets

Idle assets pertain to fishing vessals that are no longer used In the Group's operations, Details of the
tarrylng amount af the fishing vessel reclassified from property, plant and equipment in 2016 are as
follows {see Note 11):

. Amount

Cost 514,412,664
Less:

Accumulated depraciation . 484,192

Allowance for impaioment losses . 13,614,152

$314,320

The fishing vessel was stated at its recoverable amoun? which is based on scrap valye, In 2016, the
carrying amount of fishing vassel amaunting to $314,320 was fully provided with allowance for
impairmant losses,

Details of Idle assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Amount

Carrying amaunt _ $314,320
Less allowance for Impairment 314,320
[

Other Intangible Assets

Other Intangible assets pertain to consents in New Zealand and fishing license. Movements in this
account are as foilows:

Note 2017 2015

Cost $265,066 $269,066
Accumulated Amortization

Balance at beginning of year 94,371 90,100

Amortization 11 4,963 . 4,864

Transtatlon adjustment {1,485) (593)

Balance at end of year 97,849 94,371

171,217 174,585

Allowance for impaiment loss 114,279 114,279

$56,938 $60,416

The carrying amount of intangible asset with Indefinite useful fife, which pertains to macrosystic
consent, amounted to 521,302 and $20,754 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Total carrying amount of Intangible assets with definite useful lives, which pertain to flshing license,
consent and development expenditure, amounted to $35,636 and $39,662 as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively.
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ASS
The Group has an effective 20% ownership interest in SSNZ. SSNZ Is engaged In the farming of
salmon In South Island of New Zealand and was incorporated in 2008,

Details of the investment are as follows:

2017 2016

Acquisition cost _ $27,319 527,319
Accumulated equity In profits:

Balance at beginning of year ’ 64,933 45,162

Equity In net income 26,081 19,771

Balance at end of year 91,014 64,933

' $118,333 $92,252

The summarized financial information of SSNZ as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 Is as follows:

2017 2018

Total assets $419,063 $491,719
Total fiabilities ' 42,694 120,092
Equity 502,033 371,627
Net Income 130,406 123,571

Others
Others include lease deposits and biological assets of the Group, which comprised solely of

tensumable female smolts. The biological assets amounted to $036 million and $0.25 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively,

Allowance for Impalrment Lossas

‘This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016
Receivable from WCF! $2,182, 8563 $2,182,863
Investments In Joint ventures 553,4E0 553,480
Idle assets _ 11 314,320 314,320
Other intanglble assets 114,279 114,279

$3,164,942 $3,164,942

Movements in this aomﬁnt are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $3,164,942 $2,850,622
Provisian 20 314,320

Balance at end of year ~ $3,164,942 $3,164,942
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13. Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016
Trade payahles:
Third parties 56,947,753 $3,5596,356
Related party 15 262,844 262,844
Accrued expenses:
Salaries, wages and other henefits 758,492 582,290
Interest 435,828 - 90,595
Professional fees 241,787 394,315
Frelght o . 16,544 125,925
Dthers ' 647,619 679,165
Statutory payahle 278,488 69,430
Customers’ deposits ' 72,299 195,398
Others : 83,570 73,900

$9,745,224 $6,070,258

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally settied within 30 days.

Other accrued expenses lnclude' accruals for business devefopmef\t expenses, securlty services,
commission and customers’ clalms. Accrued expenses are usually settled in the foliowing month..

Statutory payable includes amounia payablg o government agencies such as 555, Phithealth ang
Pag-1BIG and are normally settled in the following month.

14,

Loans Payabla

Details of the Group's loans payable are as follows:

Short-term Loans
Currency Noninal interest rate 2017 2016
Local banks uUsD 4.509% $18,487,091 $12,522,343
PHP ' 5.00% - 2,500,000
investment banks FHP 4.50% 3,064,290 3,077,233
UsD 5.00% 2,700,000 2,700,000
14,251,381 20,799,576
Add current portion of long-term loans 34,518 30,607

$24,285,500 520,830,183

Loans from Jocal banks aggregating $18.49 million and $15.02 milton as at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, represent availments of revolving facllities, export packing credlt, export bills
purchase, Import letters of credit and trust recelpts, with term ranging from 3 to 6 months.
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Loan Securfty. Loans of $18.49 million and $12.47 mitlion as at December 32, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, are secured by the Company’s trade recelvables and Inventories as follows:

Note 2017 2016

Trade recelvables ' 8 $6,023,6849 $3,589,400
inventaries : 9 8,251,539 2,750,488
$14,275,223 36,339,888

Loans from investment banks are unsacured promissory notes used to finance the Group’s working
capital requlrements, with 90-day term renewable. '

Chattel Mo e Loans

Currency Nominal Interest rate 2017 2016
Local banks PHP 9.24% -~ 9.59% $50,569 851,664
Fareign financing
corporation NZD 7.15% 63305 33,389
113,874 85,053
Lass current portion ' 34,519 30,607
$79,355 $54,446

Loan Security. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, chattel morigage ioans amounting to $113,874
and $85,053 are secured by transportation equipment with carrying amount of $105,026 and
$70,082, respectively (see Note 11}.

Schedule of Principal Payments. These are summarized below:

Year : Amount
2018 $34,519
2019 - 2022 79,355
$113,874

Bre 0] :

Interest expense charged to operations is as follows:

Note 2017 2016 2015
Loans payable $751,487 $860,496  $1,407,386
Due to related partles 15 36060 8,021 94,040
Restructured recelvables 12 - - 401,625

$787,547 $868,517 $1,903,051

Interest expense on restructured receivables pertains to “Day 1 foss” on receivahle from PFNZ
restructured In 2015 {see Note 12},
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15. Related Party Transactions

The Group, in the normal caurse of business, has regular transactlons with its related parties as
summarized below;

: Amount of Transaction Qutstanding Balance
Related Party Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
Trade and other receivables B
Joint Venture ($5,043) 5306,398 $265,265 $271,598
Assoclate {4,705} - 11,117 15,822
$276,382  $287,420
Other noncurrent assets 12
Joint Venture 5 $- $2,192,863 52,182,863
Allowance for impairment - - {2,182,863) {2,182863)
5— o
Trade and other payables
Immedlate Parent $110,154 $—  $110,159 S
Joint Venture 13 - - 262,844 262,844

$372,998  $262,844

Due ta related parties
Immediate Parent 1 $2,002,804 > $2,002,809 s~
Subsidiary’s Stockholder 3,584 - 139,706 136,112
$2,142510  $136,112

Nature and Terms of Payment -

Trade and other recefvables. Other receivable from SSNZ pertains to working capital advances that
are due on demand, The receivable fram FDCP pertains to return of purchased tin cans which had

damages.

Other Noncurrent Assets. As discussed in Note 12, this receivable resulted from the sale of fishing
vessels by the Parent Company, which was provided with allowance. '

Trode andlorher FPayabies. The Parent Company purchased some of its tin can requirements from
FDCP. Accrued expense to immediate parent pertains to consultancy fee, These trade accounts
which resuited from these transactions are noninterest-bearing.

" Due to Reluted Partles, Payable to immediate parent is due on April 28, 2018 and bears an interest

of 6.50% per annum, The ultimate parent campany Is Seawoad Resources, Inc., a domestic
company engaged In Investment activities. Due to a subsidiary’s stockholder is for working capital
advances that is payable on demand, Due to a subsidlary’s stockholder bears an Interest of
7.15% per annum, '

Akasoa purchased smolts from SSNZ which are settled upon biliing. Total purchases amounted to
$247,646 and $288,028 in 2017 and 20186, respectively. There is no outstanding payahble arising from
this transaction.
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intercompany transactions eliminated in consolidation pertaln to due to/from related parties and
rental. Tatal due to/from related parties eliminated as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted
to $21.60 mlllion and $19.13 million, respectivaly. Total rental receivable and payable eliminated as

- at December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to $81,587 and $1.11 million, respectively.

In E )
Total interest expense aggregated $36,060, $8,021 and $94,040 In 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively {see Note 14).

Remunaration of Key Manage nnel
The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group is set out In aggregate as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Short-term employee benefits $398487 - $504,165 $436,492
Post-employment benefits 35,934 39,581 16,541

543442 $543,746 5453,033

16,

Retlrement Beneflt Obligation

The Group values Its defined benefit obligation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefit
shall be payable to employees who retire from service who are at least sixty years old and with at
least five years of continuous service.

The Group has executed a Trust Agreement with a reputable bank to establish the Group’s
Retirement Plan. The last actuarial valuation report obtained was in 2016.

The retirement benefit costs recorded under “Selling and adminktrative expenses” account In the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Current service cost $42,325 $74,564 556,922
Net Interest expense 797 17,751 17,483
Translation adjustment - - (313
$50,302 592,315 $74,003

The amounts Included in the consolidated statements of financlai position arlsing from the Group's
obligations in respect of its retirement benefit ohligation are as follows;

2017 2016
Present value of defined beneflt obligation $276,017 $226,550
Fair value of plan assets 42,150 41,636

$234,627 $184, 914
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Movements In the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at beglnning of year $226,550 $393,160
Current service cost 42,325 74,564
Intarest cost _ 8,705 18,339
Retirement liability reclassified to peyable ~ {46,451)
Benefits paid: :
From operations : - {38,833)
From plan assets - (10,202}
Remeasurement losses (galns):
Changes In financlal assumptions - (35,854)
Experlence adjustments - (112,063)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - translation adjustment (763} (16,210}
’ $276,817 $226,550
Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
- 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 441,636 511,891
interest income _ : 728 588
Empioyer contribution - 42,403
Benefits paid - {10,102}
'Loss on plan asset. - (916}
Translation adjustment {174) {2,328)
§42,190 $41,636
The analysis of the falr value of plan assets at the reporting dates s as follows;
2017 2016
Cesh and cash equivalents ) 5352 4107
Debt Instruments 41,889 41,585
Fees payables . (8) {6)
Withholding taxes payable {48) {50}
$42,190 541,636
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valustions were as follows:
2017 2016
Discount rate 5.25% 5.25%
Expected rate of salary Increases 4.00% 4.00%
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The sensitlvity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably passible changes of the
respectlve assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

increase

(Decrease) oh

Retirement

Change in Benefit

Assumption Obligation

Expected salary growth rate . L.00% $26,325
Discount rate 1.00% (26,228)
Life expactancy _ 10.00% 2,984

The average duration of the benefit obligation on December 31, 2017 and 2016 js 18 years.

The cumulative remeasurement gains (losses} on retirement obligation recognized in equity as at
December 31 foliows:

2017 2016 2015
Balance st beginning of year $55190 (348,352 ($123,446)
Remeasurement gain : - 103,542 75,084
Balance at end of year $55,150 $55,130 (548,352}

Deferred tax asset refated to the cumulative remeasurement galn or loss amounted to $45,162 as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

i7.

Equity
Capital Stock
Details of the Company’s capital stock as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as folloves:

Shares Amount
Authorired
Ordinary shares at F1 par value
Balance at b_eg[nnlng and end of year 3,000,000,000  R3,000,000,000
issued and Qutstending
Balance at beginning of year 2,500,000,000 $53,646,778
Treasury shares {287,537) {5,774)

Balance at end of year 2,499,712,463 $53,641,004
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The history of shares Issuances from initial public offering of the Parent Company Is as follows:

Jssue/Offer Number of

Subscriber Price Reglstration/issue Date Shares Issued

Initial public offering Vatious £1.35 November 8, 20086 535,099,610
Stock dividends Varlous - Decamber 17, 2007 64,177,449
Stock rights offer {SRO) Varlous 100 July 25, 2011 272,267,965
Stock dividends Various - January 25, 2012 137,500,000
Private placement Various 160 December 14, 2012 60,668,750
Private placement Strongoak Inc. 131 May 5, 2014 430,286,226
SRO ' Varlous 1.00 Ociober 28, 2015 1,000,000,000
- 2,500,000,000

On February 17, 2015, the BOD approved the increase in the Parent Company's euthorized capital
stock from F1.50 billion divided into 1.50 billion shares to #3.00 billion divided into 3.0 billion shares
at #1.00 par value a share, The same resolution was spproved by the stockholders on
March 31, 2015, The increase in authorized capital stock was approved by the SEC on October 28,
2015, _ '

In the same meeting, the BOD also approved the stock rights offering of up to 1.0 blilion shares at
P1.00 par value a share by way of pre-emptive rights offering to eliglble existing common
shareholders of the Parent Company at the proportion of 1 rights offer for every one and X existing
common shares held as of the record date.

Strongoak Inc. acquired 952,479,638 shares of the Parent Company at par value arlsing from the
Increase In authorized capital stock and stock rights offering by way of pre-emptive rights, such
Increase was approved by the SEC on October 28, 2015, This resulted in Strongoak Inc. owning a
total of 1,382,765,864 common shares, representing 55,32% of the total issued and outstanding
shares of the Parent Company.

On July 20, 2017 and September 7, 2017, the BOD and stockhoiders, respectively, approved the
Parent Company’s plan to undergo an equity restructuring to aliminate the Parent Company’s

_ deficit, as follows;

® Decrease the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock by reducing the par value of its
common stock from R1 a share to approximately RO.50 a share, without returning any portion of
the capital to the stockholders. The Parent Company’s Articles of Incorporation will be
amended to refiect the necessary changes,

» Create additional paid-in capital from the dacrease in par value.

*» Apply the newly created additlonal paid-in capital, together with the existing paid-in capltal of
$6.7 million, to wipe out the Parent Campany’s defich as at May 31, 2017.

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application for the equity
restructuring. Accordingly, the resulting APIC of $25.82 million from the restructuring and the APIC
of $6.66 million as at December 31, 2016, will be used to fully wipe out the Parent Company’s deflcit
amounting to $32.00 million s at December 31, 2017.



-41-

The total number of shareholders of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 1s 236

and 256, respectively.

The Group’s non-controlling interests represent 0.02%, 20% and 1.11% ownership of non-controlling
Interest sharehalders of PTIAFI & PTVDZ, Akarca and AMHI, respectively. Non-controlling Interssts
emounted to $2.31 milllon and $2.47 million as at Decembar 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The net income (loss) allocated to non-controlling Interasts amounted to $125,781, $69,760 and
{$1.63 million} in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively,

The summarized financial information of PTIAF! and PTVDZ, Akaroa and AMHI as st and for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2015 and 2015 follows:

2017
PTIAFI & PTVDZ AKAROA AMH}
Total assets $4,028,101 $2,679,662 $3,054,192
Total liakilities 12,969,968 1,235,864 2,400,951
Equity {capital deficiency} (8,941,667) 1,443,798 653,241
" Netincome (loss) (288,031) 703,204 {211,964)
2016
PTIAFI & PTVDZ AKARQA AMHI
Total assets 54,257,722 $1,791,814 53,603,358
Total ifabilities 12,910,681 1,068,337 2,446,946
Equity (capital deficlancy) (8,652,958} 723,477 1,156,412
Net income (loss) (2,874,407} 212,713 380,744
2015
PTIAF & PTVDZ AKAROA AMHI
Total assets $5,189,840 $1,635,630 53,527,397
Total liabliities 7,511,756 1,126,612 2,691,807
Equity (capital deficiency) 2,321,916 509,013 835,590
Net Income {loss) {6,428,462) 51,959 384,162
18. Net Revenue
This acoount consists of; -
2017 2016 2015
MNet revenue 572,475,303 559,917,341 $68,198,564
Sales returns (283,725) {2,864) {282,874)
$72,191,578 559,914,477 467,915,650
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19. Cost of Gogds Sold

This account consists of:
Note 2017 2016 2015
Raw materials used $49.313,797 542,423,566 543,734,566
Direct lahor 6,657,414  5,046490 5,332,294
Manufacturing overhead:
Depreciation and amortization 11 1,029,724 1,059,050  1,0B6,489
Warehousing 954,299 1,173,576 1,031,855
Fuet 731,497 791,357 531,799
Light and water 728,777 303,958 482,542
Rent 24 444,557 678,911 684,006
Consumables 347,950 439,795 140,484
Others -2 464,568 2,601,895 562,721
Total manufacturing costs 62,668,583 55,519,003 53,586,756
Finished goods, bfglnning 5 5,487,867 6415666 13,525,033
Total cost of goods manufactured 68,156,430 61,934,669 67,511,789
Finished goods, ending 9 {5,413,534) (5,487,867) (6,415,666)

$62,742,916 556,446,802 $61,096,123

Other manufacturing overhead consists of Indirect labor, repairs and maintenance, outside services
and {nsurance, among others,

20. Selling and Adminlstrativa Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 017 20i6 2015
Salaries, wages and othear benefits $2,624078 $2,771,545 $3,621,209
Provislons for Impalrment losses on;
Property, plant and equipment 11 1,080,200 -~ 2,730,177
Inventorles 9 230,780 794,010 5,298,817
Trade and other receivables B 69574 79,049 315,318
Other noncurrent assets 12 - 314,320 628,480
Freight and handling 833,265 845,804 333,426
Qutslde services 880,684 746,535 1,135,054
Taxes and licenses - 682,079 305,302 535,979
Transportation and travel 320,858 428,402 641,091
Advertising and marketing 252,497 309,030 435,789
Representation and entertalnmant 179,595 193,856 174,420
insurance 145,711 193,691 251,259
Depreclation and amortization | 1] 120873 88,504 98,435
Utllittes and communication 101,313 115,683 127,527
Materials and supplies 95,718 88,043 101,250
Commission _ 80,514 83,609 325,185
Business development 73,091 89,505 110,081

{Forward)
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Note, 2017 2016 2015
Rent 24 §61,136 $66,186  $132,069
Repalrs and maintenance 40,637 40,753 65,932
Buyers’ claim 14,819 15,307 624,919
Others 164,396 383,377 958,317
58,117,124 $7,957,915 $18,744,748
11, Other Income {Charges) - Net
This account consists of;
Note 2017 2016 2015
Bank charges {$154,146)  (5116,353) {$114,558)
Interest income 7 70,985 159,133 175,850
Galn on disposal/retirement of proparty, plant
and equipment 11 58,61B 12,078 4,418
Forelgn exchange gain {loss) 13,198 202,330 (4p5,182)
Loss on restructuring of recetvable from PFNZ 12 - - {556,879)
" Reversal of allowance for impairment loss on
inventories : - - 436,277
Racavery of fishing vessels from WCF: )
Reversals of allowance for
impairment Joss on other
noncurrent assets 11 - - 5,821,845
Provision for impalment loss on
fishing vesseis 11 - ~  {5,821,845)
Gain on disposal of investment b - - 371,280
Others 3,811 303,927 {79,225)
{§7.354) $561,115 {$167,979)
Others pertain to sale of scrap materials and duty rebates.
22, Employee Benefits
This account conslsts of:
Note 2017 2016 2015
Short-term employee benefits $9,867,306 $9,503,263 $3,066,779
Post-employment benefits 16 50,302 92,315 74,093
39,917,608 59,595,578 $3,140,872
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23. Income {Loss) Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted income (loss} per share is based on the following data:

' 2017 2016 2015
Net income {loss) attributable to Parent
Company $1,437,271 (85,568,525} ($6,392,392)
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding_ 2,499,712,463  2,499,712,463  1,677,794,655
$0.0006 (50,0024} (50,0038)

The weighted avarage number of sharas refers to shares in circulation during the period that is after
the effect of treasury shares.

As at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Parent Company has no dilutive potential share.

24,

Significant Agreamants

Supply Agreement

The Parent Company entered into an exclusive supply agreement with & customer to provide
specified products for duration of five years starting 2018, renewable upon mutual agreement by
hoth parties,

Operaving Lease Agreemenis

A number of operating lease agreemants were entered into by the Gioup,
The Group as Lessee

Operating lease agreement with Dominlon Property Haldings, Inc. The Parent Com pany leases its
head office space from Dominlon Property Holdings, Inc. with a monthly rental of 93,588 for a
period of three years, commencing on August 16, 2015 to August 15, 2018 renewable by mutual
agreement by both parties.

Operating lease agreement with Piadl Multipurpose Cooperative, BGB has a one-year |ease
agreemant with Piadi Multipurpose Cooperative for the lease of the warehouse building which
expired on August 31, 2016. The fixed monthly rent amounted to $426 plus 12% VAT or a total of
5477,

Operating lease agreement with New Zealond Guardion Trus: Company Limited, Akaroa entered
Into a lease agreement with New Zealand Guardian Trust Compeny Limited for premises located at 6
Pope Street, with an annual rental payment of $46,213 for 15 years beginning June 1, 2012 until
May 30, 2027. The agreement has four renewable dates belng December 1, 2014, June 1, 2017,
June 1, 2022 and December 1, 2024,

Operating lease agreement with o former shareholder, Spence leases Its office and manufacturing
space from an entity that Is controlled by its former shareholder under an cperating lease that
expires on May 31, 2020. The Company also leasas certain vehicles under operating leasas until
September 2018.
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Total rent expense charged under “Cost of goods sold” amounted to $0.44 miliion in 2017 and

$0.68 million in 2016 and 2015 (see Note 19).

Total rent expense charged under “Seliing and administrative expenses” amounted to $61,136,
$66,186 and $0.13 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively {see Note 20),

Future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements are as follows:

2017 2016
Not later than one year - $173,054 $860,553
Later than one year but not later than five years 359,984 1,383,224
Mare than five years 165,723 197,999

$698,761 $2,441,776

The Group as Lessor

Operating lease agreement between AMHI and FDCP. AMHI has a lease agreement with FDCP
covering a parcel of land. The lease agreament expired in 2017, Rent recelvable of AMHI included In
the “Due from related partles” under “Trade and other recelvables” account amounted to 514,610
as at December 31, 2016. As at December 31, 2017, the total rent receivable from FDCP was offsat
against the securlty deposit. Rent income amounted to $63,535 and $59,607 in 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

25,

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

For the past & years, the Parent Company has been giving back o the community through the
feeding program conducted in Banisil High School located in General Santos City. The program
aimed to feed underweight students in an attempt to combat frequent absences and poor academic
performance as well as educate the families about proper nutrition for their children. The feeding
program was completed by 2017. The Parent Company is now developing its corporate soclal
responsibility program to focus on the local workers' community welfare, as well as promoting a
clean and healthy environment together with energy conservation, for commencement in 2018.

26.

Income Taxas

Components of income tax expense (benefit) charged to profit or loss are as foilows:

2017 2016 2015
Curyent $600,594 $702,892 51,051,298
Deferred (1,601,528) 418,056  {1,223,475)

(81,000,534} 51,120,898 {$172,177)
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Defarred Tax

The companents of the Group’s deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habllities as at December 31,

2017 and 2015 are as follows:

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets;
Allowance for impalrment losses on:
Trade and other receivables and other
noncurrent assets $7,157,270 $955,832
Inventorles ) 268,920 504,733
Property, plant and equipment 30,422 4,208,964
NOLCO 2,014,248 2,284,035
MCIT _ 84,951 4,009
Accyued expensas %0541 134,085
Retirement benefit obligation 60,780 53,354
Unrealized forelgn exchange loss 4,181 1,549
Rental payable - 126,459
$9,721,323 $8,273,039
Deferred tax labiltias:
Accelerated depreciation $135,957 $249,570
Accrued rental income - 21,134
Unrealized foreign exchange gain ' - 18,497
: $135,957 $289,201

Details of other deductible temporary differences for which ne deferred tax assats were recognlzed

as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows;

: 2017 2016

Aliowance on impairment on: : '
Trade and other receivables and other noncurrent assets 5280,276 $4899,196
Property, plant and equipment 479,117 479,117
Inventorles ' 137,323 257,127
NOLCO _ 1,176,469 1,427,438
MCIT . 65,239 104,480
Retirement benefit obligation 9,608 2,120
$2,348,032 $2,769,478

The details of the Group’s NOLCO, which can be claimed as deduction from future taxable income

are as follows:

inception Year Amount Applied Expired Balance Explry Year
2017 $299,738 5 $- $299,738 2020
2016 5,844,461 - - 5,844,461 2019
2115 4,491,524 - - 4,451,524 2018
2014 2,035,603 3,985 2,031,604 - 2017

$12,671,326 $3,999 32,031,604 $10,635,723
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The details of the Groups MCIT, which can be claimed as deduction from future Ineame tax liability
Bre ag follows:

Inception Year. Amount " Expired _Balance Expiry Year

2017 $100,743 [ $100,743 2020

2016 4,009 - 4,009 2019

2015 55,448 - 55,448 2018

2014 83,767 83,767 - 2017
$243,967 $83,767 $160,200

 The Group believes that with the new strateglc plan being Implemented to turn-around the business

{see Note 1), tha Group will generate enough taxable income to utiilze the total deferred tax assets
of $9.72 mitlion and $8.27 million as at Dacember 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The reconciliation of income tax benefit computed at the statutory income tax rate and at effective
Income tax rate foilows:

2017 2016 2015
Income tax benefit computed at statutory
tax rate $168,755 ($1,433,361) (82,458,498}
Tax effects of:

" Income exempt from taxation {5,724} {81,524) {52,516}
Expenses exempt from taxation 76,866 70,282 712426
Interest expense 2,100 18,152 12,410

Expived:
NOLCO 608,481 807,684 -
MCIT 83,767 52,786 -
Changes in unrecognized DTA {421,446) 812,200 1,551,454
Effect of tax rate differences 484,735 874,679 62,547
$1,000,534 $1,120,858 {$172,177)

The Parent Company and BGB were subjected to MCIT $100,743 in 2017, 54,009 in 2016 and
$35,221 in 2015,
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27. Falr Value of Financlal Assets and Liabilities

The table below presents the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial fabilitles as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

2017
Falr value measurement using
Quoted prices  Slgnliicant  Significant
Inactive  observable unohservabla

Carrying markets inputs inputs
Amount Fair Valua {Level 1) {Leve| 2) {Level 3}
Financlaf Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cashand cash equivalents  $4,427,478  $4,427,478  $4427,478 $ &
Trade and other recelvables 9,137,851 9,137,851 0,137,851 - -
Due from related parties 276,382 276,382 276,382 - -
Recelvable from PFNZ* 584,004 1,284,758 - - 1,284,758
$14,835,715 515,!26,459 $13.841,711 $- $1,284,758
Finandlal Liabilities
Trade and other payables** $9,334,437 59,394,437 59,394,437 $- $
Lqans payable 24,355,255 24,370,614 - ~ 24,370,614
Due to related partles 2,142,510 2,142,510 2,142,510 - -
Refundable lease deposits 21,811 21,811 - - 21,811
$35,924,013  $35,929,372 $11536,947 $— 524,392,415

*Under other noncurrent assets
** Excfuding stotutory payable and customers’ deposits

2016
Quoted prices Significant SignHicant
In active observabla unobsarvable

Carrying markets Inputs inputs
- _ Ampunt Falr value fLevel 1} {Lavel 2) {Level 3}
Financial Assets
Loans and receivahles:
Cash and cash equivalents 57,395,343 37,396,343  $7396,343 5= 5
Trade and other receivables 6,437,488 6,437,488 6,437,458 - -
Due from related partles 287,420 287,420 287,420 - -
Recelvable from PFNZ* 1,068,019 1,275,327 - - 1,275,327
515,189,270  $15,396578  $14,121,251 $~ 51,215,327
Financial Uabilities
Trade and other payables* 55,805,430 55,805,430 55,805,430 5= o
Loans payable 20,884,629 21,116,861 - - 21,116,861
Due to related parties 136,112 135,112 136,212 - -
Refundable lease deposits 92,395 92,395 - - 92,395
$26,918,566 $27,150,798  $5341,542 5~ $21,209,256

*\Inder other noncurrent ossets
* Excluding stotutory payable and custemers’ deposits

The difference between the carrying amount of trade and other payables disclosed in the
consolidated statements of financlal position snd the amount disclosed in this nate pertains to
government payables and customers’ deposits that are not considered as financial fiabllitles.
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Due to the short-term maturities of cash and cash equivatents, trade and other recelvables, trade
and other payables and due to related partes; their carrylng amounts approximate thelr fair vatues.

The fair value of the recelvable from PENZ and Ioans payable Is determined based on the discounted
cash flow analysis using effective Interest rates for simiar types of instruments, Thgre were no
significant unobservable inputs identifled and no relationshlp was established between the
unohservable Inputs and the fair value of the loans payable and refundable lease deposits. These
financlal instruments are classifled under Level 3 of the fair valve hierarchy groups of the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value of the refundable lease deposits is based on the
amount that the Group could be required to repay immediately.

The fair value hierarchy groups the financlal instruments Into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to
which the fair vafue is observable. There were no transfers to other levels in 2017 and 2016.

28.

Financla! Risk Managentant Objectives and Policles

The Group’s principal financial Instruments comprise mainly of cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, raceivable from PENZ, trade and other payables (excluding statutory payable and
customers’ deposit), loans payable, due to related parties and refundable lease deposits, The matn
purpose of these financlal instruments s to finance the Group's oparations,

The main risks arising from the Group’s fAnancial instruments are credit risk, interast rate risk,
liguidity risk and forelgn currency risk, The Group’s BOD and management review and approve the
policies for managing each of the risks summarized beiow.

Credit Rigk
Credit risk Is the risk when a counterparty falls to fulfill its obligations to the Group.

The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
Group’s consolidated statements of financial position before taking into consideration collateral and
other credit enhancements;

2017 - . 2016
Cash in banks and cash equivalents ' $4,423,449 §7,391,722
Trade and other racelvabies 5,414,233 6,724,908
Receivabie from PFNZ* 934,004 1,068,019
Refundable deposits* 54,786 61,815

$14,886,472 $15,246,464

*Under other noncumrent assets

The Group, however, deals only with reputable hanks and customers to limit this risk,
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As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the aging analysis of the Group’s financial assets is as follows:

2027
Past Dus Accounts bt notimpakred
Nelther Past Impalred
Duenor 1-30Days 31-6DDayx Over Financial
: impelred Pest Due Past Due 80 Daye Assete Total
Cashinbanks - $4,415,573 $- $- ~ %= $4415573
Cash equivalents 7.876 - - - - 1,676
Trade and other
racefvabies 4,345,089 4,180,826 262,465 625,853 2,011,850 11,426,183
Recelvabla from PFNZ* 993,004 - - - - 924,004
Refundable deposits™ 54,786 - - - - 54,786
$9,817£2! u.mE $262.465  $625,853  $2,011 950 ﬂs,ssalqzz
*nder ather noncument mssets
2016
Past Due Accoupts but notimpaired
Nefther Past Impaired
Duenor 1-30Days 31-60Days Over Financlal
Impalred Past Due Paat Due 60 Days Assels Total
Cash in banks $3,710,241 [ 5- 5~ $— 53,710,201
Cash equivalents 3,681,481 - - - ~  3,68L4B1
Trade and other
recelvables 5,452,567 201,847 GB,76R 1,004,724 1,959,471 8,724,379
Recehvable from PFNZ* 1,068,019 - - - - 1,068,019
Refundable degosite* 61,815 - - - - 61,815

513,974,123 $201,847 S68,768 51001726  $1,990471 $17,245.935

*Under noncurrent ossels

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying amounts of financial assets that are neither past
due nor impaired are rated as High Grade. The credi quallty of the Financial assats is managed by
the Group using the Internal credit quality ratings as follows:

High Grade. Pertains to counterparty who is not expected by the Group to default in settling lis
obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimal. This normally includes large prime financial
Institutions and companies. Credit quality was determined based on the credit standing of the
counterparty.

Standard Grade. Other financial assets not belonging to high grade financial assets ara included in
this category.

Substandord Grade. Substandard grade flnancial assets are those which are considered worthless.
These are accounts which have the probabllity of impairment based on historical trend.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the falr value or futura cash flows of a flnancial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest ratas.

The primary source of the Group’s interest rate risk relates to debt instryments such as bank and
mortgage loans. The interest rates on these Habiifties are disclosed In Note 14,
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‘Management belleves that any varlation In the interest will not have a matertal Impact on the net

profit of the Group. Bank and mortgage loans amounting to $24.37 million and $20.88 milllon as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, agreed at intarsst rates ranging from approximately
4.50% to 5.00% for bank loans and 7.15% to 9.56% per annum for long-term foans; expose the
Graup to falr vajue Interest rate risk.

The Group has no floating interest rate, The Group iIs not expased to cash flow interest rate risk,

Liguldity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibllity that the Group may encounter difficulties in raising funds 1o
meet commitments from financfal instruments. It may result from elther the inabliity to sell assets
quickly at fair values or failure to collect from countarparty. :

The Group’s objective is to maintaln a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
related party advances and alms to manage liquidity as follows:

a. Toensure that adequate funding fs available at aif times;
b. To meet commitments as they arise without recurring unnecessary costs; and
¢. To be able to assess funding when needed at the least possible cost,

The following tables detall the Group’s remaining contractual maturities for its nan-derivative
financlal lfabiiities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables
Include both Interest and principal.

2017
Weighted
Average
Effective Within Maore than
Imterest Rate One Year One Year Total
Trade and qther payahbles* - $9,394,437 $- $9,354,437
Loans payahble 4,50% - 9.59% 24,285,300 79,355 24,365,255
Due to related parties 6.5005 - 7,145% 2,142,510 - 2,142,510
Future interest 4.50% - 9.595 28603 11,111 40,744
Refundable lease depasits - - 21,911 21,811
335,652,450 $112,277 435,964,727
*Excliding stotutory peyabie and customers” deposits
2006
Welghted
Average Effective Within Mora than

Interest Rate One Year One Year Total
Trade and other payables* - 25,805,430 3 $5,805,430
Loans pavable 2.75%-9,05% 20,830,802 54,446 20,885,248
Due to related parties 7.15% 136,112 - 136,112
Future Interest 2.80% - 9.59% BAB4 5,143 14,205
Refundable lease deposits - - 92,395 92,395
$26,780,019 $152,584 $26,533,394

*Excluding stotuiory payabie ond customers’ deposit
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures arlsing from purchase and sale transactions
denominated In currencles other than the reporting currency. The Group does not enter into
forward contracts to hedge currency exposures.

As part of the Group’s risk management policy, the Group maintains monktering of the fluctuations
in the foreign exchange rates, thus managing its forelgn currency risk,

The carrying amounts of the Group's Philippine Peso and New Zealand Dollar denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabllities at the reporting datesare as follows:

2017 2016
Philippine US Dollar Philippine US Doitar
Peso Equlvalent Peso Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents R26,858,255 $538,699 RI03,617,011 - 32,084,011
Trade and other receivabies 36,302,077 727,032 16,222,194 326,271
Due from a related party 11,693,298 234,185 11,638,905 234,089
Trade and other payables 290,490,623 5,817,738 140,559,765 2,827,027
Loans payable 160,001,176 3,204,389 155,568,759 3,128,897
2017 2016
New Zealand USDollar  New Zealand US Doliar
Dollar Equlvalent Doliar Equlvalent
Cash and cash aguivalents $825,035 $583,841 $224,970 $160,594
Trade and other recelvables 925,192 656,936 808,835 . 559,552
Due from a reiated party 15,657 11,117 5,070 3,507
Trade and other payables 861,571 469,758 629,046 435,174
Loans payable 89,155 63,306 48,768 33,738
Due to a related party 196,751 139,706 196,751 136,112

Management's Assessment of the Reasonabieness of Possible Change In Foreign Exchange Rates.
The sensltivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary tems adjusted
and translated at period end for a 6% and 10% change in 2017 and 2016, raspectively, In forelgn
currency rates.

The sensitlvity analysls [ncludes all of the Group’s forefgn cumency denominated monetary assets
and Nabilitles. A positive number befow indicates an increase in net profit when the U.S. Dollar
strengthens by 6% and 10% In 2017 and 2016, respectively, against the relevant currency.
For a 6% and 10% in 2017 and 2016, respactively, weakening of the U.5, Dollar against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite Impact on the net profit and the balances on the
foliowing table would be negative,
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The following table detalls the Group’s sensitivity to the US. Dollar against the relevant forelgn
currency.

:

Effect on Income (Loss) for the Periad

2017 2016

Cash and cash equivalents - $67,352 5207,951
Trade and other recelvablas 83,039 32,627
Due from related parties : 14,718 23,409
Trade and other payables {377,250) (276,913)
Loans peyable {196,0562) (558,901)
{$4108,203) (6571,827)

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that It malntains a strong
credit standing and stable capital ratlos in order to support Its business and maximize shareholder
value. The Group maintains its current capita! structure and wi! make adjustments, if necessary, in
order to generate 2 reasonable lavel of returns to stockholders over the long term. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year.

The Group considers the equity presented in the consolidated statements of financlal posltion as s
core capltal.

The Group monltors capital using debt to equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equlty.
The debt-to-equity ratlo as at Decembar 31, 2017 and 2016, follows:

2017 2016
Debt $36,830,072 $27,745,080
Equity 33,688,498 32,112,207
Dabt-to-Equity Ratio $1,09:1 $0.86:1

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capltal requirements.

Debt is composed of trade and other payables, loans payable, due to related parties and income tax
payable as discussed in Notes 13, 14, and 15 respectivaly, while equity includes share capltal,
reserves of the Group and non-controlling interests, less treasury shares.

Pursuant to the PSE's rules on minimum public ownership, at least 10% of the Jssued and
outstanding shares of a listed company must be owned and held by the public. The public
ownershlp is about 32% as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The Group reviews its capital structure on an annual basis. As part of this review, the Group
considers the cost of capltal and the risks associated with it.
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29. Operating Segment Information

The primary segment reporting format is presented based on the business segments in which the
Graup's risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and
services provided. The Group is organized into three major operating business segments
(tuna, salmon and rental} in 2017, and 2016 which is consistent with how the Group’s management
Internally monitors and analyzes financial information.

Financial information about reportable segments follows:

December 31, 2017
Tuna Salmon Rgntal Total
Segment revenus $43,016,969 528,757,881 9144925  §72,349,775
Inter-segment ravanue - {77,341 {B0,856) {158,197)
Net revenue $43,416,965 $28,710,540 $64,069 $72,191,578
Segment results
Income {loss} bafora income tax {$884,747)  $1,607,920 {5160,655) $562,514
Provision for (beneftt fram)
Incoma tax {1,640,864} 623,705 16,625 {1,000,534)
Net income {loss} $756,117 $9284,715 {.§177,2&0] §$1,553,052
Totel assets 541,183,305 $21,035,287 $8,288,978 $70,518,570
Total liabilitfes $33,623,685 $2,963,647 $242,740  $36,930,072
Net cash flows provided by {used in):
Operating activities ($10,008,715)  $3,281,839 (8567}  (56,727,443)
Investing activities {804,533) {441,455] - {1,245,998)
Financing activitles 8,720,522 (3,675,012} - 2,044,710
Other information: _
Depreciation and amorthization $663,544 $487,053 S~  $1,150,597
Other noncash income - net 1,294,249 15,852 - 1,310,001
Decamber 31, 2016
Tuna Salmon Rental Total
Segment revenue $34,938,555 $24,957,221 $738,320  $60,635,096
Inter-segment revenue - (41,906) (678,713) (720,619}
Net revenue $34,929,555 $24,915,315 $59,607 455,914,477
Segment results
income {loss) bafore income tax [$6,137,014) . $1,377,393 ($18,250) (4,777,871}
Provision for income tax 343,078 566,621 211,199 1,120,898
Net Income (loss) - (56,480,092} 5810,772 {3229,849)  (5,898,769)
Totai asseis $29,214,871 $22,034,352 58,612,064  $55,861,287
Total liabllities $24,793,234 52,774,097 $181,348 527,749,080

{Forward)
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December 31, 2016
Tuna Salmon Rental Total

Net cash flows provided by (used in): .

Operating actlvities _ ($7,321,522) $1,173,294 $306,988  {$5,841,240)

investing actlvities {248,997) {439,155 - (683,152)

Financing activities (2,947,263} {375,818} {306,718}  (3,629,799)
Other Information: '

Depreclation and amortizatlon 5713,017 5433,973 $2,680 $1,149,670

- Other noncash income - net 1,255,801 78,408 - 1,334,209

Geographical information about repartable segments follows:

December 31, 2027
Phllippines - Indonesla USA New Zealand Tatal
Segment safes 544,088,592 $2,096,774 $20,172,332  $5,892,077 $72,349,775
Inter-segment revenue {80,856} - - (77,341) (158,197}
Total net sales $44,007,736 $2,096,774 $20,72,332 $5,814,736 $72,191,578

" Sggment noncurrent assets® $10,535,227 32,406,639 $546,006  $1,370,131  $14,362,003
Inter-segment noncurrent

assets 3,823,242 {1,090,400) - 91,014 2,823,856
Total noncurrent assets: %$14,952,369 $1,316,239 $546,006  $1,461,145 $17,585,859
*Inciudes property, plant and equipment and cther noncurrent assets.

December 31, 2016

Philippines  Indonesia LUSA - New Zealand Total
Segment salas $33,634,583  $3,828,084 518,509,173  $4,263,256 560,635,006
inter-segment revenue {678,713) - - {41,905} {720,619)

Total net sales $32,955870 $3,828,084 $18,509,173 54,221,350 $59,914,477

Segment noncurrent assets* $10,204,273 52,698,490 5644,044 $974,482 514,521,289
inter-sagment noncurrent
assets 3,866,910 - - - 3,865,910

Total noncurrent assets $14,071,183  $2,698490 5644,044 4974482 418,388,199
“Includes preperty, plant and equipment and other nonfurrent assets. :

The Group has no revenues from transactions with a single external cusiomer accounting for 10% or
more of It5 revenues from external customers.
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30. Reconciltatlon of Liabilitles Arlsing From Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Company’s liabHities arising from financing activitles,

including cash and noncash changes:

Financing Cash Flows

2016 Avallments Payments 2017

Loans payable 520,884,629 525,164,744  ($25,684,118) $24,365,255
Due to relatad parties 136,112 2,006,398 - 2,142,510
Interest payahle 90,595 787547 {435,828) 442,314
$21,111336 431958689 (526,119,946} $26,950,079
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FIING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Alliance Select Foods International, Inc..

Unit 1206 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

We have audited the accompanying consoiideted financial statements of Altlance Select Foods
International, Inc. (a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.) and Subsidiarles as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2017, on which we have rendered our report dated March 23, 2018,

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that Alliance Select
Foods International, Inc. has two hundred twenty one {221} stockholders owning one hundred (100) or
more shares each.

REYES TACANDONG & Co,

G2 mt D OLL

EMMANUEL V. CLARINO

Partner

CPA Certificata Np, 27455

Tax Idantiication No. 102-084-D04-000

BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Vaiid until Decernber 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation Na, 1021-AR-2 Group A
Valld untl) March 27, 2020

BIR Accreditatinn No. 08-005144-005-2017
Valld unti] January 13, 2020
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Issuad January 3, 2018, Makat] Clty

March 23, 2018
Makat| City, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'
QN SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directars
Alllance Select Foods International, Inc.

Unit 1206 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Paslg City

We have audlted In accordance with Philippine Standards an Auditing, the consalidated financial statements
of Alliance Select Foods international, Inc. (a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.} and Subsidiarles (the “Group”} as at
and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and have Issued our report thereon dated March 23, 2018, Our
audit was made for the purpose of forming an oplnion on the basic consolidated financlal statements taken
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules as follows are the responsibility of the Group's
management:

Adoptinn of Effective Accounting Standards and Interpretations
. Financial Soundness Indicators
Conglomerate map
Reconclliation of Retained Earnings Avallable for Dividend Declaration
Supplementary Schedules as Required by Part 11 of Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as
Amended

These schedules are presented for the purpose of complying with Secusities Regulation Code Rule 68, as
amended, and are not part of the basic consolidated financial stitements. The Informatlon In these
schedules has been subjected to the suditing procedures applied in cur audit of the basic consolidated
financlal statements, including compering such infarmation directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the baslc consalldated financlal statements or to the basic consolidated financlal
statements themselves. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated In all material respects In reiatfon to
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as 2 whole,

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

G2t D 007

EMMANUEL V. CLARING

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 27455

Tax Identiication No. 102-084-004-000

BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valld untll December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Groug A
Valld until March 27, 2020

BIR Accracitation No, 08-005144-005-2017
Valld until January 15, 2020

PTA Mo, 6607954
lssued January 3, 2018, Makati City

March 23, 2018
Makatl Clty, Metro Manlla
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBRSIDIARES

(A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.}

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

PECEMBER 31, 2017

Not Not
Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financlal
Statements v
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics
PFRS Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Phillppine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) !
Ad Not Not
PFRS Thie ted Adopted | Applicable
PFRS 1 {Revised) First-tlme Adoption of Phllllpplne Financlal Reporting v
Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for 7
First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption irom
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for Firsttime v
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and v
Remaoval of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1; Gavernment Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Condltions and W
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- v
based Payment Transactions
PFAS 3 (Revised) | Business Comblnations v
Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent v
Consideration In a Business Combination
Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for lpint v
Ventures
PFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts
Amendments to PFRS 4: Financlal Guarantee Contracts v




Not Not
Adopted | Applicabla

PFRS Title Adopted

PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 7
Operations

Amendmant to PFAS 5: Changes in Methads of Disposal

PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluatien of Mine.ral Resources

PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures ¥

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financlal v
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassiflcatlon of Flnanclal v
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures sbout v
Flnancial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of v
Financlal Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting v
Financial Assets and Financlad Liablilties

Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts v
Amendment to PFRS 7: Applicablity of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Intertm Financlal v
Statements

PFRS 8 Operating Segments v

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Openating v
Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconclliation of the Total of v
the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity's Assets

PFRS 10 Consolidated Financlal Statements v

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transltion Guldance

| Amendments to PFRS 10: Investiment Entitles v
Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entitles; Appying v
the Consolldation Exception

PFRS 11 JoInt Arvangements v
Amendments to PFRS 11; Transition Guidance d

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions v
of Interests in Joint Operations :

PFRS 12 Disclosure of interests In Other Entities v

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transttlon Guldance v




i Not Not
i PFRS
i Thle Adopted |, jopted | Applicable
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entitles v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entitles: Applying 7
the Cansolldation Exception.
Amendment te PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of v
the Standard
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement v
Amendment to PFRS 13: Short-term recelvables and v
Payables
Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception
PFRS 14 Reguiatery Deferral Accounts
Phllippine Accounting Standards (PASs)
Not Not
PAS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
s ) PAS 1 (Revised] Presentation of Financial Statements 4
S ' Amendments to PAS 1: Puttable Financial instruments v
and Obligations Arlsing on Liquidation
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Qther v
Comprehensive Income
Amendment to PAS 1: Qlarification of the v
Requirements for Comparative Presentation
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure initiative v
PAS2 Inventorles v
ﬁAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows v
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative v
Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates
PAS 8 4
) and Errors )
o PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAasS 11 Construction Contracts v
"PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of v
Uniderlying Assets
Amendments to PAS 12; Recognltton of Deferred Tax v
Assets for Unrealized Losses




PAS Not Not
Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16: ClassHfication of Servicing v
Equipment
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated v
Depreclation
Amendment to PAS 16; Property, Plant and Equipment
- Clarlfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation v
and Amorntization
Amendmant to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19
v
(Revised) Employee Benefits
Amendment to . PAS 19: Dafined Benefit Plans: v
Empleyee Contributions
Amendment to PAS 19: Dlscaunt Rate: Regional Market v
155U
PAS 20 Accountlng for Government Grants snd Disclosure of v
: Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Forelgn Exchange Rates v
Amendrent: Net investment in a Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 (Revised) | Borrowing Costs v
PAS 24 {Revised) | Related Party Disclosuras v
Amendment to PAS 24: Key Mansgement Personnsl v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27
v
{Amended) Separate Financla! Statements
Amendments to PAS 27; Investment Entitles v
Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate v
Financlal Statements
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
{Amended) .
Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying v
the Consolidation Exception




PAS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicabla

PAS 29

Financial Reporting In Hyperinfiationary Economies

v

FAS 32

Financiai Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Financlal Instruments: Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Finencial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to PAS 32; Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financlal Liahilitles

Amendments to PAS 32; Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders of EquRty Instruments

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Amendment to PAS 34: interim Financlal Reporting and

‘Segment mformation for Total Assets and Liabllities

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of information
‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financlal Report’

PAS 36

Impalrment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Finarnclal Assets

PAS 37

Provislons, Contingent Liabilitles and Contingent Assats

PAS 38

Imangible Assets

Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Method ~
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization :

Amendment to PAS 38: Clarffication of Acceptabla
Methods of Depreclation and Amortizatian

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognitlon and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transltion and lnjtlal
Recognition of Financlal Assets and Financial Liabllit[es

Amendments to PAS 39; Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Valua Option

Amendments to PAS 39: Financlal Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financla}
Assets




Net "Not
PAS
Title Adopted | 4 topted | Applicable
Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial 7
Assets - Effective Date und Transition
Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives v
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items v
Amendments to PAS 39: Novatlon of Derlvatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting v
PAS40 investment Property v
Amendment to PAS 40: Clarifylng the intervelationship
betweeri PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifylng Property v
as Investment Property or Owner-occupled Praperty
PAS 41 Agriculture v
Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture; Bearer Plants v
Philippine Interpretations
interpretations Titla Adopted Ad'::: od AppTI:nbh
IERIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissloning, Restoration and v
Simllar Liabllitles
IFRIC 2 Members® Share in Co-operative Entities and Simifar /
Instruments
. IFRIC4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contalns a v
Lease
| FRf s Rights to Interests arising from Decomsmissloning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC § Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market v
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
IFRICT Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporting in Hypernflationary Economies
[FRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Phllipplne Interpretation IFRIC-D; v
Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 1D Interim Financial Reporting and-Impalrment
{FRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC13 Customer Loyalty Programmes




Interpretations Not Not
P . Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable

PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Renefit Asset,

IFRIC 14 v
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Phillppine Interpretations IFRIC 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net investment in a Forelgn Operation v

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v

IFRIC 19 Extingulshing  Financiai  Liabilities with  Equfty v
Instruments

iFRIC 20 Stripping Costs In the Production Phase of a Surface : v
Mine

IFRIC21  |levles v

PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIDNS - SIC

Not Not
retati A
Interpretations Thie dopted Adopted | Applicable
SIC-7 | introduction of the Euro v
Gavernment Asslstance -~ No Specific Relation to
Sic-10 Operating Actlvitles v
SIC-15 Qperating Leases - Incentlves Y
Income Taxes - Changes In the Tax Status of an Entity
SiC-25 v
or Its Shareholders
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving tha v
Legal Form of a Lease
5129 Service Concassion Arrangements: Disclosures. _ v
sic-a1 Revenye - Barter Transactions Involving Advertsing s
_ Services

SIC-32 Intanglble Assets - Web Site Costs v




ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, IHC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(A Subslidlary of Strongoak int.)

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Below Is @ schedule showing financial soundness indicators of the Group as at and for the years

ended 2017, 2016 and 2015,

2017 2016 2015

CURRENT/LIQUIDITY RATIO
Current assats $33,608,806 $23,543,396 530,787,776
Current Itabilities 36,358,322 27,128,124 27,785,532
Current Ratio 0.92 0.87 111
SOLVENCY RATIO
Net income (loss) before depreciation and )

amortization $2,713,649 (54,749,099) {56,837,838)
Total liabilitigs 38,830,072 27,743,080 30,473,956
Solvency Ratlo 0.07 {0.17) {(0.22)
DEBT-TO-EQUITY RATIO
Total liabilitles $36,830,072 527,749,080 $30,473,956
Total equity - 33,688,498 32,112,207 38,063,978
Dabt-to-Equity Ratle 1.09 046 0.80
ASSET-TO-EQUITY RATIO
Total assets $70,518,570 $59,861,287 568,537,934
Total equity 33,688,498 32,112,207 38,063,978
Asset-to-Equity Ratio 2.09 1.86 180
INTEREST-COVERAGE RATIO
Earnings before interest and taxes $1,350,065 (53,908,354) {56,291,942) -
Interest expense 781,547 868,517 1,903,051
interiest-Coverage Ratio 1.71 {4.50) {3.31}
PROFITABILITY RATID
Het income {loss) attributable to equity

holders of the Parent Company 51,437,271 {55,968,529) {55,392,352)
Average equlty 32,900,353 35,088,093 30,697,320
Return on Equity 4,37% {17.01%) {20.82%)



ALLIANCE SELECY FOODS INTERNATIGNAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Deficlt at beginning of year as shown in the separate financial statements {$22,528,486)
Less deferred tax assets at the beginning of year {7,732,162)
Add deferrad tax liability at the beginning of year 17,748
Total deficit, as adjusted at beginning of year {30,242,900)
Net loss during the yeat closed to retalned earnings (8,977,458}
Add {less);

Movement in deferred tax assets (1,718,077}

Movement in deferred tax liability (17,748)

Treasury shares {5,774)
Total deficit avafiable for dividend declaration at end of year 5-
Reconeiliation:
Deficit at end of year as shown In the separate financial statements {$31,505,944)
Add {less):

Deferred tax asset as at end of year {9,450,239)

Treasury shares (5,774}
Total deficit available for dividend declaration at end of year G-
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(A Subsldlary of Strangoak Inc)
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PART Il of SRC RULE 68 AS AMENDED
- DECEMBER 31, 2017
Table of Cantents
Schedule Description Page
A Financial Assets 1

Amounts Recelvable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Partles

and Principal Stockholders [Other than Related Partles) 2
¢ Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated During the
Consolldatian of the Financial Statements ) E
D intangible Assets - Other Assets 4
E Long-Term Debt ]
F Indebtedness to Related Party. _NA
G " Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers _N/A
H Capital Stock ' ]
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SCREDULE A
ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc)
SCHEDULE A - FINANGIAL ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
Number of Shares  Amount Shown in the Income
or Principal Amount  Statement of Financial received and
Descrlption  of bonds and notes Position accrued
Cash in banks
Security Bank of the Philippines ~ $1,589,419 5—
Citizens Bank - 1,100,806 -
ANZ Bank - 585,828 -
Bangkok Bank Manila - 345,048 -
Bank of Mandiri . - 297,617 -
Banco De Oro Universal Bank - 211,319 -
Land Bank of the Phiiippines - 188,630 -
Bank of the Phlilppine Islands - 43,4970 -
Union Bank of the Philippines - 22,518 -
Rabinsans Bank - 13,915 -
Asia United Bank - 3,016 =
Phiflppine Veterans Bank - 2,844 -
Sterling Bank of Asla - 2414 -
East West Bank - . o 1,422 -
PhHippine Business Bank - - 1,355 -
Development Bank of the Phllippines - 604 -
Rabo Bank - 344 -
' $4,415,573

Cash equivalents _
Security Bank of the Phillppines - ' 7,876 -
$4,423,449 $19,079
Trade receivables $8,876,444 5
Recelvable from PFNZ 1,134,962 51,886
Due from related parties 276,382 ' -
Other nontrade receivables 89,678 -
$10,377,466 $51,886
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AUDITED FINANCIAL SYATEMENTS

SEC Reglstration Number
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Form Type Department sequiring the mpont Secondary Liense Type, if Applicable
Als[r]s] <[aulo] T
I COMPANY INFORMATION |
Company’s Emal Address Company's Telaphane Numberfs Moblle Number
Info@alllanceselectfoods.com {02) 635-5241 to 44 -

Mo, of Stockholders

Annual Meeting {Month / Day) Fiscal Year {(Month I- Day)
236 June 15 December 31
L GONTACT FRRSON INFORMATION |
The designalad cariact person MUST be an Officer of tha Corporation
Name of Contact Person Emai Address Telephone Numbar/s Mobila Number
Mr. Raymond K.H. See Info@alllanceselectfoods.com |T‘:;?:L) 635-5241 -

L

CONTACT PERSON'S ADDRESS

Unlt 1206 East Tower, Philfppine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchangs Road, Ortlgas Avenue, Paslg City

NOTEL: in cuse of death, resignation or cessotion of office of the offfcer designated o5 contct persan, such Incident sholf Be reported fo the
Commission within thirty (30} cofendor days from the occurrence thereof with information and complete contact detolls of the new contoct person

dasignated,

2:  Alf Boxes must ba properly and completely fifedup. Fallire tp do 5o shalf cause the defay In quduh'ng the corporotion’s records with the
Commlssion and/or non-recelpt of Motice of Defidencles. Further, non-recaipt shalf nat excuse the corparatan fram fiabiltty for ftx daficlencles,
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ALLIANCE SELRCT FOODS
A INTERNATIONAL, INC:

% AMBILICLY BINTEY COMPANY

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

The Manzgement of Alllance Select Foads International, Inc. (the Company} s
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financlal statements
Including the schedules attached therein for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework Indicated
therein, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of flnancial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. -

In preparing the flnancial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable matters
related to golng concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management efther intends to liquidate the Company ar to cease aperations, or has no
realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors Is respansible in overseelng the Company’s financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the finandal statements Including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the members.

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appeintad by the stockholders, has
audited the financial statements of the Company I accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and [n Its report to the members, has expressed its opinion on
the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit.

Signature )%"i S; >

Antonlo C. Pacls”
Chairman of the Boar:

Signature M f

Rayhond|K.H. See [
Chiif Exequtive Officer

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

Larye Tanpayess Servico

Signature . targe Taoenym s Division-Davao
Ma, Cristina C, Villaruz e [
Group Controfler Data LFR 18 2018—] 127
| R ey

ALLAN L. re s AGO




SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this (ﬂeg‘f 201& 2018 at Pasig
City; afflants exhibited to me their government issued identification cards, as follows:

Name Competent evidence | Date and Place of | Valid until
of ldentity fssug
Antonlo Pacls Passport No. | October 30, 2015 Qctober 29, 2020
: EC5835503 '
Raymond K.H. 5ge Passport No. March 17, 2015 March 16, 2020
EC3595414
Maria Cristina | PRC No. 0092146 ' April 1, 2019
Villaruz -
e 4&&\\\:\\\\“
- Doc:No. _(€ ; ;—Fq‘c'op&"(}gﬂ&
PageNo. _ % o \ﬂ,’?r
BookNo. - T ; Pﬂ;ﬁ'ﬂg ‘-'Pg
Series of 2018. BHILS :.—' ;5
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IBPNe. 0{::10!1!-%@17% City
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AUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
Large Taxpayers Service
Lange Taxpaynrs Division-Davao
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockhelders and the Board of Directors
Alliance Select Foods International, Inc.

Unit 1206 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

* Opinion

We have audited the separate financlal statements of Alliance Select Foods intemational, Inc.
(a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.} {the "Company”), which comprise the separate statements of financlal
position as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the separate stements of comprehensive income,
separate statements of changes In equity and sepamate statements of cash fiows for the years then
ended and the notes to the separate financlal statements, including a summary of signlficant accounting
policles.

In our opinton, the accompanying separate ﬂﬁahcial statements present falrly, In all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its financial perfarmance
and its cash fiows for the years then ended In accordance with Philippine Financlal Reporting Standards
{PERS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits In accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilitles under those standards are further described In the Auditors’ Responsiblitties for the
Audlt of the Separote Financlal Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Phillppines {Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the separate flnancfal
statements in the Phillppines, and we have fulfilled our other ethlical responsibllities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is
sufficlent and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinion. '

Responsibilities of Manogement and Those Charged with Governonce for the Sepgrate Financia!
Statements .

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate financlal
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is

BRI

necessary to enable the preparation of separate ﬂnanclar..st ments that are free from material
misstatement, whather due to fraud or error, BURFAY OF i veRag, REVENUE
Laegge Prxpayars Servico
"0 Tax ayeis CivisionDavao
Date | - T RO
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In preparing the separate financlal statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue s a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basls of accounting unless management either Intends to lguldate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s flnancial reporting
process.

Audltors’ Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Separate Financlal Statements

Our obectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an audlitors’
report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, these could reasonebly be expected to infiuence the econamic declsions of users
taken on the basis of these separate financlal statements.

As part of an audlt In accordance with PSA, we exercise professions! judgment and maintain professional
skepticlsm throughout the audit. We also: . '

" ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, deslgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaln
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasls for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resukting from €rror,
as fraud may involve colluslon, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
intermal control,

* Obtaln an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to deslgn audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinjon on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conciude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the golng concern besis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materia) uncertainty exlsts related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
conceri. If we conclude that a materisl uncertainty exlsts, we are required to draw attention In our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the separate financlal statements or, if such dlsclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audtt evidence obtained up
to the date of cur audltors’ repart, However, future events ar conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as-a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentatiod; d-content—of~the separate financial statements
including disclosures, and whet alé‘fﬁéfﬂﬁmﬁéﬁw ements represent the underlying
transactions and events In a manngr thajachjeyes fairnresentation.

Date [‘AP_R 1 P 2m}
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, induding any significant deficiencles In -
intemnal contro! that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding Independence, and commiunicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independente, and where applicable, related
safeguards. : :

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

D C%.l-/
EMMANUEL V. CLARING
Partner
CPA Certificete Na. 27455
Tax Identification No. 102-084-004-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid untll December 31, 2018
SEC accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A
Valid until March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditatlon No, 08-D05144-005-2017
valid undil lanuary 13, 2020
PTR No. 6607954
{ssued January 3, 2018, Makad City

March 23, 2018
Makati City, Metro Manila
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, IN

{A Subsidiary of Strongoak Int.)

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
Note 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents | $2,225,231 54,186,918
Trade and other receivables 5 6,249,389 3,695,787
Inventorles 6 11,468,354 5,506,505
Due from related parties 13 2,057,001 14,138,968
Other current assets 7 4,756,734 533,958
Total Current Assets 32,766,649 28,062,137
Noncurrent Assets
investments in subsidiaries 8 18,039,544 23,038,542
Property, plant and equipment g 3,329,237 2,819,878
Deferred tax assets - net 24 9,450,290 7,713,414
QOther noncurrent assets 10 2,068,086 2,021,253
Total Noncurrent Assets 32,887,106 35,594,089
$65,653,755 563,656,226
LIARILITIES AND EQUITY
Curremt Labilkties
Trade and other payablas 11 55,831,455 $3,868,871
Loans payable 12 24,263,385 20,758,621
Notes payahle 13 2,700,000 1,000,000
Due to Parent Company -13 2,002,804 —
Total Current Llabllities 35,797,624 25,628,592
Noncurrent Liabilitles
Loans payable - net of current portion 12 38,565 33,713
Notes payable - net of current portion 13 750,000 -
Net retirement benefit obligation 14 191,673 145,839
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 980,238 179,552
Total Liabllitles 36,777,881 25,808,144
Equity . ]
Capital stock BUREAL OF INTERNAL REVENUE? 53,646,778 53,645,778
Additional paid-in caphtal Lirge Taxpavars Service 1 6,662,001 6,662,001
Other comprehensive income Large 1j:tvivs hishon Dawaoy 4, 73,563 73,563
Deficl Butel RDO (81,500,695}  (22,528,486)
E [APR 16 2018 | 17 28,881,647 37,853,856
Treasury shares LR T {5,774) (5,774}
Total Equity s t g 29,875,873 37,848,082
ALLADT AL
i §65,653,755 %63,656,226

See accompanying Notes (o Separote Finonchol Statements.
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak Int.)

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended Dacambar 31
Note 2017 2016 2015
NET SALES 16 $41,320195 $31,111,471  $34,409,595
COST OF GOODS SOLD 17 (36,967,178) {31,989,024) (33,275,546)
GROSS PROFIT {LOSS} 4,353,017 (877,553} 1,134,050
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 13 {3,267,039) (3,467,160} ' {8,037,696)
INTEREST EXPENSE 12 (769,302) {627,183) (928,365}
OTHER INCOME {CHARGES) - Net 19 (10,929,745) ' 688,784 76,460
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX {10,613078) (4,283,112} (7,755,555}
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM)
INCOME TAX 24
Current 84,961 420 35,221
Deferred {1,735825} (298,595) {570,345}
(1,640,354) {298,175} (535,124)
NET LOSS {8,972205)  (3,984,937)  {7,220,431)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
item that will not be reclassified
subsequentiy to profit or loss
Remeasurement galn on retirement
beneflt obligatlon {net of tax effect) 14 - 105,728 92,034
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS {$8,972.209) (53,879,209}  {$7,128,397)
LOSS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted loss per share 21 ($0.00359)  {$0.00159)  {50.00430)
Se# accormpanying Notes to Separate Finandal Statements,
BUREAY oF INTERNAL REVENUE
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
{A Subseldiary of Strongoak Ins)

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31
Note 017 2016 2015

CAPITAL STOCK 15
Balance at beginning of year $53,646778  $53,646,778 532,238,544
Issuance - ~ 21,408,234
Balance at end of year 53,646778 53,646,778 53,645,778
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 15
Balance at beginning of year 6,662,001 6,662,001 6,768,843
Stock issue costs - - {106,842)
Balance at end of year 6,662,001 6,662,001 6,662,001
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS) 14 :
Balance at beginning of year 73563 (32,165} (124,199)
Remeasurement gain on retirement

benefit obligation {net of tax effect) - 105,728 92,034
Balance at end of year 78563 73,563 {32,165)
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year - (22,528486)  (18,543,549) (11,323,118)
Net loss {8,972,208)-  (3,984,937)  {7,220,431)
Balance at end of year (31,500,595) (22,528,486) (18,543,549)
TREASURY SHARES
Balance at beginning and end of year 15 {5.774) (5,774) (5,774)

$28,875,673  $37,848,082 $41,727,291

See pccompanying Notes to Separate Financlal Statements,

BUREAU OF INTRRMAL REVENUE
Large Taxpayers Saivice
Large Taspuyurs Divislon-Davao
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ALUANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak In¢,)

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

: Yoars Ended December 31
Note 2047 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before incoma tay ($10,613,073} (54,283,112}  {(47,755,555)
Adjustments for:
Provisfon for impalrment losses on:
Due from related parties 13 6,667442 - -
Investment In a subsidiary 8 4,999,000 - -
Inventorles 6 230,780 267,059 3,441,498
Trade and other recelvables 5 51,275 42,925 123,651
Other noncurrent assets 10 - 313,320 240,564
Property, plant and equipment 9 - - 101,406
Interest expense 12 769302 627,183 928,369
Depredation and amortization ? 375,601 378,607 361,226
Snterest Income a {263,613} {145,212} {167,723)
Retirement benefits 14 45,423 87,143 71,322
Unrealized forelgn exchange loss {gain) 18366 {59,160} {6,023}
Loss (gain) on disposal of Investment and
property, plant and equipment 19 (627} (3,589} 599,487
Reversal of aliowsnce for impairment
losses on inventorjes 19 - - {368,294)
Operating income (loss) bsfore working
capltal changes 2,289,965 (2,773,836} {2,429,672)
Dacrease (Increase] in:
Trade and other receivables (2,635,866) {1,170,777) 855,453
inventorles {6,192,629) (571,910} 2,632,526
Other current assets {4,318253) {159,617} 283,535
Cther noncurrant assets {64,688) {32,472) {26,253}
Increase (decrease) In trade and other
payables 3,627,819 770,819 {690,638)
Net cash generated from (used for)
operations {7,251,651) (3,937,753) 624,951
Interest received 32815 76,692 99,275
Incomne tax paid {1,484) {305} -
Contribution to retirement fund 14 - (42,403) {33,738)
Retirement beneflts pald 14 - (38,833) (18,381)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
actlvities {7,260320) (3,942,643} 672,107

{Forwaord)
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Years Ended December 31
Nota 2017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addltiens to property, plant and equipment ] {$888,050) {$444,651) {5510,200)
Increase in due from related parties {1,006,166) (3,622,661) (5,318,736}
Proceeds from;
Sale of property, plant and equipment g 627 3,589 -
Pisposal of investments 8 - - 5,000
Net cash used in investing activities {1,893,589) (4,063,723) (5,823,936)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Availment of loans 29,122,545 33,949,512 65,504,488
Avdilment of promissory notes 2,450,000 - 800,000
Issuante of shares - - 21,901,392
Payments of [pans {25,608602) (36,031,962) (67,628,428)
Advances from Parent Company 2,001,804 - -
interest pald {785,161} {558,183) {787,428)
Net cash provided by {used In) financing
acthvitles 7,180,586 (2,630,633) 19,190,024
EFFECT. OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES 11536 (5,136) -
NET IHCREASE {DECREASE) 174 CASH AND _
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,961,787) (10,642,135) 14,038,195
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,185,518 14,835,053 790,858
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 4 $2,225,131 $4,186,918  $14,825,053
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 4
Cash on hand . 81502 $2,797 $10,012
Cash In banks 2,223519 502,640 856,575
Cash equivalents - 3,681,481 14,162,456
$2,225131  $4,186,518  $14,829,053
NONCASH iINVESTING ACTIITIES
Rental payable offsat against due from a
related party 13 $584,348 b= 5-
Converslon of advances to equity Investment g - 2,568,529 2,434,083
_$584,3 ““ﬁ‘;SﬂBﬁ! 9 ——5%434;083
lLiﬂﬂ Taxppynrs Sarvice |
See uccompanying Notes to Separaie Financlal Startements, Latge Tiow « soes Division-Duvag
~trpo
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.)

NOTES TO SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information and Status of Operation

General Information

Alllance Select Foods International, Inc. {ASFIl or the *Company”} is a publicly listed corporation
under Section 17.2 of the Securlties Regulation Code (SRC} and was Incorperated in the Phllipplnes
and repistered with the Securitles and Exchange Commlssion (SEC) on September 1, 2003, The
Company is primarily engaged In the business of manufacturlng, canning, Importing and exporting of
food products such as marine, aquaculture and other processed seafoods. Its shares are listed in
the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) since November 8, 2006.

Strongoak Inc. {the “Parent Company”) acquired 952,479,638 common shares of the Company from
the increase in authorized capital stock and stock rights offering, which were both #pproved by the
SEC on October 28, 2015, This resulted in Strongoak Inc. owning a total of 1,382,765,864 common
shares, representing 55.32% of the total Issued and outstanding shares of the Company
{see Note 15). As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company Is a subsidiary of Strongoak inc,
Strongoak Inc. is a domestic company engaged In investing activities.

On July 20, 2017 and September 7, 2017, the Board of Directors {BOD) and Stockholders,
respectively, approved the Company’s equity restructuring by reducing the par value of Its shares
and applylng the resulting excess and additional pald-in capital against the Company's deflclt.
On March 23, 2018, the equity restructuring was approved by the SEC (see Note 15).

The Company’s registered office address Is Unit 1206 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City. It has a plant facllty located in Brgy. Tambler, General
Santos City, Philfppines. .

Investments in Subsidlaries

The Company has investments in the followIng subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Princlpal Place

Name of Subsfdfary % of Qwnership Nature of Business of Business
Spence & Company Itd. (Spence) Safmon and other United States
100 seafod processing of Amerlca
Bfg Glory Bay Salmon and Seafood Salmonand other
Company, Inc. {BGBj : 100 seafoad processing Phlllppines
ASF[ Thalland 100 Safes office Thalland
PT Intemnational Alllance Food Indonesia
{PTIAFI} 40,08 Cannedfish processing Indanesla
Alltance MHI Propertles, Inc. (AMHI) 98.89 Leasing Philippines
Akaroa Salmon (NZ) Ltd. (Akaros) Salmon farming and
80 pracassing New Zealand
PT. Van De Zee (PT YDZ)"'® 49 Rshing Indonesia
y—
ib) indirect ownership through PTIAF! Larye Ta yravers Service [
Largut Taxgages Owision-Davan
Date !{E_;p
27
APR 18 201
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Status of Operations

Management is undertaking the necessary inltiatives to improve operation and maintain financial
stability. WIith these Initiatives, which Include expanding global market, targeting key aceounts,
impraving efficlencies across all areas of operations and better inventory management and raw
material sourcing, management has projected a turnaround in operation with a positive result of
operation and cash flow in the coming years.

The Company incurred net losses of $8.97 million, $3.98 million and $7.22 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively, as the Company continue to straamline its operation. The losses were primarily
due to impairment losses recognized from investment in and advances to PTIAFI aggregating
$11.67 million In 2017, impairment losses on inventorles of $0.23 milion, $0.27 million and
$3.44 milllon in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and Impeirment losses on property, plant and
equipment and other noncurrent assets of $0.31 milllon and $0.34 million in 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Notes 6, 8, 9, 10, and 13}, Losses in 2016 and 2015 were also due to volatility In
raw material prices and lower pricing.

In 2017, the Company decided to unclertake an equity restructuring. This will result to the
elimination of the Company's capital deficlt of $32.00 milion, which the SEC approved on
Merch 23, 2018.

The Parent Company has infused capital of $30.05 million to sustaln the Company’s operations and
in 2017 extended & loan of $2.00 mlllion (equivalent to ®100.00 million) to the Compacy
(see Note 13). The Parent Company will continue to provide the necessary level of financlal support
to enable ASFII to meet its working capital requirements,

Approval of Separate Financlal $tatements

The Company's separate financfal statements were approved and authorized for Issuance by the
BOD on March 23, 2018,

Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporllng Policles

The significant accounting policies used In the preparation of separate financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation
The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in sccordance with

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). This financhl reparting framework includes all
epplicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards {PAS}, and Interpretations issued by the
Intemational Finantial Reporting interpretations Committes {IFRIC), Philippine Imerpretations
Committee (PIC), and Standing Interpretations Committee {SIC) as approved by the Financial
Reporting Standard Councif (FRSC) and Board of Accountancy (BDA} and adopted by the SEC,

The Company also prepares and Issues consolidated financlal statements In compliance with PERS

for the same period as the separate flnancial statements, These may be obtained at the registered
office address of the Company or at the SEC,
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Measurament Bases
The separate financlal statements of the Company are presented In U.S. Dollar, the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest U.S. Dollar unless otherwise indicated.

The separate financlal statements have been prepared on a historical cost basls. Historcal cost is
generally based on the fair vaiue of the consideration given In exchange of an asset and the Fair
vajue of conslderation received In exchange for incurring a liakltity.

Fair vaiue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a llability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company uses
market observable data to the axtent possible when measuring the fair value of an asset or a
llability, Falr values are categorized into different levels in afalr value hierarchy based on inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active marketsfor identical assets or liabilities

level 2 — Valuatian techniques for which tha fowest level input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly cbservable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized in different
levels of the fair vaiue hierarchy, then the fair value measurement Is categorized In Its entirety in the
same level of the falr vaiue hierarchy as the lowest level input that Is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the far value hlerarchy at the end of the
raporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made In measuring falr valuas is included in Note 25 to
the separate financial statements.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting pollcies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, axcept for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for
annual perlods beginning on or after January 1, 2017;

«  Amendmaents to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows - Distosure Inltlative — The amendments
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financfal statements to evaluate
changes in labilities arising from financing activities,

s Amendments to PAS 12, fncome Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses — The amendments clarify the accounting for defemed tax where an asset is measured at
fair value and the falr value Is below the asset’s tax base (e.g. deferred tax asset related to
unrealized losses on debt Instruments measured at fair value), as well as certaln other aspects of
accounting for deferred tax assets,



Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities — Clarification of the Scope of
the Standgrd = The amendments are part of the Annual improvements ta PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle
and clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12 apply to interests in entlties within the

* scope of PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sole and Discontinued Operations except for

summarized flnanclal information for thase interests {i.e. paragraphs 810-816 of PFRS 12).

The adoption of the foregaing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
separate financial statements. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to separate
financlal statemants, as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS Issued But Not Yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing the separate financial statements are summarized below,

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

PFRS 9, Financiol instruments - This standard will replace PAS 39, Financiol instruments:
Recognition and Measurement {and 2l the previous versions of PFASY), |t conizins
requirements for the classHication and measurement of flnancial assets and financial Habilitles,
impairment, hedge accounting, recognition and derecognltion.

PFRS 8 requires all recognized financlal assets ta be subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value (through profit or Joss or through other comprehensive Income), depending on the
classification by reference to the business mode! within which these are held and its contractual
cash flow characteristics.

For financial llabllitles, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the Fair value
option is taken: the amount of change In fair value of a financla! llability designated as at fair
value through proflt or lass that is ettributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognized in other comprehensive Income {rather than in proflt or loss), unless this creates an
accounting mismatch,

For the impalrment of financlal assets, PFRS 9 Introduces an “expected credit loss” model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at Inception of a contract; recognition of a credit
Joss should no longer wait for there to be objective evidence of Impairment.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 8 introduces a substantlal overhaul allowing financial statements to
better refiect how risk management actjvities are undertaken when hedging financial and
non-financial risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carrled over almost unchanged from PAS 39,

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - The new standard replaces
PAS 11, Construction Controcts, PAS 18, Revenue and related Interpretations. It establishes a
single comprehensive framework for revenue recogrition to apply consistently across
transactlons, industries and capital markets, wih a core principle (based on a five-step model to
be applied to all contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or improved
guidance (e.g. the point at which revenue Is recognized, accounting for varlable consideratlons,
costs of fulfllling and obtaining a contract, etc.).
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Amendment to PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarlfication to PFRS 15 -
The amendments provide clarifications on the following topics: {a} identlfying performance
obligations; (b) principal versus agent considerations; and (c) licensing. The amendments also
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.

Amendments to PAS 28, /nvestments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures - Measuring an Associate
or Joint Venture at Fair Value — The amendments are part of the Annual Improvements to
PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle and clarify that the election to measurs at fair value through profit or loss
an lnvestment in an associate or a joint venture that Is held by an entity that Is a venture capltal
organization, mutual fund, unit trust or other qualifying entity, Is available for each Invastment
in an assoclate or joint venture on an investment-by-investment basls, upon Inltial recognitian.

Phillppine Interpretation IFRIC 22, Forelgn Currency Transactions ond Advance
Consideration ~ The interpretation provides guldance clarifying that the exchange rate to use in
transactions that involve advance consideration pald or received Ina foreign currency is the one
at the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income
fiability. : :

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

PFRS 16, leases - This standard replaces PAS 17, Legses and its related interpretations.
The most significant change introduced by the new standard is that almost al} leases will be
brought onto lessees’ statement of financlal position under a single model (except leases of less
than 12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction between operating
and finance leases, Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the distinction
between operating and finance lease Is retained.

Deferrad effectivity -

Amendment to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures - Safe or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and Its
Associote or Joint Venture - The amendments address a current conflict between the two
standards and clarify that a gain or loss should be recognized fully when the transaction involves
a business, and partially if it involves assets that do not constitute a business. The affactive date
of the amendments, Initlally set for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, was
deferred Indefinitely In December 2015 but earfier appiication s still permisted.

Management has initlally assessed that the adoption of PFRS 9, PFRS 15 and PFRS 16 might have a
significant effect on amounts reported in the Company’s finenclal assets and liabilities, revenue and
leases. However, It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detalled
review has been compieted.

Fl fal ts and Liahll

Financlzl assets and Habilitles are accounted for as follows:

Recognition

' Financial assets and fiabllitles are recognized In the separate statement of financlal position

when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of @ financial
instrument. Financial Instruments are Initlally measured at fair value which Includes transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition (e.8. fees, commlssions, transfer taxes, etc.).
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However, transaction costs related to the acquisition of financlal instruments classified as fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL) are recognized immediately In proflt or Joss. The Company
uses trade date accounting to account for financial instruments,

“Day 1" Differance. The best evidence of the falr value of a flnanclal instrument at initial
recognition Is its transaction price unless the transaction price differs from its fair value.
The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market, if the market for & financial
instrument is not active, the Company determines fair value by using a valuation technique
whose variables include data from observable markets. The difference between the transaction
price and the fair value {a “day 1” dIfference) is recognized in profit or loss, unless it qualifies for
recognition as some other type of asset. in cases where the valuation model uses unobservable
data, the difference between the transaction price and the mode! value Is only recognized in
profit or loss when the inputs become abservable, or when the Instrument 1s derecognized.
For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the

“day 1* difference.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets at initlal recognition under the following categories:
{a) financial assets at FVPL, {b) held-to-maturity (HTM) Investments, {c] Ioans and recelvables
and {d) available-for-sale {AFS) flnancial assets. Financlzl lfabilities, on the ather hand, are
classifled as either financlal Habfilties at FVPL or other financial liablilties at amortized cost.
The classification of a financial Instrument largely depends on the Company's Intention at
acquisition or issuance date,

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company does not have financlal assets and llabillties
classified at FVPL, HTM investments and AFS financial assets.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and recelvables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and flxed maturities that are not quoted In an active market, They are not entered
into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classifled or designated as
AFS financial assets or financial esset at FYPL. Loans and recelvables are included in current
assets if maturity is within 12 months from reporting date, Otherwise, these are classifled as
noncurrent assets.

After initial measurement, loans and recelvables are measured at amortized cost using the
effectlve interest method, less allowance for Impairment, If any. Amortized cost Is calculated by
taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and any transaction costs which are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial instrument. The amortization is included
in profit or loss, .

The Company has classified Its cash and cash equivalents, tade end other recelvables, due from
related partles, other noncurvent recelvable and refundable lease deposlits {classlﬂed under
other noncurrent assats) as loans and receivabies.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid Investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with otiginal maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an
insigniflcant risk of change in value.
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Other Financial Liabliftles ot Amortized Cost. Financial labilities are classified in this category Iif
these are not held for trading or not designated as at FYPL upon the inception of the Habllity.
These include liabilities arising from operations or through borrowing.

Other financial liabilitles are Initlally recognized at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. After inltial recognition, other financial Habillties are measured at amortized
cost using the effectlve interest method. Amortized cost Is calculated by taking into account any
related issue costs, discount or premlum. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized, as well as through amortization process.

The Company’s trade and other payables (excluding customers’ deposits and statutory
payabie), loans payable, notes payabie and due to Parent Company are classifled under this

" category.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financlal assets Is impalred. A financial asset or group of financlal
assets Is deemed impalred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impaiment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset {an incurred
“loss event”) and thet |oss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows pf
the financial asset or group of financlal assets that can be estimated reliably.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impalrment exlsts individually for Its
financial assets that are individually significant, and Individually or collectively for its financlal
assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective
evidence of impalrment exists for an individually assessed financlal asset, whether significant or
not, It Includes the asset in & group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impalirment. Assets that are Individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a
collecthee agsessment of impairment.

The impalrment loss |s measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrylng
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows distounted at the orginal effective
Interest rate, The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowsnce
account, Impairment losses are recognized in full In profitor loss. Interest income continues to
be recognized on the reduced carrying amount using the Interest rate used to discount the
future cash flows for tha purpose of measuring the impairment toss,

if, In a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
refated objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized Impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the resulting carrying amount will not
exceed the amortized cost determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.
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d. Derecognition

A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financhal asset or part of & group of similar
financlal assets) Is derecagnized by the Company when:

* the right to recelve cash flows from the asset has expired; or

» the Company retains the rght to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without materfal defay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

» the Company has transferred ts right 10 receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or {b) has neither
transferrad nor retained substantlally alt the risk and rewards of the assets, but has
transferred control over the asset,

Where the Company has transferred its right to recelve cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantlally ail the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset Is recognized to the
extent of the Company’s continuing Involvement in the asset. Continuing Involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, if any, is measured at the lower of
orlginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to pay.

A financial Nabllity Is derecognized when the obilgation under the llabllity Is discharged or
cancelted or has expired. Where an exlsting financial liabiilty is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabilty are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
otiginal liability and the recognition of the new llability, and the difference In the respective
carrying amount Is recognized in profit or loss.

e. Offsetting

Financial assets and Nabilities are offset and the net amount reported In the separate statement
of financial position if, and only If, there Is a currently enforceabla legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements
where the related assets and Habilities are presented gross in the separate statement of
financlal position.

Inventorfss

Inventorles are Initlally measured at cost. Subsequently, Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value (NRV}. The costs of inventorles are calculated using weighted average
method. Costs camprise direct materlals and when applizabla, direct labor costs and those
overheads that have been Incurred in bringing the inventorles to their present location and
condition. NRV represents the estimated selilng price less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale for finished goods, and curent replacement cost for raw and
packaging materials.
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When the NRV of the inventories Is lower than the cost, the Company provides for an allowance for

 the decline in the valus of the invantory and recognizes the write-down as an expense in profit or

loss. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase In NRV,
Is recognized as part of other Income or charges In the separate statement of comprehensive
income. :

When Inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventorles is recognized as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is recognized and the related allowance for Impalrment loss
Is reversed. :

Other Assets -

Other assefs include advances to suppliers, prepayments, value-added tax [VAT) and idle assets,

Advances to suppliers. Advances to suppliers are recognized whenever the Company pays in
advance for its purchase of goods. These advances are measured at transaction price less
impairment [n value, if any, :

Prepoyments. Prepayments are expenses pald in advance and recorded &s assets before these are
utilized. These are apportioned over the perlod covered by the payment and recognized in profit or
loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be realized over no more than 12 months
after the reporting date are classified as current assets, Otherwise these are classifled as
noncurrent assets.

VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT. The net amount of
VAT recoverable from the taxation authority is presented as “nput VAT under “Other noncurrent
assets’ account in the separate statement of financial position,

fdle Assets. idle assets are those which are no longer used in the Company's operations.
The Company's Idle assets are already fully provided with allowante.

investments In Subsldlaries and Joint Ventures

The Company's Investments In subsidlaries and joint venturss are carried In the separate statement
of financial posttion at cost, fess any impairment in value, A subsidiary Is an entity In which the
Company has control. A joint venture Is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more partles
undertake an economic activity which is subject to joInt control,

An Investor contrals an investee when [t is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
invalvemant with the Investee and has the ability to affect those returns through s power over the
investee.

Control is generally accompanied by a shareholding of mare than one half of voting rights,
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are substantive are considered when
assessing whether the Company controls an entity. The Company re-assesses whether or not it
controls an entity if facts and circumstances indlcate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control

A joint venture s a type of Joint arrangement whereby the partles that have JoInt control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control s the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
actlvitles require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,
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The investment is derecognized when It Is soid or disposed. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an investment In a subsidiary are measured as the difference between the nat
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized In the profit or loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Property, Plant a) ipment
Praperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortizatlon
and any sccumulated impalrment in value.

The initlal cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condltion and location for its intendad use, The cost of seif-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other directly attributable costs, the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the slte on which they are located and capitalized borrowing
costs. Purchased software that is integral to the functlonality of the related equipment is capftalized
as part of the equipment,

Expenditures Incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized In profit or loss in the year the
costs are incurred. In situations where [t can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have
resulted in an Increase In the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an
item of property, plant and equipment beyond Its originally assessed standard of performance,
the expendttures are capltailzed as additlonal costs of property, plant and equipment. The cost of
replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized If It Is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will fiow to the Company, and
Its cost can be measured reliably. The canying amount of the replaced component Is derecognized.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful Hives, these
are accounted for as separate items {major components} of property, plant and equipment.

Depreclation and amortization are computed using the stralght-line methad cver the following
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment:

Number of Years
Building 15
Machinery and equlpment 15
Leasehold Improvemants 5 {or lease term, whichever fs
shorter)
Transportation equipment 5
Office and plant furniture, fixtures and equipment 5

The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed peripdically to
ensure that these are consistent with tha expected pattern of economic benefits from tems of
property, plant and equipment.

Fully depreclated assets are retained In the accounts untf] they are no longer in use and no further
charge for depreciation and amortization Is made in respect ofthose assets.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of the cost and the related accumulated -

depreclation, amortization and any Impalrment in value are removed from the accounts.
Any resulting galn or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
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Construction-in-progress represents the on-going installation of pouch line facility and boilers and is
stated at cost including other direct costs. This is not depracisted untif such time that the relevant
assets are completed and ready for operational use. This will be recognized as machinery and
equlpment upon completion of the construction.

Impairment of Nonfinanclal Assets

The carrying amounts of nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impalrment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be racoverable. If any such indication
exists and when the carrying amounts exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or
tash-generating unlts are written down to their recoverable amounts. The tecoverable amount of
the asset Is the greater of the falr value less cost to seli or valuz in use. The fair value less cost to sell
is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset In an arm's-length transaction less the cost of
disposal. In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects curvent market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash Inflows, the recoverable amount Is determined for the cish-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Impalrment [osses are recognized in profit or loss.

An assassment Is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any Indication that previously
recognized impalmment losses may no Jonger exist or may have decreasad. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized Impaiment loss is reversed only [f
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since
the last impalrment loss was recognized. |n such Instance, the carrylng amount of the asset is
Increased to Hts recoverable amount. However, that increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreclation and amortization for property, plant
and equipment, had no Impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years, Such reversal
is recognized in profit or loss. After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization charges for
property, plant and equipment are adjusted in future years to aliocate the asset’s revised carrying
amount, on a systematic basls over lts remaining useful iife. '

Customers’ Deposits

Customers’ deposits consist of amounts recelved by the Company from [ts customers as advance
payments for the sale of goods. These are recorded at face amount In the separate statement of
financial position and recognized as revenue in profit or loss when the services for which the
advances were made are rendered to the custonters,

Capital Stock an Itional Paid-} Ital

Capital stock Is measured at par value for all shares Issued. Incremental costs, net of tax, incurred
that are directly attributable to the Issuance of new sheres are recognized in equity as a reduction
from related addHional paid-in capital or retained eamings. Proceeds or fair value of consideration
received [n excess of pat value are recognized as addItlonal paid-In capltal.

Deficht
Deficit represents the curnulative balance of net iosses. Deficit may atso Include effect of changes in

accounting policy as may be required by the standard's transitional provision.
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Treasury Shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired are recognized at cost and deducted from equity.
No galn or loss is recognized in the separate statement of comprehensive income on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity Instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, Is recagnized In additional paid-in
capital. Voting rights related to treasury shares are nulllfled for the Company and no dividends are
allocated te them.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue Is recognized when It Is probable that the economic beneflts associated with the
transactions will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can-be measured relfably.
Revenue is measured at the falr value of the consideration received or recalvable, excluding
discounts and returns. The Company has concluded that it is the princlpal in all of its revenue
arrangements. Revenue is recognized as follows:

Sale of Goods. Revenue is recognized, net of sales returns, discounts and allowances, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customers, which [s
normally upon delivery to and acceptance of the goods by the buyer.

Interest income. Interest income Is recognized in a time proportion basis using the effective interest
method,

Other income. Income from other sources is reodgnized when earted during the periad.

Caost and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future aconomic benefit
related to a decrease In an asset or an Increase In a fiability hasarisen that can be measured rellably.

Cost of Goods Sold, Cost of goods soid is recognized as exi}ense when the related goods are sold.

Selling and Administrative Expenses. Selling expenses constitute costs incurred to sell and market
the goods and services. Administrative expenses constitute cost of administering the business.
Both are expensed as incurred.

Interest Expense, Interest expense Is recognized in a time proportion basls using the effective
interest method.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangetment is, or containsa lease Is based on the substance of
the arrangement at Inception date. This requlres an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent an the use of a specific asset or assets and whether the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment Is made after Inception of the lease only If one of
the following applies:

a. there s a change In contractval terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. arenewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of tha renewal or extension
was initially included fn the lease term;

c. thereis a change in the determination of whether fulfiliment is dependent on a specified asset;
or _

d. there is a substantial change to the asset,
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Where reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commenca or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios {3}, {c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario {b). '

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basls over the leasa term.

Retirement Benafits

Retirement benefit costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit. credit method.
This method reflects services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries.

The Company recognizes current service costs and interest expense on the retirtement benefit
obiigatien in profit or loss.

The Company determines the interest expense an retirement benefit obligation by applying the
discount rate to the retirament beneflt obiigation at the beginning of the year, taldng into account
any changes in the llability during the period as a resuit of benefit payments.

Remeasurements of the net fetlrement beneflt obligation, which consist of remeasurement galns
and fosses and the return on plan asset (exciuding amount charged In net interest) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive Income and ara not reclasstied to profit or loss in subsequent
periods. -

The net retirement benefit obligation recognized by the Compsny is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plan asset. The present value of defined benefit
obligation [s determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest
rates of government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
retirement benefit obligation.

Actuarial valuation is made with sufficiemt regularity by a qualified actuary so that the amounts
recognized in the separate financial statements do not differ materlally from the amounts that
would be determined at the reporting date.

fncame Taxes

Current tox. Current tax Is the expected tax payable on the taxable Income for the year, using tax
rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reborting date between
the tax hases of assats and liabilitles and thelr carrying amounts for flnancial reporting purposes.

Deferrad tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, excess minimum compaorate income tax {MCIT)
and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) to the extent that itis probable that future taxable profit
will be aveifabla agalnst which the deductibie temporary differences, excess MCIT and NOLCO can
be utilized.
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The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxsble profit will be avaliable to allow all
or part of the deferred Income tax assets to be utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
perlod when the asset is realized or the llabllity is settied, based on tax rate {and tax laws) in effect
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax asset and iabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against cutrent tax liabllities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxatlon authority.

Forgign Currency-Danominated Transactions and Translation

Transactions denominated in forelgn currencies are recorded using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets and liabilitles denominated in foreign currencies are
translated using the closing exchange rate at the reporting date. All differences are racognized in
profit or loss,

Retated Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party relatlonships exist when one party has the abllity to tontrol, directly or indirectly
through one or more Intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financlal and operating decisions. Such relstionships also exist between and/or
among entitias which are under common control with the reparting enterprise, or between and/or
among the reporting enterprises and their kay management personnel, directors, or Ks
stockholders.

A related party transaction Is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting
entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Provisions

Provistons are recognized when the Company has a present obligatlon (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economlc banefits will
be required to seftle the cbligation, and a reliable estimate can ba made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate,

The amount racognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settia the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The estimates of outcome and financial effect
are determined by the judgment of the management of the entlty, supplemented by experience of
similar transactions and, in some cases, reports from Independent experts, The evidence considered
includes any additional evidence provided by events after the reporting period.

Sontingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the separate financlal statements. These are disclosad In
the notes to separate financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economkc benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized In the separate
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to separate financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.
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Events after the Reporting Date

The Company identifies subsequent events as events that occurred after the reporting date but
before the date when the separate financial statements were authorlzed for Issue. Any subsequent
event that provides additional Information about the Company's financlal position at the reporting
date is reflected in the separate flnancial statements. MNon-adjusting subsequent events are
disclosed in the notes to the separate financial statements, when material.

Loss per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted loss per share data for [ts common shares.

Baslc loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to comman shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the
year,

There are ne potential dilutive shares.

. Significant Accounting Judgmems, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s separate financial statements requires management to make
judgments, astimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses,
assets and Habllities and disclosure of contingent Nabilities, at the end of the reporting perlod,
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit in outcome that could
require a material adjustment to the carrylng amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to -
accounting estimates are recognized in the perfod when the estimate is revised If the revision
affeacts only that period, or in the period of the revision end future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The Company belleves that the following represent a summary of these significant judgments and
estimates and the related impact and assoclated risks in the separate financial statemants. -

Assessing Going Concern, The Company Incurred losses in 2017, 2016 end 2015, and In a deficit
position as at December 31, 2017 and 2016. These events ¢r conditions Indicate that a materlal
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a golng
concern. Managament's plans to mitigate the material uncertainty are adequately disclosed In
Note 1, Accordingly, the separate financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concem
basls,

Determining Functional Currency. Based on managemant's assessment, the functional currency of
the Company has been determined to be the U.S. Dollar. The U.S. Dollar Is the currency of the
primary economic environment In which the Company operates. It Is the currency that mainly
influences the operations of the Campany.
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Determining Control or Joint Controf over an Investee Company. Control is prasumed to exist when
&n investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. On the other hand, Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decislans about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,
The Company accounts for its interest in a joInt amrangement with FDCP, Inc. {(FDCP) and Wild Catch
Fisherles, Inc. (WCFI} as a JoInt venture under PFRS 11, Management has datermined that by virtue
of its majority ownership of voting rights in AMHI and PTVDZ a5 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company hes the abllity to axerclse control over these jnvestees.

Classifying Leases, The Company has operating lease agresments for its office and plant site.
The Company has determined that the risks and rewards of ownership related to the leased
properties are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the agreements are accounted for as operating
leases, '

Rental expense amounted to $0.17 mililon, $0,72 mitllon and $0.62 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 22).

Assessing for impairment of Finonclol Assets, The Company maintains allowance for impalvment
losses at a Jeve| considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of
this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collect|bllity of the
accounts, These factors include, but are not ImHed to, significant financlal difficulties or
bankruptcy, the length of the Company’s relationship with the customer, the customer payment
behavior, and known market factors, The Company ldentifies and provides for specific accounts
that are doubtful of collectlon and reviews the age and status of the remalning recelvahles and
establishes a provision consldering, amang others, historical collection and write-off experience.

No impalrment loss on cash in banks and cash equlvalents wasrecognized in 2017 and 2016, Cash in
banks and cash equivalents aggregated $2.23 million and $4.19 million as at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respactivaly (see Note 4},

The Compeny recognized provision for Impairment loss on trade receivables amounting to
$57,275, 42,925 and $123,651 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company also written off
trade and other receivables amounting to 5478 and $26,969 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for impalrmeant losses, amountad to $6.25 million and
$3.70 milllon as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively {see Note 5),

Due from related paities, net of allowance for impairment kss, amounted to $8.07 milion and
$14.14 milllon as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Due from PTIAF! amounting to
$9.01 million was provided with a provision for impairment loss amounting to $6.67 mlllion in 2017
{sae Note 13). '

Recelvable from WCFI and refundable lease depoasits, net of allowance for Impalrment losses,
aggregated $1.67 million and $1.61 miflion as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Allowance for impalrment losses amounted to $2.18 million is et December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respactively {see Note 10).



|

%]

v 17 -

Estimating NRV of Inventorfes, The NRV of Inventories represents the estimated selling price for
inventorles less all estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to make the sale for-finished
goods, and current replacement costs for raw and packaging materlals. The Company determines
the estimated selling price for invantories based on the recent sale transaction of simllar goods with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economlic conditions since the date of transactions occurred.
The Company records provisions for excess of cost and NRY of Inventories. While the Company
believes that the estimates are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual
experience or significant changes in estimates may materially affect the profit or loss and equity.

The Company recognized provision for Impairment loss on inventorles amounting to $0.23 mililon,
$0.27 million and $3.44 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively {see Note 18}, Inventories
carried at lower of cost and NRV aggregated $11.47 million and $5.51 miltion as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively {see Maote 6),

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company estimates the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment based on the perfod over which the assets are expected to be
avallable for use. The estimates are based on a collective assessment of industry practice, Internal
technical evaluatfon and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed et each reporting date and are updated if expectations dlffer
from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and
legal or other limits on the use of the assets. Future results of operatlons could be materlally
affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes In the factors mentioned above,
The amount and timing of recording of depreciation and amortization expense for any period would
be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances,

There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of the Company’s property, plant and
equipment in 2017, 2016 and 2015. The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
amounted to $3.33 million and $2.82 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively
{see Note 9).

Assessing for impalrment of Nonfinanclof Assets, The Company assesses impairment on its
nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes In circumstences indicate that the carrying smount
of the assets or group of assets may not be recoverable. The relovant factors that the Company
considers in deciding whether to perform an asset impairment review include the foliowing:

* significant underperformance of e business In relation to expectations;
¢ significant negative industry or economic trends; and
* significant changes or planned changes in the use of the assets,

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impalrment loss is
recognized. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it Is not possible, for the
cash-generating unlt to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount represents the greater of the
fair value less cost to sell and the vaiue in use.

No provision for Impairment loss was recognized for other current assets and input VAT in 2017,
2016 and 2015, Other current assets and input VAT sggregated $5,15 million and $0.94 mililon as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively {see Notes 7 and 10).



<%

-18 -

Provision for impairment loss was recognized on investment in PTIAFL in 2017 amounting to
$5.00 milllon. The recoverable amount was estimated bssed on falr value Jess cost to sell.
The recoverable amount of investment In PTIAFI represents the amount expected to be generated
from the eventual sale of PTIAFI’s assets net of related payatles. Such amount [s based on various
valuation methads applicable to the specific assets, i.e discounted cash flow, net realizable value,
and appraised value. Management belleves that the recoverable amount of its investment In PTIAF|
is reasonable. investment in subsidlaries, net of allowance for Impairment Joss amounted to
$18.04 milllon and $23.04 million as at Decamber 31, 2017 and 2015, respectively (see Note 8),

Allowance far Impalrment loss on property, plant and equipment amaunted to $0.10 millfon as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 and 513.72 milllon as at December 31, 2015, The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment aggregated $3.33 million and $2.82 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively (see Note 9). The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
represents the assets’ value in use. Value in use Is determined as the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated from the contlnued use of the assets. The estimated
cash flows are projected using growth rates based on historlcal experience and business plans and
are discounted using pretax discount rates that reflect the cument assessment of the tima value of
money and the risks specific to the assets.

In 2016, the Company recognized provision for impairment lboss on its Idle assets amounting to
50.31 milllon. As at December 31, 2017, management has assessed that there is no further
allowance for impairment s required on lts investments in jolnt ventures and Idle assets in excess of
those that were already provided. Carrying amounts of these nonfinanclal assets are distlosed In
Note 10.

Estimating Retirement Beneflt Costs. The determinatian of the obligation and costs of retirement
benefits Is dependent on the assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amounts.
These assumptions are destribed in Note 14 to the separste financial statements and Include,
among others, discount rates and expected salary increase rates.

Retirement benefit costs amounted to 546,423, 587,143 and 571,322 in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The retirement benefits obligation amounted to 50.19 milion 2nd 50,15 million as et
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 14).

Recognizing Deferred Tax Assets. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting
date are reviewed and reduced to the extent that It Is no lenger probable that sufficient taxabla
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax sssets to be utilized. The Company’s
assessment on the recognltion of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences and
carryforward beneflts from NOLCO and excess MCIT is based on the forecasted taxable income of
the subsequent reporting perfods. This forecast is based on the Company’s past results and future
expectations on revenue and expenses.

The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets amountingto $0.75 million and $1.01 million as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016 since the Company belleves that it Is not probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the MCIT and NOLCO to be utilized within the
pertod allowed by the tax regulations.

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets amounting to $9.45 millton and $7.73 milllon as at
December 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively {see Note 24).
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4, Cash and Cash Equivalents
This account conslsts of:
2017 2016
Cash on hand $1,602 $2,797
Cash in banks 2,223,529 502,640
Cash equivalents - 3,681,481
$2,225,131 $4,186,918
Cash in banks earn Interest at prevailing bank deposit rates.
Cash equivalents pertain to short-term placements and earn Interest at the respective short-term
depaosit rates,
interast income inciuded in the separate statements of comprehensive income is summarized below
{see Note 19):
Note 2017 2016 2015
Cash and cash equlvalents $16,964 $76,692 $99,275
Due from related parties 13 * 178,897 - -
Accretlon of lease deposits 10 - 82,752 68,520 68,448
$263,613 $145,212 $167,723
5. Trade and Other Raceivables
This account conslsts of:
Note 2017 2016
Trade:
Third parties $6,249,008 $3,595,510
Related parly 13 31,080 31,080
Others 644,447 687,069
: _ 6,924,536 4,313,659
Allowance for impairment losses (675,147) (617,872)

$6,249,389 $3,695,787

The credit tenms on sale of goods averages 60 days. No Interestis charged on receivables exceeding
the credit terms.

Trade recelvables amounting to $6.02 million and $3.59 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, are usad to secure the Company’s short-term loans (see Note 12).

Other recelvables include claims recelvable for tax refund and advances to employees subject to
salary deduction.
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Movements In allowance for impalrment losses on trade and other receivables are as follows:

Note 017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 5617,872 $575,425
Provislon 14 57,275 42,925
Write-off - {478}
Balance at end of year _ $675,147 $617,872
6. Inventories
This account conslsts of;
2017 2016
At Cost:
Raw and packaging materials $8,251,540 $2,750,488
Finished goods : 2,530,151 1,817,512
Parts and supplies . 178,117 203,397
At NRY — : ‘ _
Finished goods - 508,546 735,108

$11,468,354 85,506,505

The costs of inventories measurad at NRV are as follows:

2017 2016

Finished goods $1,128,719 $2,000,768
Raw and packaging materials 102,650 125,151
$1,231,369 $2,125,919

Movements In allowance for impairment losses on inventories are as follows:

Note 2017 2016

Balance at beginning of year 51,390,811 $2,535,239
Provision 18 230,780 262,055
Reversal {898, 768) {1,411,487)
Balance at end of year $722,823 $1,390,811

Reversal of allowance for impairment of inventories malinly pertains to inventories condemned and
subsequently soid, which were provided with allowance.

Inventories amounting to $8.25 million and $2.75 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2015,
respectively, are usad to secure the Company’s short-term loans (see Note 12},

Inventories charged to cost of goods sold amounted to $30.35 milllon, $25.67 mililen, and
$26.75 million in 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively [sea Note 17},
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7. Other Current Assets

' This account consists of;
1017 2016
Advancas to suppliers 54,673,301 $321,554
Prepayments:
Taxes 59,152 163,048
Insurance 16,043 33,925
Others 8,198 15,351
$4,756,234 $533,958
Other prepayments pertaln to subscriptions and other fees,
B. Investments In Subsldiarles
The account cansists of investments in:
Name of Subsidiaries Note 2017 2016
Spence 59,240,946 $9,240,945
BGB 6,177,761 6,177,761
PTIAFI 4,999,000 4,999,000
Akarca 2,326,800 2,326,800
AMHI 294,037 294,037 -
23,038,544 23,038,544
Allowance for impairment loss 19 {4,999,000} -
$18,039,544 523,038,544
Movemaents in investments in subsidiaries at cost are as follows:
2017 2016
Balance at beglnning of year $23,038,544 $20,470,015
Addltions - 2,568,529
Balance at end of year $29,038,544 $23,038,544
SPENCE -
Spence [s based In Brockton, USA and specializes In the productlon of smoked salmon and other
seafood products. ' '
BGB

BGB is engaged in manufacturing goods such as salmon and other processed seafoods. It was
reglstered with the Philippine SEC in October 2009 and its registered offics Is located at Suite 1206,
East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. its plant

facilities are located In Barrio Tambler, General Santos City.

In October 2015, the Company converted advances of $2.57 milion for 125,000,000 shares of stock

of BGB [see Note 13).



e

14

-22-

PTIAFI

PTIAFI was established under the Indonesian Forelgn Capital Investment Law and Is primarily
engaged in canned fish processing excluslvely for international market. The plant Is located at
JL Raya Madidir Kelurahan Madidir Unst Ling. Il Kecamatan Madidir, Bitung Indonesia.

'PTIAFI owns 49% of PT VDZ, a fishing company. FT VDZ's operatlon Is integrated with the tuna

processing activities of PTIAFI, As at December 31, 2016, PT VDZ ceased operations.

PTIAFI has been incurring losses due to changes In Indonesla’s fishing regulations imposing
moratorium on foreign vessels. This moratorium has adversely affected PTIAFI's operations.
In 2017, the Company’s prices have remained uncompetitive primarily due to this moratorium, This
resuited to continued losses during year. The Company raassessed the recoverability of its
investment in PTIAFI and recognized a provision for Impalrment loss amounting to $5.00 million In
2017 {see Note 15).

AKAROA

Akaroa is a company incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand, engaged In sea cage salmon
farming and operates two marine farms In Akaroa Harbor, South New Zealand. It also processes
fresh and smoked salmon. Akaroa also holds 25% stake in Salmon Smolt N2, Ltd, a modern hatchery
quarantining high quality and consistent supply of smoits {Juvenile salmon) for its farm.

AMHI

AMHI was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the SEC on June 18, 2010 as a
property holding company. The registered address and principai office of AMH} is &t Purok Saydala,
Barangay Tambler, Ganaral Santos Clty.

PENZ

PFNZ is a company registered and domiciled In New Zealand and Is engaged in processing,
manufacturing and distributing smoked salmon and other seafoods undsr the Prime Smoke and
Studholme brand for distribution in-New Zealand and other countries,

in October 2015, the Company sold Its Interest in PFNZ to HC & JW Studholme No. Z Family Trust for
55,000, Loss on sale amounted to $599,487 {see Note 19},

Financial informatjon

The summarized financial information of the subsidlaries with non;controlllng interests as at and for
the years ended Dacember 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 Is as follows;

: 2017 2016 2015
Total assets $9,737,122 $9,569,843 $10,352,867
Total linbilities 16,606,783 12,642,222 11,330,175
Equity (capital deficlency) {6,844,828) (3,022,378) 3,666,524

Net income {loss) 203,200 (2,328,738) {5,992,341)
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9. Property, Plant and Equipment
Movemants in this account are as follows:
1017
Offe Mt
Machinery Lamtehold Trenspor- Feaniture,  Furnbure,
and  Improve- tation Fxturssand Fixturesand Constructlon.
Buliding Egulpmant mants  Equipment Equipment  equipment In-Progras Total
Cost
Ratance at baginning of yaar $LI60,626 $2,6a5703  S141,213  SMAVAMR  SADS D00 $45.647 $— 44,890,683
AddItfons 12,746 155,750 - 24,451 T 284 690,377 BB8,050
Disposals = - - {29,135} - - - 24,115
Balanca at end of year LATAMA  2B0GASD A9 BATEI0  AOS.8T0 #5931 ~  €90377 5754604
Accumulated Daprecion end
Amorilzation .
Dalance at beginning of year 359388 1213019 2,187 125871 naxn a45,411 - 10968393
Dapraclation and amortization Bl ers 18,333 28,586 51,016 11,519 50 - 378,691
Dispoxals - - - {24,129} - - - {24,129)
Belanca at end of year 466,562 1,397,442 25,873 152,758 235,395 4551 = 1,313,551
Allowance for impainnant Logsas
Balance at baginaing and end of
BEF - 101,408 - - - - = l0tAds
CArrying AmoLmt mwm §145,330  §135,052  5174,075 §—  §690377 Sﬂlsﬁ_
016
Ofiice Plant
Meachinery  leasshold  Tramspos Fumhure,  Fuen'ture,
and  Improve tallon fbturesend Fheiures and Flsking
Bulding _Eaulpment ments Equipment Equipmant  egulpmant Vassgls Tokal
Coat
Balance at beginning of yesr $1,346,550 S24E0,955 $141,218 $288,601 5213919 845,647 514412664 $18000,54
Addltlons 14,076 105,754 - 49,740 185041 - - 444,681
Cliposals - - - {50,853} - - - [s08s3)
Radassification — - - T - o~ {14.412.654) (14,412 664)
Ralance at end of yeor 1,360,626 2,646,703 141,213 257,488 409,000 45 547 ~  &B90683
Accurmuitad Deprecetion snd —
Amoruzation .
Belonce gt beginning of year 28D,756 1027132 1652 138,556 163,528 30,001 484,152 2,125,837
Deprachation and emortlation 78,469 185,047 535 98,158 60,048 15410 - 378,607
Disposalr - - - {50,253} - ~ - (so,a53}
Reclassification - - - - - - (s84002) (a8419)
Balante st énd of yesr 359235 1,213119 2087 135871  JAas75 454l - 1969390
AVowance tar Impalrmant Losses
Balane at beginning of year - 101,406 - - - - 13,614,182 13715558
Reclossiication - - - - - = {13,614,152) (13,614,152
Balsnce at end of year ~ 101,408 - - |- - - 101,406
Canrying Amount 1,001,391 51122_2&154 $139,026  $161,617  S1B5.424 5736 $- 51,819,878

Transportation equipment with net carrying value of $65,769 and $58,295 ss at December 31, 2017
and 2018, respectively, are held as coflateral to long-term loans{see Note 12).

As discussed in Note 1, the Company has incurred losses from operations untlf 2016, The Company
reviewed the recoverable amounts of thess assets based on value in use by projecting cash flow
covering a perfod of five years. A determined Weighted Average Cost of Capital was used to
discount the cash flows. Details of the rates used are as follews;

Rate

Discount rate
Growth rate

7.66%
5.00%
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Management determined the projected cash flows based on past performance, existing contracts
and expectations on market development such as average price per full contalner load and revenue
growth range and the related cost to generate such revenue, Management has concluded that no
impairment losses have to be recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015.

in 2016, fishing vessels with cost amounting to $14.41 million and accumulated depreciation and
Impairment amounting to $14.10 million, were reclassified to *“Other noncurrent assets” as
“Idle assets” as these are no longer used In operstions {see Note 10),

The Company recognized a gain on disposal of transportation equipment amounting to $627 and -
$3,589 in 2017 and 2016, respectively {see Note 19).

Depretiation and amortization charged to operations are as follows:

Note 2017 2016 2015
Cost of goods sold 17 $306,910 $312,617 $301,968
Selling and administrative expenses 18 71781 65,990 59,258

$375,691 $378,607 $361,226

The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still used in Company’s operations
amounted to $0.25 miltion and $0.24 milllon as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively,

10,

Other Noncurrent Assets
This account conslsts of:
Note 2017 2016

Recelvable from WCFI 13 $2,182,863 52,182,863
Refundable lease deposits 22 1,674,393 1,613,428
Input VAT 393,693 407,825
Idle assets 9 314,320 314,320
Investments in joint ventures 280,243 280,243

4,845,512 4,798,679
Allowance for impairment losses {2,777,426) {2,777,426)

$2,068,085 $2,021,253

Recelvable from WCF)

Recelvable from WCFI includes a recelvable from the sale of a fishing vessel and advances for
fish deposit. These were provided with allowance for Impairment losses due to losses sustained by
WCF!, WCFI ceased operations since 2014.

Refundable Lease Deposits

Refundable lease deposits pertain 1o lease deposits made to AMHL. Inerest income on lease
daposit amortization amounted to $67,752, $6B,520 and $68,448 In 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively isee Note 4).
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Jdls Assots
Idle assets pertaln to fishing vessels that are no longer used In the Company’s operatlons. Detalls of
the carrylng amount of the fishing vessel reclassified from property, plant and equipment are as
follows (see Note S}

. Amount

Cost 514,412,654
Less: '

Accumulated depreciation 484,192

Allewance for impairment losses 13,614,152

) $314,320

The fishing vessel was stated at its recoverable amount which is based on scrap value. In 2016, the
carrying amount of fishing vessel amounting to $314,320 was fully provided with allowance for
impairment losses {see Note 18).

Details of ldle assets as at Becember 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Amount

Carrying amount $314,320
Less allowance for impaimment 314,320
[

investmeants in Joint Ventures
FDCP. FDCP is engaged In manufacturing and wholesale of tin cans. FOCP ceased manufacturing

operations in September 2015. The Company recognized Impairment loss of 50.24 million In 2015 ta
fully provide Its investment in FDCP {see Note 18}, The Company has 39% ownership interest in
FDCP,

WCFI. WCF1 is an entlty primarily engaged in commerclal flshing within and outside Philippine waters
and [n the high seas. The Company has 40% ownership Interest In WFCL. The Company’s Investment
in WCFI is fully provided with allowance for impairment losses as WCF| ceased operatians In 2014,

ance for Impalyment Losses
Detalls as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as foliows:;

Note
Receivable from WCF| 13 $2,182,863
Investments In jolnt ventures 280,243
Idie assets 9 314,320

$2,777,426
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Movements In allowance for impairment losses on other noncurrent assets are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $2,777,426 $2,463,106
Provision 18 - - 314,320
Aalance st end of year $2,777,426 £2,777,426
11. Trade and Other Payahbles

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016
Trade payables:

Third parties $5,212,632 $1,933,832
Related partles 13 277,11 685,723
Accrued expenses 1,028,991 1,003,315
Statutory payable 235,812 50,703
Customers’ deposits 72,299 195,398
$6,831,455 53,868,971

The Company pays in advance lts purchases of frozen/imported goods. Credlt term far purchases of
local goods averages 30 days. No interest is charged on payables that have exceeded credit terms.

Detalls of accrued expenses are as follows:

Mote 2017 2016

Professional fees $393,849 $315,696
Salaries and wages . 130,011 76,185
Consultancy fee . 13 110,154 -
Rental 106,313 118,999
Short-term employee benefits 86,253 44,383
Frelght 78,061 122,478
Interest 73,736 90,595
Others 50,614 234,879
$1,028,991 $1,003,315

Other accruals conslst of foraign travel expenses, utilities, securlty services, commission and

customers’ claims.



- ——

LN

it

-27-

12. Loans Payable

Details of the Company’s loans payable are as follows:

Short-term Loans : _
Terms and conditions of outstanding short-term bank loans are as follows:

Nominal

Currency Interest Raie 2017 2015
Local banks usD 4.5% $18,487,091 $14,867,021
Investment banks PHP 5.0% 3,064,290 3,077,233
Usp 4,5% 2,700,000 2,700,000
24,251,381 20,744,254

Add current portion of chattel
mortgage loans 12,004 15,367

$24,263,385 $20,759,621

The loans from local banks, with term of 3-6 months, pertain to working capital Joans and
avallments of revolving facilities In the form of export packing credit, export bills purchase, import
letters of credit and trust recelpts.

toans from investment bank are unsecured promissory notes used to finance the Company’s
working capital requirements, with terms 90 days renewable at the end of each term.

Loans of $18.48 million and $12.47 miilton as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, are
secured by the Company’s trade recelvables and inventories asfollows:

. Note C 2017 2016
Tragde receivables 5 $6,023,684 $3,589,400
inventories , 6 " 8,251,539 2,750,488

$14,275,223 $6,339,888

Chatte loans - f Current Portion :
Terms and conditions of outstanding chattel martgage loans from a local bank are as follows:

Nominal Interest

Currency Rate. Year of Maturity 2017 2016

PHP 9.24% - 5.59% 2021 "~ $50,569 $49,080

Less current portion

of long-term loans 12,004 15,367
. $38,565 $33,713

Loan Security. As at Dacember 31, 2017 and 2016, chattel mortgage loéns-are secured by
transportation equipment with carrying amount of $65,769 and $58,295, respectively {see Note 3).
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.Schedul ncipal P
These sre summarizad below:

Year Amount
2018 : $12,004
2019 13,189
2020 - 2022 25,376

$50,569

Interest Expense
Interest expense arising from borrowings follows:

Note 2017 2016 2015
Short-term loans $742,/485 $546,683 $674,158
Long-term loans 4,676 70,447 150,179
Notes payahle - 13 13,544 10,053 104,032
Due to Parent Company 13 8,597 -

769,302 $627,183 $928,369

. Related Party Transactions

The Company, In the normal course of business, has transactions with its related parties as
summarized below: '

Amount of Transaclion Qutstanding Ralance
Related Party Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
Trada and Other Recelvables
Jolnt venture 5 8= S $31,080 $31,080
Dua from Ralatad Parties
Subsidiarfes §595,514 $1,089372 $14,500,298 $13,904,880
JoInt vanture . 96 - 234,185 234,089
Allowanoe for impairment - - {6,667,442) -

48,057,041 $14,138,969

Other Noncurrent Assels 10

Joint venture $- & $2,192,663 52,182,863
Subsidiaries 60,965 68,520 1,674,393 1,613,428
Allowance for impairment - - {2,182,863) (2,182,863}
$1,674,393 $1,613,428
Trada and Other Payables 11
Joint venture - - $262,844 $262,844
Subsidiaries {$408,002) $199,299 14,877 5422879
Parent Company 110,154 ~ ‘110,154 -
i $387,875 $685,723
Notes Payahble .
Subsidiary 52,450,000  $1,000,000 $3,450,000 $1,000,000
Due to Parent Company $2,002,804 5 $2,002,804 5~

The relatlonshlp of each related party s disclosed in Note 1.
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* Trode Recelvable, Trade Payable and Other Payables. The Company purchased some of Its tin can
requirements from FDCP. Trade payable to AMHI pertains to unpaid rentals. Payable to Parent
Company pertains to consultancy fee. Payable to Spence pertalns to interest payable. These trade
accounts which resulted from these transactions are naninterest-bearing.

Due from Related Partles. The Company has advances to its subsidlaries for working capital
requirements, These receivables {excluding BGB, AMHi, and Akaroa)} are noninterest-bearing and
payable on demand. The recelvable from FDCP pertalns to return of purchased tin cans which had
damages. FDCP ceased manufacturing operations in 2015. The Company recognized provision for
Impairment loss on advances to PTIAFI amounting to $6.67 million in 2017 becausa of the significant
lasses by PTIAF! {(see Note 19).

Interest income earned In 2017 on these advances follows {see Note 4);

Due from: : _ Interest Rate
BGB 3.00% $115,060
AMH| . 7.50% 47,986
Akaroa ' 7.00% 15,851

$178,897

In October 2016, the Compoany converted advancas of $2.57 milllon for 125,000,000 shares of stock
of BGB (see Note 8). )

The Company has a management agreement with Spence, Management fees amounted to $0.40
million, $0.40 million, and $0.30 millton In 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The outstanding
‘bélance |s due on demand and noninterest-bearing {sae Note 19),

Other Noncurrent Assets. Refundable lease deposit to AMHI resulted from 2 long-term [ease
contract {see Note 22). The receivable from WCF| was from the sale of fishing vessels (see Note 10).

Notes Payoble. The Company’s notes payable to Spence pertains to working capital advances,
payabie in lump-sum plus interest of 0.4% per annum broken down as follows:

2017 2016
Current portlon $2,700,000 $1,000,000
Long-term 750,000 -

$3,450,000 $1,000,000

Interest expense incurred amounted $13,544, 510,053 and $0.10 mililon in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 12}.

Due to Parent Company. The Company’s payable to Strongoak, its Parent Company, pertalns to cash
advances in 2017 for Its working capital requirement, which s subject to 6.5% annual Interest and
payable within four months from drawdown date. Interest expense amounted to $8,597 in 2017
{see Note 12). The ultimate Parent Company Is Seawood Resources, Inc, a domestic company
engaged In investing activitias,
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Remuneration of Key Manogement Personnel. The remuneration paid to key management

persnn_nel of the Company is set out below in aggregate as:

017 2016 2015

Short-term employee beneflts $308,487 3504,165 5436,492
Post-employment benefits 35,934 39,581 16,541
$434421 §543,746 $453,033

14

Retirement Benefit Ohligation

The Company values Its defined beneflt obligation using projected unif credit method by the service
of an independent actuary and accrues retirement beneflt expense for its qualified employees.
The Company has a trust agreement with a local bank establishing the Company’s retirement plan,
The most recent actuarial valuation was as at December 31, 2016 by independent actuary.

Retirement benefit costs recognized In the separate statements of comprehensive income in respect

of this defined benefit plan are as follows {see Note 18):

2017 2016 1015

Service cost;
Current service cost $38,802 $70,049 $54,245
et interest expense 7,621 17,093 17,076
Retirement beneflt costs recognized in profit or loss $46423 587,143 $71,322

The amoums includéd in the separate statements of financial position arising from the Company’s
obligations In respect of Its retirement benefit obligation are asfollows;

2017 2016
Present value of deflned beneflt obligation $233,863 $187,475
Fair value of plan assets {42,190) {41,636)
$191,673 $145,839
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2017 2016
Balance at begInning of year $187,475 $360,463
Cutrent service cost aB,a02 70,049
Interest cost ' 8,349 17,682
Beneflts paid:
From operations - {38,833}
From plan assets - (10,102}
Remeasurement gains:
Arlsing from experience adjustments - (114,936)
Arising from changes in financial assumptions - (37,020}
Retirement liabliity reclassifled to payable - {46,451}
Unrealized foralgn exchange gain {763) (13,377)
Belance at end of year $233,863 $187,475
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Movements on the falr value of plan assets are as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year : $41,634 $11,991
Interast income _ 728 5BB
Employer contribution - 42,403
Benefits paid - {10,102)
Loss on plan assets - (916)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (174) {2,328)
Balance at end of year $42,190 $41,636

The analysis of the fair value of plan assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

2017 2016

Cash and cash aquivalents $353 $107
Debt instruments 41,889 41,585
Fees payables {s) {5}
Withholding taxes payable {57) (50)
$42,190 $41,636

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarlal valuations were as follows:

nz - 2016 2015
Discount rate 5.25%6 5.25% 4.94%
Expected rate of salary increases 4,0096 4.00% 5.00%

The sensitivity analysis on the defined benefits obligations as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 Is as
follows:

- Effact an
Retiremant
Benefits
. Obligations
1% increase In the discount rate {$22,013)
1% decrease in the discount rate 26,220
1% increase in the salary increase rate assumption 26,308
1% decrease in the salary increase rate assumption (22,624)
10% improvement in employee turnover ' 2,984
10% increase in employee turnover ' ' {2,984}
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The cumulative remeasitrement gains (losses) on retirement henefit obligation recognized in other
comprehensive income follows:

Accurmnulated
Remaasuvamant
Galn (Loas) Deferred Tax Net
Balance as at January 1 end December 31,

2017 $105,090 {$31,527) $73,563
Balance as at January 1, 2016 {$45,950) 513,785 (532,165}
Remeasurement gain - 151,040 (45,312) 105,728
Balance as at December 31, 2016 $105,090 (_$_E';1,527] 573,563
Bajance as at January 1, 2015 {5177.427) $53,228 {$124,199)
Remeasurement gain 131,477 {39,443} 92,034
Balance as at December 31, 2015 ~ ($45,950) 513,785 {$32,165)

The average duration of the benefit obligation Is 18 years.

15.

Equity

Detalls of the Company’s capital stock as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Shares Amount
Authorlzed
Ordinary shares at®1 par value
Balance at beginning and end of year 3,000,000,000  #3,000,000,000
Issued and Outstanding
Balance at beginning of year 2,500,000,000 $53,646,778
Treasury shares {287,537) {5,774)
Balance atend of year . 2,499,712 463 $53,641,004

The history of shares issuances from the initlal public offering {IPO} of the Company Is as fallows:

Number of

Subscriber issue/Offer Price Registration/issue Date  Shares issued

PO . Varlous R1.35 November 8, 2006 535,099,510

Stock dividends Vairlous - —  December 17, 2007 64,177,445

Stock rights offer [SRO) Various 100 July 25, 2011 272,267,965

Stock dividends Varlous ~- January 25, 2012 137,500,000
Private placement Varlous 160  December 14, 2012 60,668,750 .

Private placement Strongoak Inc. 131 May 5, 2014 430,286,226

SRO Varlous 1.00 October 28, 2015 1,000,000,000

2,500,000,000
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On February 17, 2015, the BOD approved the stack rights offering of up to 1,000,000,000 shares at
R1.0 par value a share by way of pre-emptive rights offering to eligihle existing common
shareholders of the Company at the proportion of 1 rights offer for every one and % existing
common shares held as of record date.

On October 28, 2015, the SEC approved the Increase in the Company's authorized capltal stock from
P#1,500.00 million divided Into 1,500,000,000 shares to #3,000.00 million divided Into 3,000,000,000
shares at R1.00 par value a share.

Strongoak Inc. acquired 952,479,638 shares of the Company at par value arlsing from authorized
capltal stock and stock rights offerlng by way of pre-emptive rights, where the increase was
approved by the SEC on October 28, 2015. This resulted In Strongoak Inc. owning a total of
1,382,765,864 shares, representing 55.32% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the
Company.

On July 20, 2017 and September 7, 2017, the BOD and Stockholders, respectively, approved the
Company’s plan to undergo an equity restructuring to eliminate the Company’s deficlt, as follows;

» Decrease the Company’s authorized capltal stock by reducing the par value of its common stock
from R1 a share to approximately R0.50 a share, without returring any portien of the capltal to
the stockholders. The Company’s Articles of Incorporation will be amended to reflect the
necessary changes.

¢ Create additional pald-in capital from the decrease In parvalue.

o Apply the newly created additional paid-In capital, together with the existing paid-in capltal of
$6.7 million, to wipe out the Company's defickt as at May 31, 2017.

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the equity restructuring.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, additional pald-in capital amounted to $6.66 million.

The Company has 236 and 256 shareholders as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

16,

Net Sales
This account conslsts of:

2017 2016 2015
Net sales of flsh products $39,691,190 $28,938,265 532,168,087
Others 1,629,005 2,173,206 2,240,609

$41,320,195  $31,111,471  $34,400,556

Others pertaln to sale of flshmeal.
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17. Cost of Goods Sold

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016 2015
Direct materals 830,189,700 $25,571,245 $22,950,029
Direct labor 2,460,057 2,258,881 2,006,521
Manufacturing overhead:
Warehousing 825,600 1,113,311 1,021,855
Fue} "~ 9E9,675 835,778 862,005
Light and water - 386,492 281 187,738
Depreciation and amortization 9 306,510 312,617 301,568
Rental . 22 117,198 662,944 500,800
Others 1,432,138 861,274 1,632,468
Total manufacturing costs 36407,768 31,393,861 29,473,384
Finlshed gmds,ﬂlnnlng ' B 3,018,230 3,913,443 7,715,605
Total cost of goods manufactured 40,626,048 35,807,304 37,188,989
Finlshed goods, ending 6 {3,658,870} (3,818,280} (3,913,443)

$36,967,178 531,989,024 $33,275,546

Other manufacturing overhead consists of indirect labor, repalrs and maintenance, outside services
and Insurance among others,

18, Selling and Admintstrative Expenses

This account consists of:
Nate 2017 2016 2015
Salarles, wages and other benefits $959,548 81,130,481 $935,813
Qutslde services 634,253 345,328 856,803
‘Taxes and licenses 300,987 237,636 438,309
Impairment loss on: :
Inventorles 6 230,780 267,059 3,441,498
Trade and other recelvables 5 57,275 42,925 123,651
Other noncurrent assets 10 - 314,320 243,964
Property, plant and equipment 9 - - 101,406
Represantation and entertalnment 139,263 153,659 122,103
Transportation and travel 133,208 203,930 146,264
Security fees 79,307 77,134 GR,282
Depreciation and amortization 9 71,781 65,950 59,258
Business development 71,641 89,505 59,014
Rentai 22 53,532 - 58,177 116,693
Utllittes and communication 48,898 62,647 71,327
Retirement benefit costs 1A 45,423 87,143 71,322
Insurance 32,446 76088 - E§2,292
Materials and supplies 26,860 18,04 34,710
Fued a2nd oil _ 22,192 43,231 112,099
Buyer's claims 16,504 25,407 624,915
Qthars 342,133 167,489 330,964

$3,267,039  $3,467,160  $8,037,696
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19, Other Income (Charges)

This account consists of:
Note 2017 2016 2015
Impairment losses on:
Due from PTIAFI 13 {46,667,442) S- 5~
Investment in PTIAFI 8 14,999,000} - -
" Management fee 13 400,000 400,000 300,000
Interest income 4 263,613 145,212 167,723
Bank charges {128,841} (82,810} {91,734)
Foreign exchange galn {loss) {34,703} 108,584 220,463
Galn on disposal of transportation equipment 9 627 3,589 -
Loss on disposal of investment 8 - - {599,487}
Reversal of allowance for impairment an
other noncurrent assets - = 5,821,845
Provision for Impairment loss In fishing vessel - - (5,821,845}
Reversal of allowance for inventory
cbsolescence - - 368,294
Others 135,097 . 114,209 (288,799)
(_$1l],929,749) 5688,784 576,460

In 2015, reversal of allowance for impairment on other noncurrent assats pertalns to partial

recovery of receivable from WCFI,

, Employee Benefits

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016 2015
Short-term employee benefits $3,188,231 $3,243,385  $3,067,058
Post-employee benefits 14 48,423 87,143 71,322
$3,234,654 $3,230,538 53,138,380
21, Loss Per Share
The calculatlon of the basic and diluted loss per share Is based on the following data:
017 2016 2015
Loss for the year ($8,972,209) {$3,584,937) {$7,220,431}
Welghted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding 2,493,712,463  2,495,712,463  1,677,794,655
: (50.00359) {$0.00159) {$0,00430}

The weighted average nﬁmhar of sharas refers to shares in circulation during the period that i1s after

the effect of treasury shares.
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As ot December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company has no dilutive potential share; hence, the
basic loss per share is equal to the diluted toss per share.

22,

‘Slgnificant Agreements

Operating Lanse Agreements

Plgnt. On January 25, 2013, a long-term lease contract was executed by and between the Company
and AMHL The term shall be for a period of five yeers from January 1, 2013 until
December 31, 2017, renewsble every flve years thereafter, upon terms and conditions mutually
agreeable to the parties. Based on the contract, the rental fee shall be $56,572, subject to an annual
ascalation of 5% or the national nflation rate as published by the Natlona! Statistics Office,
whichever is higher.

. In addition, the Company shall pay an amount equivalent to 36 months rental of 51.63 million as

security depaosits.

On January 1, 2017, the lease contract was amended. Based on the amended contract, tha rental
fee shall be $11,634 per month, subject to annual escalation of 5% or the natlonal inflation rate as
published by the National Statistics Office, whichever is higher.

Head Office. The Company leases its head office space from Daminion Property Hofdings, Inc. with a
monthly rental of $3,688 for a period of three years, commencing on August 16, 2016 to
August 15, 2018 renewable by mutual agreemant by both partkes.

Refundable lease deposits amounted to $1.67 million and $1.61 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively {(see Note 10).

Hental expense charged to operations in refation to the lease agreements are as follows:

Note 2017 2016 2015
Cost of goods sotd 17 $117,196 §662,994 ° $500,800
Selling and administrative expenses 18 53,532 53,177 116,693

$170,728 §722,171 $617,493

Minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases are as follows:

2017 2016
Not later than one year $28,766 5597,097
Later than one year but not later than flve years - - 872,700

~ $29,766 51,469,797
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23,

Corporate Social Responsibility

For the past six (6} years, the Company has been giving back to the community through the feeding
program conducted in Banisl! High School located in Genera) Santos City. The program akmed to
feed underwelght students In an attempt to combat frequent absences and poor academic
performance as weil as educate the familles about proper nutrition for their children. The feeding
program was compieted by 2017, The Company Is how developing [ts corporake social responsibility
program to focus on the local workers’ community welfare, aswell a5 promoting a clean and healthy
environment together with energy conservation, for commencement in 2018,

24,

Income Tares

Current Tax
The Company’s current income tax expense represents minimum corporate Income tax amounting
to $94,961, $420 and $35,221 In 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. '

Deferred Tax
The components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2017 and

December 31, 2016 are as follows;

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for impairment iosses on:
Praperty, plant and equipment $4.208,964 $4,208,964
Due from PTIAFI 2,000,233 -
Other noncurrent assets 738,932 738,932
Inventories 216,847 417,244
Receivables 202,544 185,362
NOLCO 1,924,326 1,993,774
MCIT 95,381 420
Ratirement benefit obligation 57,502 43,752
Unreallzed forelgn exchange loss 5,510 -
Rental payable - 126,464
Accrued expenses - 17,250
9450,239 7,732,162
Deferred tax [lability
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - 17,748

$9/450,235 $7.714,414

The detalls of the Company’s NOLCO, which can be claimed as deduction from future taxable
income, are as follows:;

Inception Year ' Amount Expired/Applied Balance Expiry Year
2015 $4,876,913 5~ $4,876,913 2019
2015 3,916,364 _ - 3,916,364 2018
2014 877,793 877,793 - 2017

$9,671,070 $877,793 $8,793,277
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The detalls of the Company’s MCIT, which can be claimed as deduction from future Income tax

liability, are as follows:

Inception Year Amount Expired/Applied Balance Explry Year

2017 $94,961 ™ 594,961 2020

2016 420 - 420 2019

2015 35,221 T - 35,221 2018

2014 69,260 69,260 - 2017
$199,862 $69,260 $130,602

In 2017 and 2016, the Company did not recognize tha following deferred tax assets since the
management belleves that future taxable income wllt not be available to allow the deferred assets

to be utilized:

2017 2016

NOLCO $713,657 $907,547
Excess MCIT aover RCIT 45,221 104,481
$748,878 $1,012,028

The Company has assessed that with the new strategic plan being Implemented to tum-around the
business, the Company will generate enough taxable Income to utilize the total deferred tax assets
of $9.45 mlllion and $7.73 milllon as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The reconciliation of benefit from income tax computed at the statutory Income tax rate and at

effective Income tax rate follows:

2017 2016 2015
Beneflt from income tax computed at statutory tax rate (83,183,922} (51,284,934) (52,326,667)
Change in unrecoghized deferred tax assets _ {263,150) 257,426 1,411,069
Expired MCIT 69,260 52,786 -
Tax effects of:
Impairment loss on investment in PTIAFI 1,455,700 - 413,361
Expired NOLCO ' 202,803 701,816 -
MNondeductible expense 57,761 - -
Interest Income from accretion of refundable lease
deposht [20,326) {20,556) {20,534}
Interest income already suhjected to final tax {5,089) {23,008) {29,783}
Nondeductlble interest axpense 2,099 - 9,481 12,285
Effect of forelgn exchange gain - 8,304 ) 125
{$1,640,864)  {5298,175)  [$535,124)
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25. Falr Value of Financial Assets and Liabliities

The table below presents the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial assets and -
financial liabllitles as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

2017 2016

Corrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount’ Fair Value
Financial Assets
Loans and recejvables: .

* Cash-and cash equivalents $2,225,131 $2,225131 $4,186,918 54,186,918
Trede and otherveceivables 6,249,389 6,245,389 3,695,787 3,695,787
Due from related parties 8,067,041 8,067,041 14,138,569 14,138,969
Refundable lease deposits 1,674,393  1,674333 1,613,428 1,613,428

$18,215,954 $18,215954 $23,635102 423,635,102

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables* $6,519,343 $6,519344 $3,622,870 $3,622,870
Loans payable 24,301,950 24,307,309 20,793,334 20,788,462
MNotes payable 3,450,000 3,447,600 1,000,000 1,000,000
Due to Parent Company 2,002,804 2,002,804 - -

$36,274,098  $36,277,147 $25,416,204  $25,411,332

Due to the short-term maturities of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recelvables, due
from related partles, refundable lease deposits, trade and other payables and due to Parent
Company, thelr carrying amounts approximate their fair vatuss, These flnancial assets and liabllities
are classified under Level 3 of the falr value hierarchy groups of the separate financia! statements.

The fair value of the loans and notes payable Is determined hased on the discounted cash flow
analysis using effective Interest rates for similar types of instruments. There were no significant
unobservable inputs identified and no relationshlp was established between the uncbservable
inputs and the fair value of the loans payable and refundable lease deposits. These financial assets
and liabillties are classiied under Leve! 3 of the falr value hierarchy groups of the separate financial
statements,

The fair value hlerarchy groups the financlal assets and liabllities inta Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value Is observable,

There were no transfers among levels in 2017, 2016 and 2015.
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26, Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Compeny’s principal flnancial Instruments comprise mainly of cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, due from related partles, refundable lease deposits, trade and other
payables {excluding statutory payable and customer’s deposits), loans payahle, notes payable and
due to Parent Company. The main purpose of these financial instruments Is to finance the
Company’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk,
lfiquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The Company’s BOD and management review and approve
the policies for managing each of the risks summarized below,

Credit Risk
Credit risk is a risk when a counterparty fails to fulfill Its obligations to the Company.

The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
Company’s separate statements of financlal pusltlon before taking into cons:derat:on collateral and
ather credit enhantcements:

2017 2016

Cash and cash equivalents $2,225,131 54,186,918
Trade and other receivables 6,249,389 3,695,787
Due from related parties 8,067,091 14,138,969
Refundable lease deposits 1,674,393 1,613 428

$18,215,954 $23,635,102

The Company, however, deals only with reputable banks and customer to limit this risk.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the aging anelysis of the Company’s financlal assets is as
follows:

2017
Netther Pest  Past Due Account but not impaired impuired
Duenor 1-30Days 31-60 Days Ovar &) Financial
Impaired ~ PastDue  PastDue Days Assets Tatal
Cash and cash :
equlvalents $2,225,131 $ $- L $~  $2,225,131
Trade and ather :
recelvables 4,082,249 678,202 374,108 1,117,829 875,147 6,924,536
Due from related partles 5,485,508 - - 2,581,533 6,657,492 14,794,483
Refundable lease
deposits 1,674,393 - - - - 1,674,393

§15,467,281 4678,202 $371,109 $3,699,352 47,342,589 $25,558,5458
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2016
Nelther Past  Past Due Accaunt hu notimpalred impaired
Duenor 1-30Days 31-60Days Over 60 Financial
Impalred Past Due Past Due Days Assets Total
Cash and cash _ :
equivalents $4,186,918 - $- 5~ $— 94,186,918
Trade and othar
raceivables 2,931,672 146,243 - 617,872 617,872 4,313,659
Due from related parties 13,904,980 - - 234,089 - 14,138,965
Aefundable lease
deposits 1,613,428 - - — - 1,613,428
$22,636,858 5146,243 $—  $851961  5617,872 324,252,574

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the amount of cash in banks and cash equivalents and
refundable lease deposits are neither past due nor impaired and were classified as “High Grade”,
while trade and other receivables, due from reiated partles were tlassified as “Standard Grade”,
The credit quality of such loans and recelvables is managed by the Company using the internal credit
quality ratings as follows:

High Grade, Pertains to counterparty who is not expected by the Company to defauit in settling its
obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimal, This nomally includes large prime financlal
Institutions and companies. Credlt quality was -determined based on the credit standing of the
counterparty.

Standard Grade. Other financiat assets not belonging to high grade financial assets are included in
this category,

Substundard Grade. Recelvables from other counterperties with history of defaulted payments,

Interest Rate Risk
Intevest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value ar future cash flaws of a financlal

Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market interast rates,

The primary source of the Company’s interest rate risk relates 1o debt Instruments such as bank and
morigage loans. The interest rates on these lablilities are disciosed In-Note 12 to the separate
financizl statements,

Management belleves that any variation in the interest will not have a material impact an the net
profit of the Company.

Bark and mortgage loans as disclosed in Note 12 agreed at interest rates ranging from
approximateily 4,5% to 9.59% per annum for bank and mortgage loans; expose the Company to
fair value interest rate rlsk,

The Company has no borrowings with floating interast rate.

Liguldity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounter difficulties in raising funds
ta meet commitments from flnanciel instruments. Rt may resuit from either the inabllity to sell
assets qulckly at fair values or failure to collect from counterparty.
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The Company’s objective is to malntain a halance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through related party advances and alms to manage liquidity as follows:

a. To ensure that adequate funding s avallable at ail times;
b. To meet commitments as they arlse without recurring unnecessary costs; and
¢. To be able to assess funding when needed at the least possible cost.

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturlties for lts non-derivative
financial llabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financiel liablfities based on the eerliest date on which the Company can be required to pay,
The tables include both interest and principal.

2017
Welghted
Average Effectiva WithinOne More than One
- Interest Rate Yuar Yaar Total
Trade and ather payables* it $6,515,344 $- $6,519,3494
Loans payahle 4,50% - 9.59% p.a 24,263,385 38,565 24,301,950
Notes payable 0.40% p.a 2,700,000 750,000 3,450,000
Future Interest . 4,50% - 5.59% p.a 29,603 11,111 40,714
Due to Parent Company 6.50% p.a 2,002,804 - 2,002,804
. 5,515,158 - 799,676 - 35,314,8 ]

*Excluding statutory payable oad customers’ deposits aggregating $312,111

1016
Welghted Average
Effective Interest WithinCne More than One
Rate Year Year Total
Trade snd other payables* Nil $3,622,870 ~ $3,622,870 -
Loans payable 2.50% - 9.59% p.& 20,759,621 . 33,713 20,793,334
Future Interest 2.50% ~9,59% p.a BAG6 5,743 14,208
Notes payable 0.40% p.a 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
§25,390,957 439,456 $25,430,413

*Excluding statutory payabls and customers’ deposits aggregating $246,101

Forelgn Currency Risk

The Company has transactlonal currency exposures arising from purchase and censtruction contract
transactions denominated in currencles other than the reporting currency. The Company does not
enter into forward contracts to hedge currency exposures.

As part of the Company’s risk management policy, the Company maintains monitoring of the
fluctuations In the foreign exchange rates, thus managing its foreign turrency risk,

The carrying amounts of the Company's Phillppine Peso denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting dates are as follows:

2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents $370,606 $2,011,822
Trade and other receivables 153,582 149,312
Due from related parties 4,955,995 4,886,649
Trade and cther payables {5,338,616) {2,657,434)
Loans payable (3,114,859) {5,586,421)

Due to Parent Company (2,002,804) -
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Management's Assessment of the Reasonableness of Possibls Change In Foreign Exchange Rates.
The sensitivity analysis Includes outstanding foreign currency detiominated monetary items adjusted
and translated at period end for a 6% change in foreign currency rates.

The sensitivity analysis Includes all of the Company’s foreign currency denominated manetary assets
and liabilities, A positive number below Indicates an incresse in net profit when the U.S, Dollar
strengthens by 6% against the relevant currency. For a 6% weakening of the U.S. Dollar agalnst the
Philippine Peso, there would be an equel and opposite impact on the net profit and the balances an
the following tahle wouid be negative,

The following table detalls the Company’s sensitivity to a £% increase and decrease in the
U.S. Dollar against the relevant foreign cumrency.

Effect on Loss Before Tax
2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents $22,236 $120,709
Trade and other recelvables 9,215 8,959
Due from related parties 299,760 293,199
Trade and other payahles . {320,317) (159,446}
Loans payable _ {186,892) {335,185}
Due to Parent Company {120,168} -
{$296,166) {871,764}

The primary ohlective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit standing and stable capital ratios in order to support Hs business and maximize sharaholder
value. The Company maintalns its current capital structure and will make adjustments, If necessary,
In order to generate a reasonable leval of returns to stockholders over the long term. Moreover,
irr 2017, the Parent Company decided to undertake an equity restructuring which will result to the
elimination of capital deficit of $32.00 milllon {see Note 1). Ne changes were made in the
objectives, policles or processes during the year.

The Company considers the equity presented in the separate statements of financlal posrtion as its
core capital.

The Company monitors capital using debt-to-equity ratia, which 1s total debt divided by total equity.
The dabt-to-equity ratio as at Decembar 31, 2017 and 2016 fallows:

2017 2016
Debt $36,777,882 525,808,144
Equlty 28,875,873 37,848,082
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 1.27:1 0,68:1

Pursuant to the PSE's rules on minimum public ownershlp, at least 10% of the issued and
outstanding shares of a listed company must be owned and held by the public. The public ownership
is 32% as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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27. Reconclliation of Liabilities Arlsing from Financing Activities .

The table below details changes In the Company’s Habilities arising from financing activitles,

including cash and noncash changes:

Hnandugpaﬂlﬁomw
Foreign

2016  Avaiiments Payments Exchange Galn 2017

Loans payable - §20,793,334  $29,122,545 (525,608,602) {85,327) $24,301,550
Notes payable 1,000,000 2,450,000 - - 3,450,000
Due to Parent Compzny - 2,002,804 - - 2,002,804
Interest payable 50,595 769,302 {786,161) - 73,736
$21,883,929 $34,344,651 (526,394,763) '(%5,327) $29,828,490
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Alliance Select Foods Intemnational, Inc.

Unit 1206 East Tower ,
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

We have audlted the accompanying separate Rnancial statements of Alifance Sefect Foods international,
Inc. (a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.) {the “Company”) as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017,

on which we have rendered our report dated March 23,

2018,

In compliance with Securitles Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Company
has two hundred twenty one {221) stockholders owning one hundred {100) or more shares each.

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

Ay

EMMANUEL V. CLARINO

_Partner
CPA Certificate No. 27455
Text |dentHlcation No, 102-084-004-000
BOA Accredltation No. 4782; Valld untll December 31, 2018
SEC Accredlation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A
Valid untl March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditatian No. 08-005144-005-2017
Valld untll January 13, 2020
PTR No. 6507953
Iswwed fanuary 3, 2018, Makatl Clty

Viarch 23, 2018
Makati Clty, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ALDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Alliance Select Foods Internatfonal, inc.

Unlt 1206 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig Cliy

Wae have audited In accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing the separate financial statements
of Alllance Select Foods International, Inc, {a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.) {the “Company”} as at and for
the year ended December 31, 2017, and have Issued our report ithereon dsted March 23, 2018,
Our audit was made for the purpose of farming an opinion on the basic separate financial statements
taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are the responsibllity of the Company's
management. These supplementary schedules include the following:

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
» Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards ang Interpretations

These schedules are presented for the purpose of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule €8,
as amended, and are not part of the basic separate flnancial statements. The Information in this
schedule has been sublected to the auditing procedures applied In our audlt of the basic separate
finencial statements, including comparing such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic separate financial statements or to the basic separate financial

~ statements thamselves. In our oplnion, the information Is faiey stated in all material respects [n refation
tu the basic separate financial statements taken as a whole.

REYES TACANDONG & CD.

o,
EMMANUEL V. CLARINO
Partner
CPA CertHicate No. 27455
Tax Identification Na, 102-084-004-0D0
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valld untll Decamber 31, 2018
SEC Accredhtation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A
Valld untl} March 27, 2020
BIR Accredltation No. 08-005144-005-2017
Valfld untll January 13, 2020
PTR No. 6607354
jssued January 3, 2018, Makal City

March 23, 2018
Makatl City, Metro Manila
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC,
(A Subsidlary of Strongoak Inc)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

Decermnber 31, 2017

Deficit at beginning of year as shown Iin the separate financial statements (522,528,486)
Less deferred tax assets at the beginning of year {7,732,162)
Add deferred tax {iability at the beginning of year 17,748
Total deficlt, as adjusted at beginning of year {30,242,900)
Net loss during the year closed to retained earnings {8,972,209)
Less:

Movement in deferred tax assets _ 1,718,077

Movemnent in defarred tax liehility 17,748

Treasury sharas 5,774
Total retained eamings avallable for dividend declaration at end ofyear S~
Reconciliatfon:
Deficit at end of year as shown in the separate financial statements {831,500,695)
Less:

Deferred tex assets as at end of year 9,450,239

Treasury shares 5,774

Total retained earnlﬂgs_available for dividend declaretion at end of year . 4.
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

(A Subsldiary of strongoak lix.}

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Not Not
Title Adopted Adapted | Appllcable
Framework for the Praparation end Presentatlon of Financlal
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A; Objectives and qualltative characteristics v
PFRS Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Phillppine Finenclal Reparting Standards (PFRS)
Not Not
PFRS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
PRS 1 {Revised) First-time Adoption of Philippine Financlal Reporting v
Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptlons for v
First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for Firsttime v
Adapters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinfiation and v
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1; Government Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations _
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- v
based Payrient Transactions -
PFRS 3 {Revised) | Business Combinations v
Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contlngent v
Consideration in a Business Combination
Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint v
Ventures
PFRS 4 Insurance Con;cracts
Amendiments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts v
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PERS

Title

Adoptad

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PFRS 5

Non-turrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operatlons

Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes In Methads of Disposal

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluatlon of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financlal instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Einancial
Assets - Effective Date and TransHion

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendmenis to PFRS 7: Disclosures « Transfers of
Financlal Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial LiabHities

Araendment to PFRS T: Servicing Contracts

Amendment to PFRS 7: Applicability of the
Armendments to PFRS 7 to Condansed Interim Financla}
Statements

PFRS &

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS B; Aggregation of Operating
Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconciliation of the Total of
the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entlty’s Assats

PFRS 10

Consoflidated Financial Staternents

Amendmentsto PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10; Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

PFFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Transitlon Guldance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests In Jolnt Operations
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PFRS

Titla

Adapted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitles

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transktion Guidence

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12 Investment Entitles; Applying
the Consalldation Exception

Amendment te PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard

PFRS 13

Falr Value Measurement

Amendrent to PFRS 13: Short-term recelvables and
Payables

Amendment to PFRS 13; Portfollo Exception

PFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Philippine Actounting Standards {PASs}

PAS

Tide

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PAS 1 {Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 1 {Revised): Puttable Financlal
instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1 (Revisad): Presentation of items
of Other Comprehensive Income

Amendment to PAS 1: Clarflecatlon of the
Reguirements for Comparative Presentation

~

Amendments to PAS 1 (Revised): Disclosura Inftlative

PAS2

Inventories

PAS?

Statemnent of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS7: Disclosure Inftlative

A Y R A

PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

<

PAS 10

Events efter the Reporting Period

PAS 11

Construction Contracts
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PAS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adapted

Nat
Applicable

PAS 12

Income Taxes

Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tex: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Asxzets for Unrealized Losses

PAS 16

Property, Plant and_ Equipment

Amendment to PAS 16: Classtflcation of Serviting
Equipment

Amendment to PAS 16: 'Revaluatlun Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Depreciation

Amendment to PAS 16: Property, Plant and Equlpment
- Clarlfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreclation
and Amortization

Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants

PAS 17

Lesses

PAS 18

Revenue

PAS 19
{Revised)

Employee Beneflts

Amendment to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans;
Employee Contributions

Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Reglonal Market
lssue

PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

PAS 21

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment: Net Investment In a Forelgn Cperation

PAS 23 (Revised)

Borrowing Costs

PAS 24 {Revlsed)

Related Party Disclosures

Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel

NSNS NS

PAS 26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

PAS 27
{Amended)

Separata Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 27 (Amended): Investment
Entities
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PAS

Title

Adopted

Mot
‘Adopted

Not
Applicable

Amendments to PAS 27 {Amended): Equity Method in
Separate Financlal Statemems

v

PAS 28
{Amended)

investments In Assoclates and Joint Venturas

Amendments to PAS 2B (Amended): Sale or
Cantributlon of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Jolnt Venture

Amendments to PAS 28 (Amended}: Invesiment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

PAS29

Financisl Reporting In Hyperinflationary Economles

PAS 32

Financial Instruments; Disclosure and Preseniation

Financial Instruments: Presentation

| Amendmants to PAS 32: Puttable Financlal Instruments

and Obligations Arlsing on Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabflitles

Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distrlbution to
Holders of Equity instruments

PAS 33

Eamings per Share

PA534

Interlm Financial Reporting

Amendment to PAS 34: Interim Financlal Reporting and
Segment [nformation for Total Assets and Liabilties

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information
‘Elsewhere In the Interim Financlal Report’

PAS 36

Impalrment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures far Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisians, Contingent Ltabilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 38

intanglble Assets

Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatemant of Accumulated
Amortization

Amendment to PAS 38: Clarificatlon of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortlzetion
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Not Not
PAS Tile Adopted | opted | Applicable
PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and v
Measurement
Amendments to PAS 3% Transition and Initial v
Recognhtion of Finantial Assets and Financial Liabilitles
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting v
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option
Amendments to PAS 39; Financlal Guarantee Contracts v
Amendments to PAS 39: ReclassHication of Financial 7
Assets
Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassiflcatlon of Financlal 7
Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derlvatives 4
Amendment to PAS 39; Eligible Hedgad ltems
Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and >
Continuaticn of Hedge Accounting
PAS 40 Investrment Property '
Amendment to PAS 40; Clarifying the Interrelatianship ]
between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifying Property v
as investment Praperty or Owner-occupled Property
PAS 41 Agriculture v
Amendments to PAS 41: Bearer Plants v
Philipplhe Intarpretations
Not Not
Interpretations Title Adaptad Adopted | Applicable
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and v
Similar Liabiitties
IFRIC 2 Members’ Share in Co-operative Enthies and Simllar v
Instruments _
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether gn Arrangement Contalns a ”
Lease
IFRIC 5 Rights to interests arismg from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
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or its Shareholders

: | ’ 1 Naot Not
Interpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
IFRIC 6 | Uabifities arlsing from Participating in a Specific Market .
- Waste Electrical and Efectronte Equipment v
IFRIC 7 Applying the Reststement Approach under PAS 29| v
Financtal Reporting in Hyperinfiationary Ecanomies
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to- Phillppine Interpretation [FKIC-9: v
Embedded Derivatives
“IFRIC 10 Interim Financlal Reporting and Impairment
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
iFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
{ERIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Beneflt Asset, Minimum v
Funding Requirements and thelr Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretetions IFRIC- 14, 7
Prepayments of a-MInimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Met Investment in a Forelgn Operation v
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assats to Ownars v
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
IFRIC 10 Extingulshing Flnancial Liabilities with Equity v
instroments
[FRIC 20 Stripping Costs In the Production Phaese of a Surface v
Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies v
PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - SiC
Not Not
Intarpretallons Titie Adepted Adopted | Applicable
SIC-7 introduction of the Euro v
Govarnment Assistance - No Specific Relation to
v
Sic-10 Operating Activities
SiC-15 Qperating Leases - Incentives v
$IC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Stetus of an Entity v
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Not Not
Interpretations Title Adopted | pted | Applicable
' Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
5|C-27 . v
: Legat Form of a Lease
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangaments: Disclosures. v
SIC-31 | _Reuenue - Barter Transactions Involving Ad‘verﬂslng. v
Services
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v




